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Vision
Box Hill Institute will be recognised as Australia’s No. 1 global vocational education and training provider.

Mission
The mission of Box Hill Institute is centred on students, skills and staff. The mission is:
•      to provide students with a positive learning environment and give them the opportunity to excel in the global 

employment market
•      to provide industry and the community with highly skilled and well educated people capable of making productive 

contributions
•      to provide a working environment that attracts and nurtures leaders in vocational education, training and services.

Values
Service to students, other customers, the community and one another.
Excellence in everything we do, by adopting the highest professional standards.
Learning which contributes to our growth as individuals and a community.
Integrity through honesty, fairness, transparent communication and trusting relationships.
Accountability to those we serve and each other.
Achievement by recognising and rewarding achievers, responsible risk taking, creativity and innovation.
Equity & access by providing people with fair and reasonable opportunities to participate and excel on merit.
Caring for the wellbeing of our diverse community and maintaining a balance between our personal and professional lives.
Teamwork which encourages participation and empowers people to exercise initiative and responsibility.
Leadership which consistently inspires mutual respect and outstanding performance.
Continuous development of staff, learning programs, our environment and systems.
Partnerships with Government, industry, employers, secondary schools and the local community which are mutually 

beneficial.

Strategic platforms
Leaders in learning
Learning is the Institute’s core business. Our future lies in our capacity and commitment to supporting high 
quality learning to our local, national and international communities and within the Institute.

Leaders in community relationships
As a leader in vocational education and training, Box Hill Institute will work with a range of industry and 
educational partners to strengthen its position and to maximise both the education and employment 
opportunities of its students and the Institute’s corporate business opportunities.

Leaders in technology
In order to provide state of the art facilities, products and programs to capitalise on business opportunities and 
support government policy, we need to maintain our leadership role in the use of technology in innovative 
teaching and service delivery.

Leaders globally
Box Hill Institute will flourish in an increasingly globalised education and training marketplace. Similarly we will 
give our students the vocational resilience they need to sustain lifelong careers in a globalised economy.

Managing students and customers
We will maximise our position in the marketplace by developing a positive learning environment for students 
and a corporate approach to business clients. The focus of all staff will be on our students and their future study 
or employment needs as well as the future needs of employers.

Managing capacity and capability
The efficient management and development of the Institute’s staff and infrastructure allows the Institute to 
make the most of its service potential and manage the associated risks and costs within available resources. This 
provides a positive learning and working environment for both staff and students.

Managing business growth
Box Hill Institute is recognised as being entrepreneurial, innovative and creative with a reputation for excellence 
in the vocational education and training sector. The Institute must build on its reputation and respond to new 
business opportunities predominantly related to our targeted industry areas.

Managing business performance
Sound business performance will ensure Box Hill Institute’s long-term financial viability.
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We had strong growth from inbound international 
students as a result of a concerted marketing 
effort. In 2005, the Institute increased its focus 
on bidding for work in the competitive area of 
international projects and our results were solid. 
The Institute won a significant international 
contract to develop a national community services 
qualifications framework for the Singapore 
Workforce Development Agency. We also delivered 
very successful training programs in several Asian 
countries, South America, the South Pacific and the 
Middle East with businesses such as adidas-Salomon, 
PT Astra Honda Motor, Bank Niaga and the Sheraton.

Our international extended campus operations 
continue to expand with excellent growth in China 
and Vietnam.

During the year, I was invited to participate in a 
Commonwealth Government delegation to Brazil, 
which will eventually lead to potential training and 
partnership opportunities in South America. 

Box Hill Institute hosted 16 exchange students and 
seven staff and sent abroad 18 Box Hill Institute 
students and eight staff through our international 
education partnerships. This included our Global 
Education Network partners, the Southern Alberta 
Institute of Technology in Canada and Kirkwood 
Community College in the United States, as well as 
the relationships we have with Vitus Bering Denmark 
and Salt Lake Community College in the United 
States.

Box Hill Institute signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Deakin University. Through this 
partnership, we will work towards the development, 
delivery, oversight and marketing of educational 
pathways and programs to local and international 
students. This will provide better pathways for our 
students into Deakin’s degree programs.

The first year of delivery for the degrees in Applied 
Music and Computer Systems (Networking) was 
very successful with substantial enrolments in both 
courses and excellent feedback from students. The 
Bachelor of Biotechnology & Innovation is set for 
its first intake in 2006. To complement our degree 
offerings, the Institute has received approval for 
six associate degrees—three in the same degree 
disciplines and the other three in Commerce, IT 
(Software) and Fashion.

Our training businesses are still performing strongly 
and giving our students exceptional work experience 
opportunities. These include Salon on Elgar, the 
Day Spa, Flowers on Elgar, Lighting and Sound Hire 

(LASH), Delightful Lunches and Pets on Elgar.

The Centre for Automotive, Transport & Engineering 
and the Centre for Media, Design & Arts offered 
the Xtreme Design Course for the first time, 
which combined the elements of design within 
an engineering contex. The Centre also won the 
Innovative Business Training Strategy Award for 
Large Business in the Innovative Training Awards for 
its groundbreaking Automotive Air-Conditioning 
Certification Program, which has now been 
customised for Mazda in Australia.

I would like to commend our students for their ability 
to consistently excel in various industry awards.

Automotive student and Porsche apprentice Amber 
Sarda was named Victorian Apprentice of the Year at 
the State Training Awards, which is great testament 
to the dedication of both Amber and the Box Hill 
Institute teaching staff.

§ Fashion student Kaye Young took out four first 
prizes at the Victorian Fashion Awards. Sarah 
Caruana, Bryony Whittaker, Sophie Koroneos and 
Jaye Wearne won other prizes.

§ Music degree student Rocky Loprevite made the 
final 30 of hit TV show Australian Idol. 

§ Floristry student Tuyen Hoang won first place in 
the Advanced – Wedding Bouquet section at the 
Melbourne International Flower & Garden Show. 
Julie Martella, Vesna Trajanovski and Michele Gray 
won places in the Wedding Bouquet and Vase 
Arrangement categories.

§ Fashion student Jaye Wearne won a $10,000 
fellowship to travel to Italy and work with world 
famous designer Renato Balestra.

§ Hospitality students Ry Stephen, Emma Parker 
and Ben Tasker won the Dura-Wear Club Chef VIC 
TAFE Cookery Challenge.

§ The following students were WorldSkills Australia 
winners: gold medals went to Daniel Stanley 
(refrigeration and air-conditioning), Hannah 
Hearne (hospitality), Terri Zimmerman and Nicole 
Rutten (fashion); silver medals to Jack Twite 
(refrigeration and air-conditioning), Mey Fuon 
Boey and Corinna Howard (fashion); and bronze 
medals to Clinton Spence (refrigeration and 
air-conditioning), Caitlin Hards (hospitality) and 
Lauren Andrewartha (fashion).

§ Video production graduate Jehad Debab was 
director of Muslim community TV chat show 
Salam Café, which won Best Culturally and 
Linguistically Diverse Program and Best Faith 
Based and Spiritual Development Program at the 
Antenna Awards.
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§ Cabinet-making apprentice Chris Ansell won the 
Pre-apprenticeship (Cabinet-Making) Award at the 
Victorian Furnishing Industry Training Awards.

§ Music student Leigh Irwin was named the Office of 
Training and Tertiary Education Outstanding Student 
– Vocational Studies (Arts and Culture) at the Verve 
SpArta Training Awards.

§ Carpentry apprentice Sam Booth was named HIA 
Termimesh Australian Jim Brookes Apprentice of 
the Year after being Victorian Apprentice of the Year 
in 2002 and 2004.  Jay Abbott, Alistair Morris, Adam 
Bonnici, Philip Miatke, William To and Jason Allot also 
won HIA awards.

§ Security systems apprentice Andrew Carter won 
Security Australia’s Pursuit of Excellence Award.

§ Plumbing students Peter Southon and Robert Ihle 
won the Rose Curtis Award and the Rheem Australia 
Encouragement Award respectively at the Master 
Plumbers and Mechanical Services Association of 
Victoria.

Annually we recognise the contribution of our 
staff through the Staff Achievements Recognition 
Program with winners receiving funds for professional 
development. The 2005 winners were:

§ Employee of the Year - Steve Kenny (Centre for 
Hospitality and Tourism Studies)

§ Teacher of the Year - Rona Green (Centre for Media, 
Design and Arts)

§ Team of the Year - VCAL Teachers Community of 
Practice – (Centre for Student Support)

§ Leadership Award - David Wilson (Centre for 
Hospitality and Tourism Studies)

§ Management Award - Olivia Parker (Centre for 
Marketing)

§ Environmental Award - Barry Thompson (Print/ Risk 
Management)

§ Occupational Health and Safety Award - Catherine 
Jeffries (Centre for Vocational Access and Education)

§ CEO Special Commendation Award - Adrian Lea 
(Centre for Automotive, Transport and Engineering)

§ CEO Team Leadership Award - Centre for Industry, 
Education and Training

§ CEO Centre Encouragement Award - Centre for 
Media, Design and Arts.

Our corporate citizenship service was rewarded when 
we again won multiple awards at the Whitehorse 
Business Group Excellence in Business Awards. We won 
the Medium to Large Business category for the second 
year in a row and the Corporate Citizenship Award.

The House for Homeless Youth, a joint project with the Child 
& Family Care Network, is progressing well and the proceeds 
from the fourth annual Black Tie Ball held in September will 
go towards a second House.

Staff and students from various Centres organised fundraising 
functions for many worthy causes including the tsunami 
victims, Wigz for Kids, Scope, Shave for a Cure, the Bone 
Marrow Foundation, Guide Dogs Victoria and numerous other 
charities.

We finalised an ICT Strategic Industry Training Plan that will 
help us capitalise on the opportunities available in the ICT 
industry. We have maintained our partnerships with industry 
leaders in technology such as Cisco Systems, who continued 
to support the Institute with its scholarship, and Dell, who 
generously provided computers for many of our community 
initiatives.

Our strategic partnerships with companies including 
Sidchrome, Aveda, Bakers Delight, GSS and Unigraphics are 
still running successfully. These partners and many others 
have supported our students with donations of equipment, 
supplies, scholarships and other forms of sponsorship. 

During 2005 we successfully delivered training to 
organisations such as Epworth Eastern, Rae-Line, Coles Myer 
and Motorola. We also set up a 10-year training agreement 
with Life Saving Victoria as well as signing contracts with 
caterers Delaware North Companies and Spotless to train staff 
for the Melbourne 2006 Commonwealth Games.

Now that the Elgar Building 8 project is completed, our next 
infrastructure priority is to redevelop Whitehorse Campus. In 
2005, we received government funding to complete detailed 
designs for the redevelopment and that project is now under 
way.

I want to thank the Council, our dedicated and committed 
staff, our industry and community partners and sponsors both 
locally and overseas, and our students for making this a most 
enjoyable and productive year.

John Maddock
Chief Executive Officer
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Back row (left to right):
Bruce Thompson, Sue Castleman, Noelene Duff, 
Christopher Lobb, Fergus Hudson, Christine Kilmartin
Front row (left to right):
Genevieve Webb, John Maddock, John Rasa, 
Elizabeth White, Philip Belcher
Absent:
Glenn von Bibra, Andres Restrepo

Council Members

Ongoing appointment - Chief Executive Officer

Mr John Maddock

Ministerial appointments

Mr Philip Belcher  Appointed 09/03/04 for 3 years
Ms Elizabeth White  Appointed 26/04/2002 for 3 years
 Reappointed 01/08/05 for 3 years
Mr Christopher Lobb  Appointed 19/09/2005 for 3 years

Ms Noelene Duff  Appointed 19/09/2005 for 3 years

Ministerial appointments - industry

Associate Professor John Rasa Appointed 27/03/2003 for 3 years
Mr Glenn von Bibra  Appointed 29/01/2001 for 3 years
 Reappointed 09/03/04 for 3 years
Ms Genevieve Webb  Appointed 26/03/2003 for 3 years

Co-opted appointments

Ms Christine Kilmartin  Appointed 27/02/2002 for 3 years
 Reappointed 27/02/05 for 3 years
Mr Bruce Thompson  Appointed 25/02/2003 for 2 years

 Reappointed 01/07/05 for 2 years

Elected staff representative

Mr Fergus Hudson  Appointed 01/06/2005 for 2 years

Elected student representative

Ms Pheobe Garside  Appointed 01/04/04 for 1 year
Mr Andres Restrepo  Appointed 01/04/05 for 1 year

Office bearers

President 

Associate Professor John Rasa  Appointed from 27/05/04

Vice Presidents 

Ms Genevieve Webb  Appointed from 27/05/04 to 26/05/05
Ms Elizabeth White  Appointed from 27/05/04
Mr Glenn von Bibra  Appointed from 27/05/05

Institute Council
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Council committees

Audit Committee

The following independent Council members served 
on the Audit Committee during 2005: Glenn von 
Bibra (Chair), Philip Belcher, Elizabeth White, and John 
Rasa. 

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to 
monitor and report to the Council on matters of 
accountability and internal control affecting the 
financial management of the Institute, and to 
provide oversight of the Institute’s financial reporting, 
accounting, auditing, and risk management 
processes, ensuring that these processes are carried 
out in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act (1994) and other relevant laws.

Council Executive Committee

John Rasa (Chair), John Maddock, Genevieve Webb, 
Elizabeth White, Glenn von Bibra.

The Council Executive Committee acts on behalf 
of Council as a reference point on urgent matters 
that may arise between Council meetings.  It also 
monitors the performance of the Chief Executive 
Officer in relation to contractual matters and 
delegations and considers issues relating to 
appointments to Council.

Council Finance Committee

Glenn von Bibra and Bruce Thompson

The Committee provided advice to the Council and 
Council Audit Committee on matters involving the 
Institute’s financial reporting processes ensuring 
that these processes were carried out in accordance 
with the Financial Management Act (1994) and other 
relevant laws. This Committee was disbanded and 
its duties were assumed by the Audit Committee on 
27/10/05.

Council Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee

John Rasa (Chair), Genevieve Webb, Elizabeth White, 
John Maddock, Glenn von Bibra 

The Council Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee provides advice to the Council on 
matters involving Executive Remuneration.  The 
Committee ensures that Executive Remuneration 
practices are carried out in line with the Public Sector 
Management Act, the Government’s policy on 
Executive Remuneration for Government Business 
Enterprises and Statutory Authorities, Ministerial 
Directions and instructions from the Government 
Sector Executive Remuneration Panel (GSERP). 

Council biographies

Assoc. Professor John Rasa is Director of The 
Edge Management Consulting in Melbourne. John 
has had extensive experience in the health services 
industry and has held CEO positions including Box 
Hill Hospital, and three NSW Area Health Services. He 
served as Professor of Health Services Management at 
Charles Sturt University for three years and currently 
serves on a range of Health Services Committees and 
is on the State Council of the Victorian Branch of the 
Australian College of Health Service Executives. John 
holds a Bachelor of Arts (Clinical Psych), a Diploma in 
Industrial Law & Industrial Relations, Masters Degree 
in Health Planning, Member of the Australian Institute 
of Company Directors and Fellow of ACHSE, AIM and 
AHRI.

Ms Genevieve Webb is an Executive at the City 
of Melbourne.  She has extensive experience 
in management consulting and information 
technology, having worked across the public, private 
and community sectors both within Australia and 
overseas. Genevieve serves on the Audit Committee 
of a State Government office and on the Board of 
a transitional housing organisation. She holds a 
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Psychology and a Bachelor 
of Applied Science in Computing, and is a Fellow of 
the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Ms Elizabeth White is the Manager of RMIT 
Workforce Solutions, the corporate training body 
of RMIT University, which provides training and 
assessment services for business and government 
corporations. She has previously held corporate 
positions within the real estate sector and also has a 
background in education administration. Elizabeth 
holds teaching qualifications, a Bachelor of Arts and a 
Masters in Education

Mr John Maddock has been CEO of Box Hill Institute 
since 1999.  Prior to this, John was CEO of Gordon 
Institute and during his career has held a variety of 
management roles in the TAFE sector.  Before starting 
his career in education, John was employed by Arthur 
Andersen & Co. working in the business consultancy 
area. John is also a Board member of Deakin 
University Council, is the Deputy Chair of the Victorian 
Tertiary Admissions Centre and serves on a number 
of key state and national Boards and Committees, 
with a particular focus on education, Information 
Technology, and business skills. John has tertiary 
qualifications in Education and Business (Accounting).
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Mr Philip Belcher is a Senior Consultant with 
Acumen International, a strategic management 
consulting company. Philip has held various managing 
director and board positions as the culmination of his 
extensive career in general management and sales 
leadership within the Information Technology and 
Telecommunications sector. Philip holds an MBA, tertiary 
qualifications in Technology (Electronics) and is a Fellow 
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Ms Pheobe Garside was the elected student member 
to Council up to March 2005. Pheobe has been very 
involved in student activities at the Institute over the 
last three years, and has a keen interest in assisting 
people to attain their personal goals. Pheobe has tertiary 
qualifications in Sport and Recreation (Business), Fitness 
Instruction and Personal Training.

Mr Andrés Restrepo is a Colombian international 
student, and the elected student member to the 
Council from April 2005. Prior to coming to Australia, he 
worked with the Procter and Gamble Company and the 
United Nations University for Peace. His focus nowadays 
is in the beverage industry. Andrés was awarded a 
scholarship to undertake a two year Advanced Diploma 
of Business (Marketing) at the Box Hill Institute. Andres 
has tertiary qualifications in Business Administration and 
International Commerce.

Mr Fergus Hudson is a long-standing teacher at Box 
Hill Institute and is the elected staff Council member. 
Fergus has had significant industrial experience in 
various countries and holds teaching qualifications and 
an Arts Degree (Hons). He is also a Council member of 
the AEU Vic Branch.  

Ms Christine Kilmartin is employed by the Victorian 
Department of Sustainability and Environment as a 
researcher, working on the integration of sustainability 
into policy and action. She worked previously at the 
Australian Institute of Family Studies, providing research 
on trends for federal policy. She also contributes to 
initiatives to maintain viable communities. Christine 
holds a degree in Social Studies.

Mr Bruce Thompson is a Director and the CEO of 
Keycorp Limited, a global provider of secure electronic 
transaction solutions. Bruce has extensive experience in 
the Information Technology Industry and in corporate 
governance. Bruce serves on a number of boards 
and industry associations, has a Degree in Economics 
and is a Fellow of the Society for Chartered Practising 
Accountants, and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors (FAICD).

Mr Glenn von Bibra is the Director of V.I.P. Personnel Pty Ltd, 
one of Victoria’s foremost hospitality recruitment companies 
and a hospitality consultancy business “Bibra Consulting”. 
Glenn has had an extensive and distinguished career in 
the hospitality industry, and catering and food retailing in 
particular, both within Australia and overseas. Glenn serves on 
a wide range of industry associations and has qualifications in 
Human Resource Consulting as well as Cookery.

Mr Chris Lobb is Company Secretary of The Gandel Group 
of Companies, a private sector organisation focussing 
on property management and development. Chris has 
a background in finance, corporate governance and 
corporate administration.  Chris holds a Bachelor of Business 
(Accounting) and is a member of various professional and 
community bodies. 

Noelene Duff is the CEO of the City of Whitehorse and has 
had extensive experience at a senior management level in 
State and Local Government and the non-government sector. 
She has a very strong commitment to community issues and 
community policy and strong and extensive connections 
with networks in the local community, the Box Hill area, 
and the south-eastern suburbs of Melbourne.  Noelene has 
significant experience and a strong interest in governance, 
and strong financial skills. Noelene is currently the President 
of Local Government Managers Australia and in this role has 
played a key role at State and National levels in advocating 
key issues on behalf of the local government sector. She holds 
a Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Social Work, Graduate Diploma 

Business and Masters of Business degrees.

Additional Information

Council training
Several Council members attended the OTTE Governance 
Workshop “Understanding and Applying Governance in the 
Public Sector”.
All Council members receive the bi-monthly Australian 
Institute of Company Directors (AICD) Boardroom Reports and 
the AICD Direct Radio Broadcasts.•
Additional training sessions undertaken by Councillors 
were “Governance Protocols” with Henry Bosch, and 
“Risk Management, Audit and Fraud Control, Shared 
Responsibilities” with Lynn Glover, General Manager, Portfolio 
Improvement and Assurance Division, DET.
Christopher Lobb undertook training in OH&S reforms, 

sustainability and risk management.

Meeting attendance
The Council held 10 meetings in 2005. Member attendance 
was as follows:
John Rasa  10
Christine Kilmartin  10
Pheobe Garside 1
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Elizabeth White  9
Fergus Hudson  9
Bruce Thompson  7
Genevieve Webb  7
Glenn von Bibra  8
Philip Belcher  6
John Maddock  9
Andres Restrepo  5
Noelene Duff  2
Christopher Lobb  3

Functions and values of Council

The function of the Council is to establish the 
Institute’s strategic direction, to oversee and ensure 
the effective and efficient management of the 
Institute, to approve management plans, and to 
ensure that the community is serviced effectively 
with technical and further education programs 
which are responsive to its needs. The Council is 
committed to the adoption of ethical conduct in all 
areas of its responsibilities and authority. In so doing 
it binds its members to the principles and practices 
as determined in the Council’s Governance Protocol.

Responsible person

The Honourable Lynne Kosky

Minister for Education and Training

Directors of Box Hill Enterprises Ltd

The names and relevant details of the Directors in 
office at the date of this report are:

John Maddock, (Managing Director) 

Philip Belcher

Fergus Hudson

Christine Kilmartin

John Rasa

Bruce Thompson

Glenn Von Bibra

Genevieve Webb

Elizabeth White

Establishment

Box Hill College of Technical and Further Education 
(TAFE) was established by an Order in Council dated 
25 January 1984, under the Victorian Post-Secondary 
Education Act 1978, following an amalgamation with 
the Whitehorse College of TAFE.

The Governor in Council approved orders changing 
the name of Box Hill College of TAFE to Box Hill 
Institute of TAFE on 12 September 1995.

The functions, powers and duties of the Institute are 
set out in the Vocational Education and Training Act 
1990 and the Constitution of the Council of the Box 
Hill Institute of TAFE.

The relevant Minister for Education and Training is:
The Honourable Lynne Kosky MP

Management

Chief Executive Officer
John Maddock

Deputy CEO
Darrell Cain

General Managers

Commercial                                                        John Italiano

Government and Chinese Affairs          Jill Baird

Industry and International Students  Jim Irwin

International and Enterprises                 Noel Lyons

Organisation Development                     Delia McIver

Chief Financial Officer                                 Joanne James

Teaching and Directorate                          Kerri Ferguson 

Teaching and Innovation                          Rob McAllister

Teaching and Students                               Angela Hoare-  
                                                                       Lippman

Learning and Academic Affairs              Joanne James

Campus Services                                             Anne Jones

Information Systems                                    John Liew

Institute committees

•     VET Board of Studies

•     Higher Education Board of Studies

•     Teacher Practice and Development
•     Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) 

Consultative Committees
•     Finance and Budget Committee
•     Occupational Health and Safety Committee

•     Risk Management Steering Committee

Advisory teams

•     Commercial Advisory Committee
•     Institute Development Advisory Committee
•     Marketing Advisory Committee
•     Apprenticeship Marketing Working Party
•     Global Education Network Working Party
•     Information and Communication Technology 

Working Party
•     International Extended Campus Unit Working Party
•     Overseas Marketers’ Working Party
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Ashwood College 
Avila College
Berwick Secondary College 
Brentwood Secondary College 
Box Hill Senior Secondary College
Carey Grammar School 
Caulfield Grammar School 
Carwatha College 
Catholic Ladies College
Distance Education Centre Victoria 
Donvale Christian College 
East Doncaster Secondary College 
Echuca District Vocational Education 
Eltham College of Education 
Eltham High School
Emerald Secondary College
Emmaus College
Fairhills High School
Fintona Girls School 
Ferntree Gully College 
Forest Hill College
Hawthorn Secondary College
Highvale Secondary College
Ivanhoe Girls Grammar School 
Ivanhoe Grammar School
Killester College
Koonung Secondary College
Lilydale Heights Secondary College 
Lilydale High School 
Loreto Mandeville Hall 
Luther College 
Maroondah Secondary College
Marcellin College
Mazenod College
Melbourne Rudolf Steiner School 

Secondary Schools extended campuses

International campuses
•     China – Shanghai College of Electrical and Machine Technology 
•     Fiji – New Zealand Pacific Training Centre (11 campuses) 
•     Malaysia – Selangor Human Resource Development Centre 
•     Saudi Arabia – Multinational School 
•     Sri Lanka – OpenArc International Scholar Institute 
•     Vietnam – Hanoi Open University
•     Vietnam – KOTO (Hanoi) 
•     Shanghai Dianji University
•     Shanghai Pharmaceutical College
•     Wuxi City College of Vocational Education
•     Guangzhou University College of Textile and Garments
•     Zeijiang Institute of Mechanical and Electrical Engineering
•     Guandong Vocational and Technical College of Chemical Engineering and Pharmaceutics.

Campus locations

Ceylon Campus
30-32 Ceylon Street
Nunawading 3130

Phone (03) 9286 9122
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Elgar Campus
465 Elgar Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Nelson Campus
853 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Whitehorse Campus
1000 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Methodist Ladies College
Mill Park Secondary College 
Monash Secondary College
Mooroolbark College
Mt. Lilydale Mercy College
Mt. Waverley Secondary College
Nagle College 
Norwood Secondary College 
Our Lady of Mercy College
Our Lady Of Sion
Parkdale Secondary College 
Pembroke Secondary College 
Presbyterian Ladies College
Ringwood Secondary College
Rowville Secondary College
Ruyton Girls School 
Sacre Coeur
Salesian College 
Sandringham College 
Siena College
St. Joseph’s College
St Monica’s College 
Star of the Sea College
Strathcona Girls Grammar School
Templestowe College
Upwey High School 
Victorian College for the Deaf 
Viewbank College 
Wantirna College 
Warrandyte High School
Wheelers Hill Secondary College 
Whitefriars College 
Yea High School 
Yeshivah College 

http://www.bhtafe.edu.au
http://www.bhtafe.edu.au
http://www.bhtafe.edu.au
http://www.bhtafe.edu.au
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 November 2004
 Teaching staff                                                  Full-time           Part-time            Total                  EFT
 Ongoing                                        Female                     78                           74                       152                   127.50
                                                         Male                       163                           19                       182                   175.40
 Fixed term                                     Female                       6                           19                         25                     17.60
                                                         Male                         12                           10                         22                     19.30
 Sessional                                       Female                                                   153                       153                     29.80
                                                         Male                                                       166                       166                     39.10
Total Teachers                                                                 259                          441                       700                   408.70

 Non teaching staff                                        Full-time           Part-time            Total                  EFT
 Executive Officers                        Female                        4                             1                           5                      4.90
                                                         Male                             7                                                           7                      7.00
 Management                               Female                      15                                                         15                    15.00
                                                         Male                           19                             1                         20                    19.60
 PACCT Ongoing                           Female                    113                           52                      165                  144.40
                                                         Male                           48                             5                         53                    51.10
 PACCT Fixed Term                        Female                      32                           16                         48                    41.30
                                                         Male                             9                             4                         13                    10.80
 PACCT Casual                               Female                                                        7                           7                      2.50
                                                         Male                                                                                                                            
 Other Staff Ongoing                   Female                        2                             2                           4                      3.00
                                                         Male                           35                             4                         39                    37.10
 Other Staff                                    Female                                                      34                         34                      3.30
- fixed term and casual                Male                             1                           21                         22                      1.80
 SUB TOTAL - all staff                    Female                    250                         358                      608                  389.30
                                                         Male                         294                         230                      524                  363.00
TOTAL Staff                                                                       544                          588                    1132                  752.30

Summary of number of persons employed

 November 2005
 Teaching staff Full-time          Part-time Total EFT
 On-Going Female                     77                           71 148 122.80
 On-Going Male                       155                           22 177 169.70
 Fixed Term Female                        6                           20 26 18.00
 Fixed Term Male                         19                              5 24 22.40
 Sessional Female                        0                         168 168 36.90
 Sessional Male                            0                         187 187 49.80
 SUB-TOTAL - teaching Female                     83                         259 342 177.70
 SUB-TOTAL - teaching Male                       174                         214 388 241.90
                                  257                          473 730 419.60

 Non teaching staff Full-time         Part-time Total EFT

 Executive Officers Female                        5 0 5 5.00
 Male                            8 0 8 8.00
 Management Female                     14 0 14 14.00
 Male                         21 1 22 21.60
 PACCT Ongoing Female                   118 56 174 149.30
 Male                         52 3 55 54.00
 PACCT Fixed Term Female                     32 19 51 42.00
 Male                            9 4 13 10.00
 PACCT Casual Female                        0 12 12 5.10
 Male                            0 0 0 0.00
 Other Staff Ongoing Female                        2 2 4 3.00
 Male                         34 4 38 36.10
 Other Staff
- fixed term Female                        0 0 0 0.00 
 Male                            0 1 1 0.60
- casual Female                        0 21 21 3.60
 Male                            0 19 19 6.10
 SUB TOTAL - non-teaching Female                   171 110 281 222.00
 Male                       125 32 157 136.40
 SUB TOTAL - all staff Female                   254 369 623 399.70
 Male                       299 246 545 378.30
TOTAL Staff                                  553 615 1168 778.00
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The Institute’s student management system (SMART) recorded 35,721 Vocational Education (VET) enrolments 
and 89 Higher Education enrolments in 2005, a total of 35,810 enrolments compared to 37,150 in 2004, and 
32,865 in 2003. Total VET enrolments at Box Hill Institute over the past 10 years are shown in Chart 1.

Chart 1: Box Hill Institute – 10-Year Comparison of Total VET Enrolments

Enrolments under State Government funding accounted for 47.3% of total enrolments compared with 46.1% 
in 2004, 47.2% in 2003 and 50.4% in 2002.

State Government general profile funding, in non-apprenticeship/traineeship areas, had total enrolments of 
12,661, a decrease of 3.2% on 2004 and were distributed as follows:

•   3,241 full-time (an increase of 8.6% on 2004)

•   8,085 part-time (a decrease of 7.6% on 2004)

•   1,335 off campus (a decrease of 0.9% on 2004).

Apprenticeship/traineeship enrolments in 2005 were 4,185, an increase of 3.0% on 2004.  In total State 
Government funded enrolments were 16,862, a decrease of 1.8% on 2004. In addition, there were 188 Youth 
Pathways Program enrolments compared with 137 in 2004.

The remaining 18,760 enrolments (a decrease of 5.5%) came from short courses, fee for service courses, VET 
in Schools, international students, and degrees. These non-recurrent enrolments included 2,070 full-time and 
16,690 part-time enrolments.

In addition, there were 89 enrolments in degrees, including 73 local enrolments, and 16 international 
enrolments.
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Chart 2: Comparison of 2003, 2004 and 2005 Proportional Distribution of Enrolments by Program Type

VET student contact hours generated in 2005 were 7.32m compared to 7.38m in 2004 (a decrease of 0.8%). In addition, the 
degree program generated 47,401 Student Contact Hour (SCH).

Total VET student contact hours at Box Hill Institute over the past 10 years are compared in Chart 3.

Chart 3: Box Hill Institute – 10 Year Comparison of Total Student Contact Hours
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The student contact hours generated from State Government funding were 4.58m in 2005, an 0.6% increase on 
2004.

Recurrent student contact hours amounted to 61.5% of student contact hours in the Institute in 2005 
compared to 61.8% in 2004. Recurrent student contact hours generated comprised:

•   2,206,206 full-time government general profile, (an 8.0% increase on 2004)

•   1,173,943 part-time government general profile (a decrease of 11.1%)

•   1,105,888 apprentice/trainee hours (a decrease of 0.1%)

•   156,861 for off-campus student contact hours (an increase of 11.2%)

The remaining 2,675,983 SCH were generated through non-recurrent funding. In addition, the degrees 
program generated 47,541 SCH, amounting to a total of 2,723,524 SCH (a decrease of 3.5%)

Chart 4: Comparison of 2003, 2004 and 2005 Proportional Distribution of  Student Contact Hours By 
Program Type

The Institute participated in the TAFE Student Outcomes Survey 2005 (based on students who completed in 
2004), which was managed by the National Centre for Vocational Education Research. 

Box Hill Institute graduates exceeded the State and National average in almost all the key survey areas, with 
93% of Box Hill graduates working or in further studies after 27 May 2005, compared to the national average 
of 88% prior to commencement of a course. Of these graduates, 18% were employed in their first full-time 
position.

The following table (Table 1) outlines the major findings, specific to Box Hill Institute from this survey.
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Table 1: Selected Institute results from the 2005 Student Outcomes Survey (NCVER)

As at 27 May 2005: Box Hill Institute Victafe Austafe

- Graduates who were employed 87% 82% 79%

- Graduates who were unemployed 7% 8% 10%

- Graduates who were not in the labour force 6% 9% 11%

Graduates not employed before commencing their TAFE course who 
found work by 27 May 2005 

16% 12% 13%

Graduates who gave main reason for doing the course as ‘to get a job or 
own business’ who were employed at 27 May 2005

80% 79% 77%

School leavers (graduates starting course within 12 months of leaving 
school) who were employed at 27 May 2005 

85% NA NA

Graduates who were employed in their first full time job 18% 18% 17%

Graduates who were employed or in further study after their training as at 
27 May 2005 

93% 90% 88%

Key initiatives included:

To deliver at least 100% of contracted student contact hours within the apprenticeship and traineeship (L) and non-

apprenticeship and traineeship (P) profiles as well as specially identified training program priorities…

The Institute achieved its Student Contact Hour (SCH) delivery requirements under the 2005 Performance Agreement with 
the Office of Training and Tertiary Education (OTTE).

Under the Performance Agreement the Institute was required to deliver a minimum of 4,418,691 SCH, and achieved actual 
delivery of 4,642,898 SCH, which represents 105.1% of target.

The contribution of individual Teaching Centres to the achievement of the Institute’s Performance Agreement targets 
is demonstrated in Chart 1, which depicts the percentage of the Institute’s 2005 Government Student Contact Hours 
delivered by each Teaching Centre.



ww 23

Chart 1: Percentage of 2005 Government Profile Delivery by Centre

To plan and implement the customer satisfaction studies program, report key findings to customers and 
staff and implement improvements to address key issues arising from the studies…

The Institute is required to plan, implement and report on a customer satisfaction studies program, as part of 
its Performance Agreement with OTTE.

In 2005, the Institute undertook the Staff Satisfaction Survey. For the first time, the survey was conducted 
online. Both management and sessional staff recorded increased response rates.

Of the respondents, 78% were “likely” or “very likely” to recommend Box Hill Institute as a place to work, a 3% 
increase on 2003. The greatest areas of satisfaction for staff were “working with people” and “interacting with 
students”, as well as “job role, “sense of achievement” and “autonomy and flexibility”.

To expend funds in accordance with grant specifications, ministerial guidelines and service standards…

The Institute spent Financial Advances provided under its Performance Agreement with OTTE in accordance 
with grant specifications, ministerial guidelines and service standards. These advances included funds 
for disability support, curriculum maintenance management, apprenticeship and traineeship subsidies, 
indigenous programs, building maintenance and professional development.  All obligations under the 
Performance Agreement were met.

To ensure that the Institute complies with all significant statutory obligations deriving from the VET Act 
and an ongoing process is in place to review compliance… and to ensure that the Institute follows best 
practice corporate governance processes…

During 2005 the Institute continued to emphasise matters of Corporate Governance and compliance with 
legislation and dedicated resources were applied to support the Institute and Institute Council in meeting 
and applying best practice principles to its governance operations.  2005 was a significant year both in terms 
of review of Institute Policy and Council operations.  Council also developed and adopted a comprehensive 
Governance Protocol in 2005, which is a valuable tool in assisting councillors to understand their role and to 
discharge their duties effectively. 
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To ensure the Institute meets the requirements of the Australian Quality Training Framework…

Box Hill Institute is required under its Performance Agreement with OTTE to implement the National Training Framework, 
which includes Training Packages and the Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF). Adherence to the National 
Training Framework enables consistency, quality and national recognition of the Institute’s teaching and assessment 
services. 

The Institute complied with all of the requirements of the AQTF in 2005.

To ensure the Institute meets the requirements of the Whistleblowers Protection Act...

The Institute’s current policy and procedures relating to the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 are laid out on the website.

There were no disclosures in 2005.



 





Commercial
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To maintain current partnerships and develop 
further strategic partnerships with industry…

Strong relationships with companies such as Cisco, 
NHP, DELL, Sidchrome, Aveda, Panduit, Bakers 
Delight, Unigraphics and many others continued 
to contribute to our activities in government and 
commercial fields. Various Centres negotiated a 
range of sponsorship and training arrangements 
with companies designed to ensure we have access 
to the latest technology across various fields.

Since 2001 when Box Hill Institute was commissioned 
by Cisco Systems to become one of three Super 
Cisco Academy Training Centres in the world, the 
partnership has returned immeasurable benefits 
to the Institute. During 2005 a major relationship 
developed with Microsoft via their education 
manager in Victoria. This led to major support of our 
ICT centres through a range of sponsorships to assist 
us with projects to make efficiency improvements in 
our ICT infrastructure as well as support for applied 
research and development being undertaken in the 
Centre for Computer Technology.

The Institute achieved sustainable growth in a 
competitive market by linking with key industry 
partners to provide mutual benefits. Such a successful 
partnership exists with American Cisco Systems 
where the Institute managed a program for 
98,000 students or 20% of global training delivery 
undertaken by Cisco Systems.

Commercial development
During 2005 the Institute performed very well in 
its commercial operations. However there were 
many challenges, both in the local market and the 
international market.  

International activities 
International extended campus activities continued 
to grow strongly, particularly in China. A new model 
was introduced to support the sustainability of some 
of our current operations and it was found to be 
successful. Management and overall operation was 
markedly improved.

Our international campus activity was focused 
around a number of Centres, namely the Centre for 
Computer Technology, Automotive, Transport & 
Engineering, Business and also strong activities in 
Vietnam from the Centre of Information Sciences 
with library studies programs being delivered. This 
coincided with our targeted areas and confirmed our 
strategy as appropriate to our clients.

International inbound student activities continued 
to be a major source of revenue for the Institute in 
the commercial area. This year the growth across 

the sector slowed to some extent. Box Hill Institute 
responded to market needs and introduced a 
number of new programs that led to the targets for 
our inbound students being exceeded. 

Australian domestic activities
A number of key Centres continued to form the 
backbone of our domestic commercial activities. In 
addition, the short course offerings continued to 
enjoy varying successes. Major effort was put into 
restructuring the short course offerings in 2005 with 
the launch in September of an online enrolment and 
payment system providing a very successful new 
marketing and customer-service tool. 

The Industry Sales Manager focused efforts in the 
SME and manufacturing industries and as a result 
there was greater activity in whole of enterprise type 
activities. 

A key component of the Institute’s commercial 
activity in the local market place was the very strong 
performance of full fee paying programs.  The Centres 
involved in this area were Performing Arts; Hair, 
Beauty and Floristry; and Computer Technology.

Other key performers in the local market were the 
Centre for Computer Technology with its computer 
networking programs and high-level ICT delivery, 
and the Centre for Industry Education and Training 
with work across a range of Government areas 
(including the New Apprenticeship Centre- NAC) 
as well as in quarrying and manufacturing. The NAC 
continued to perform well and was rewarded with 
more placements by the Department of Employment 
& Workplace Relations (DEWR) being contracted.

The Centre for Automotive, Transport & Engineering 
performed very strongly in the commercial 
market place and partnered with the Centre for 
Management & Small Business to provide a whole of 
enterprise solution in the automotive manufacturing 
industry in addition to its major contract with DEWR 
for the New Enterprise Incentive Scheme.





Government and Chinese Affairs
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Department of Employment & Workplace 
Relations (DEWR)

Since 1998 Box Hill Institute has led the Greater 
Melbourne Employment and Training Services 
(GRAMETS) consortium. GRAMETS delivers the New 
Enterprise Incentive Scheme (NEIS) through its 
Business Enterprise Centres (BECs). Over the 2003-
2006 contract the Institute fulfilled an additional 169 
places, almost a 10% increase on original targets.  

Office of Training & Tertiary Education (OTTE)

The Institute used OTTE funding to continue the Skill 
Up Program that facilitates re-training for employees 
who are facing redundancy. The Centre for Industry 
& Education Training delivered this program. The 
Centre for Management & Small Business continued 
to manage the Centre of Specialisation for Small to 
Medium Enterprises (SME). The Centre implemented 
management training in the Eastern and Western 
Region learning hubs. 

National Centre for Vocational Education 
Research (NCVER)

Funding was granted by the NCVER for projects to 
ensure Quality in Australian Offshore Vocational 
Education and Training. These projects will develop 
and promote good practice in delivering high 
quality offshore education, training services and 
continuous improvements, and encourage sharing 
of information and experiences among Registered 
Training Organisations. A contract was signed 
between the Institute and NCVER in November 
2005 to deliver an extensive Master Teacher “Train 
the Trainer” program to qualified individuals at each 
partner site. 

Other Government agencies

During 2005 Box Hill Institute delivered many 
other government programs including frontline 
management for the Department of Human Services, 
business programs for the City of Whitehorse, and 
leadership development for the Department of 
Defence Corporate. New contracts included split 
system course resources for Cooloola Sunshine 
Institute of TAFE, a cabling course for Victoria Police, 
public transport safety Victoria Learning Pathways 
for the Department of Infrastructure, teaching 
and innovation for Gordon Institute of TAFE, and 
a library bookshop system for TAFE Tasmania. 
The Centre for Biotechnology & Animal Sciences 
secured a significant contract with Manufacturing 
Skills Australia to develop support materials for the 
Laboratory Training Package.   

Health & Community Services Industry
Work continued in 2005 to promote our professional 
development programs to the industry. Two more 
marriage celebrants’ courses were run, while Le Pine 
agreed to assist us in our funeral courses and to co-
brand advertising. A childcare course commenced in 
Fiji and materials were translated for courses in China. 
The Institute won contracts to provide leadership 
development programs for managers at Epworth 
Eastern Hospital, which was officially opened in July, 
and for onsite delivery of Certificate IV to nursing 
educators at Maroondah Hospital.

International Business Development 
and Management
The Business Development Centre successfully 
tendered to the Singapore Workforce Development 
Agency (WDA) for a community and social services 
national training framework project. The Project 
involves benchmarking against international 
standards, development of competency standards, 
curriculum and assessment guides for the 
Community and Social Services industry. Labour 
market programs targeting parents returning to work, 
long term unemployed people and people with 
disabilities continued in 2005.  

International Extended Campus Unit 
(IECU) 
The International Extended Campus Unit (IECU) was 
established in 2003 to meet increasing demands 
from new activities in our extended campuses in 
China, Vietnam, Fiji, Sri Lanka, Saudi Arabia and India.  
Major achievements in 2005 included developing 
and implementing tracking systems for financial 
and quality monitoring of extended campuses. The 
IECU team issued a pilot of manuals and standard 
operating guidelines for China, and is currently 
producing manuals for Vietnam and Fiji. The 
introduction of online administrative systems was 
piloted successfully.  

Business activity continued to gain strength in 
China during 2005. Our alliance with Shanghai Dian 
Ji University (SDJU), previously known as Shanghai 
College of Electricity & Machinery, continued 
successfully with several new groups beginning.  
Teachers were trained in Australia and China 
to deliver programs including business studies, 
engineering, automotive and transport distribution.  
Following our success with Shanghai Pharmaceutical 
School’s program, the Institute signed a further 
three-year contract to develop a new certificate 
and resources for the Diploma of Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturing. 
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Staff of the Institute catered breakfast for 100 guests 
of the Royal Children’s Hospital annual expo in 
the children’s garden at the hospital in March, and 
created a dinner and auction in Fountains restaurant 
in October that raised $23,000 for the hospital’s WIGS 
for KIDZ cause.

Staff and students of the Institute put in many hours 
of hard work on raising funds for many needy causes, 
including:
•   Tsunami relief dinner and auction for Sri Lanka
•   Very Special Kids art auction
•   Variety Club Bash
•   Reach out for Kids dinner
•   Indian child labour dinner
•   KOTO, Vietnam street kids training program.
•   Special Olympics.

To expand and strengthen existing international 
student opportunities…

In the face of strong global and local competition, 
and the higher export cost of a strong Australian 
dollar, the Institute’s International Student Office 
had yet another record year, with 1189 international 
student enrolments from more than 60 countries.  A 
detailed support program and pastoral care ensures 
proper integration of students into the Institute. 
This included a three-day Welcoming Festival 
for new students in February and July. Another 
nine orientation programs were conducted for 
English language programs during the year.  While 
international students enrolled in a wide range of 
programs across the Institute, particular highlights in 
2005 included enrolments in:
•   the first degree programs in Applied Music and 

Computer Systems (Networking)
•   the first diploma programs in cookery and 

patisserie.

general m
anager reports
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Offshore extended campuses 
In 2005, approximately 1070 students studied in 
extended campuses in China, Fiji, Sri Lanka, Chile, 
PNG and Vietnam.  

Teaching staff worked offshore for some ten weeks 
delivering programs in these countries. This included 
teacher training and ensuring quality assessments 
were conducted to ensure compliance with 
Australian standards.

The year saw the signing of the continuation of a 
five-year training cooperation agreement with Hanoi 
Open University (HOU), Vietnam. 

In China, the Institute signed extended campus 
arrangements with six major Institutes:

-     Shanghai Dianji University

-     Shanghai Pharmaceutical College

-     Wuxi City College of Vocational Education

-     Guangzhou University College of Textile and 
Garments

-     Zeijiang Institute of Mechanical and Electrical 
Engineering

-     Guandong Vocational and Technical College of 
Chemical Engineering and Pharmaceutics

ELICOS and English as a Second Language program 
maintained numbers at approximately 485 full-time 
students.  The Centre for English Language Studies 
conducted two study tours from China in 2005.  In 
addition, the Centre hosted some English teachers 
from China who observed classes in order to learn 
about our ESL teaching strategies and methodology. 

Study tours and delegations
In 2005 the Institute hosted 33 delegations from all 
over the world. These visits provided information to 
visitors from other VET systems and help to promote 
the Institute for future projects and offshore activities.

International marketing 
International marketing strategies increasingly sought 
to leverage off opportunities from other Australian 
and global corporate organisations who are investing 
in our target markets. The industry sectors include: 
hospitality and tourism, health and community services, 
petrochemical, oil and gas, mining, manufacturing, 
construction and information technology.

For in-bound students marketing efforts focussed 
on our traditional and strongest markets, new and 
emerging markets and rejuvenating older markets 
that showed positive signs of re-emerging. The 
International Student Office recruitment team 

attended 55 international education exhibitions at 
both international and local Melbourne venues. 

Promotional activities also included heavy emphasis 
on the launch of the Institute’s Bachelor and 
Associate Degree programs. 

Quality assurance and risk management

Quality initiatives included:

•   communities of practice which created 
opportunities for staff to exchange ideas and 
work towards improving professional teaching 
and learning practices

•   highly integrated strategic planning process and 
practice which were ongoing and inclusive

•   effective online internal communication systems

•   an emphasis on relationship marketing, proper 
resourcing and project planning

•   the use of comprehensive monitoring and 
evaluation processes to track client satisfaction

•   centralised project specification, planning, costing 
and pricing models

•   off shore campuses managed through a 
specialised International Extended Campus Unit.

Financial performance - international
The Institute continued to build on its existing 
international markets and segments and was 
rewarded in 2005 with double-digit growth in 
revenue. Growth occurred across all platform areas 
including ELICOS, which is a strong result when 
measured against market trends. 

Overall revenue growth of 22% in on-shore 
international students was delivered on the back of 
a ten percent growth in student enrolments. Off-
shore projects and extended campuses increased 
by some 17% and continued to deliver value with 
a corresponding increased presence in community 
development and commercial sector markets in 
targeted countries and industry segments.  
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•   Team performance is now being managed using 
annual operational plans to ensure expectations 
arising from Institute strategic and management 
plans and the organisation development strategic 
plan are achieved.

Communication

•   Regular meetings/workshops were conducted 
with Teaching Centre Managers.

•   A Community of Practice for Senior Educators 
and Frontline Managers was facilitated by the 
Organisation Learning Manager.

Reward and recognition

•   Responsibility for the Staff Achievements 
Recognition Program (SARP) was assumed and 
enhancements made.

Policies and procedures

•   Box Hill Institute is a public entity as defined in 
Section 5 of the Public Administration Act 2004 
(the Act). The Institute complies with the public 
sector values listed in Section 7 of the Act and 
the public sector employment principles listed 
in section 8 of the Act. In particular Box Hill 
Institute’s employment policies and processes 
are based on merit, employees are treated fairly, 
are provided with equal opportunity and have 
a reasonable avenue of redress against unfair 
or unreasonable treatment. The Institute’s Code 
of Conduct guides all staff about expected 
behaviour and professional conduct and is 
consistent with the Code of Conduct for the 
Victorian Public Sector.

•   A priority review of all Organisation Development 
Policies and Procedures was a major focus in 
2005. 

•   Organisation Development was also responsible 
for coordinating the consultation process 
with Unions on a range of non-Organisation 
Development policies and procedures.

•   Police checks were implemented for new staff.

•   Funding was secured for police checks to 
commence for existing staff in 2006.

People development

•   The Office of Training & Tertiary Education 
allocation for staff development funds was 
distributed on a Centre-by-Centre basis. The 
majority of staff development undertaken 
under this allocation related to improving 
or maintaining industry-specific current 
competence, development focused on teaching 

and assessment, and building capability for 
delivery to specific client groups (eg 15-19 year 
old cohort).

•   Staff development funds were also allocated from 
the Institute’s internal reserves. The majority of 
these funds were allocated as follows: 

- a teacher-training program for staff 
incorporating the Diploma of VET and the 
Graduate Certificate in VET

- the Monash University Masters of Education 
(Work and Learning) for 20 staff

- a very successful and intensive internship 
program for 20 staff covering online teaching 
and learning techniques. Staff attended for 
two days per week for one term.

•   A significant number of staff attended state-wide 
programs and workshops conducted by the new 
TAFE Development Centre.

•   A number of staff played key roles in the design 
and delivery of state-wide TAFE Development 
Centre programs. 

•   Box Hill Institute was also successful in obtaining 
grants from the TAFE Development Centre for a 
TAFE Leadership program, a TAFE Teaching and 
Learning Excellence project and funding for a 
Biotechnology Workforce development project 
under the TAFE Industry Skills Scheme.

•   A pilot Leadership in Action program for Frontline 
Managers was developed and is currently being 
implemented.

•   Online induction modules on workplace 
behaviour, occupational health and safety, 
privacy, and whistleblowers were developed for 
implementation in 2006.

Enterprise bargaining/employee relations

•   Three Certified Agreements covering the Institute’s 
PACCT Staff, the Maintenance Employees and the 
Cleaning Staff were negotiated.

•   Organisation Development staff were involved 
in a number of Centre organisational reviews 
including the implementation of revised 
structures and resource arrangements.

•   Regular meetings of consultative committees for 
teaching and PACCT staff continued and provided 
a forum to discuss issues arising from the 
enterprise agreements and employment issues 
generally.

•   Significant progress was made in the 
implementation of the Multi Employer Certified 
Agreement (MECA) for teachers including:

- accountability and leave planning 
mechanisms for teachers 
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- centrally agreed guidelines for teacher 
qualifications.

•   Enhanced support was provided to Centre Managers 
through the client adviser model.

•    Six and a half days were lost through industrial 

disputes.

Workplace support

•   There was a significant reduction in the backlog of 
long-term individual cases as a result of initiatives 
such as the appointment of a Workplace Support 
Manager but these cases are still consuming 
significant time and effort.

•   A workplace support model was developed and is 
being implemented.

•   A workplace support database was developed and is 
in use.

•   A workplace support policy and procedure was 
developed and is nearing the end of the consultation 
and approval process.

•   A training package was developed for workplace 
support training.

People and performance management

•   Auditing was completed for compliance with 
implementation of 2005 PACCT work plans and 
individual development plans.

•   The effectiveness of these plans was evaluated.

•   An initial draft for performance management of 
teachers was researched and prepared.

•   A performance planning review and development 
policy and procedure was drafted and is in 
consultation.

•   The probation process was reviewed.

•   Implementation of 2006 PACCT work plans and 
individual development plans was begun.

Business process improvement

•   A major upgrade to the Institute’s Human Resource 
Information System (known as Alesco) was completed.

•   Major enhancements were made to SEIK (the online 
Self-Service Employee Information Kiosk) including an 
improved online pay slip, and the Team Leader module. 
Work commenced on introducing online timesheets 
during 2006.

•   The superannuation “choice of fund” provisions were 
implemented.

•   Contracts of employment for General Managers/Executive 
Directors, Centre Managers and staff were reviewed, 
updated and implemented.

•   An audit was conducted of organisation development 
compliance requirements for AQTF and action is being 
taken to remedy the gaps.

•   Significant progress was made on a number of projects 
including budget reporting in Alesco and enhanced 
management reporting via Oracle Discoverer.

Records management

•   A records management framework was developed 
and has begun to be implemented for Organisation 
Development records.

•   Organisation Development archive records are being re-
established.

WorkCover

•   The case management model was extended to the 
management of WorkCover cases.

•   The Institute’s WorkCover activity was monitored and a 
result better than the industry premium rate was achieved.

- The WorkCover Authority advised that for the financial 
year 2004/05 the Institute’s overall performance rating 
was better than the industry sector (technical & further 
education industry) by 17.65%. 

- This performance effort translated into a lower 
premium rate, 8.78% less than the previous year’s rate. 
(This represents almost $40,000 less premium).

•   The total number of days lost through incidents in Work 
Cover claims in 2005 was 296.

•   Further OHS/WorkCover training was provided to 
managers.
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Recruitment activity

•   There were 159 positions advertised to the end 
of December, including 72 PACCT positions, 76 
teaching positions (including 19 expressions 
of interest for sessional teachers), six Centre 
Manager positions (including three Acting Centre 
Manager positions), an Executive Manager – 
Commercial Finance position, an Acting Executive 
Director – Learning and Academic Affairs 
position, Acting Centre Manager – Industry, 
Eduction & Training and two other non-teaching 
positions.

•   The following Centre Manager/Executive 
Manager appointments were made or 

commenced in 2005:

- Acting Executive Director - Learning and 
Academic Affairs  - Jennifer Oliver

- Executive Manager - Commercial Finance 
- Philip Wilkins

- Centre Manager – Facilities – Philip Dixon

- Centre Manager – Hair, Beauty and Floristry 
- 
Diane Golledge

- Centre Manager - Hospitality and Tourism 
Studies - Anthony Bailey

- Centre Manager – IT Services – Chris Tayler

- Centre Manager – Occupational Health and 
Safety – Greg Rogerson

- Centre Manager - Open Learning Services 
- Steve Holland

- Council Executive Officer – Sue Castleman

- Acting Centre Manager - Computer 
Technology - Henry Wiebell and 
Stephen Besford

- Acting Centre Manager – Industry, Eduction 
& Training – Jane Sims





Chief Financial Officer
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Summary of significant changes in financial position during the year
At 31 December 2005, current assets of $22.531 million represented a decrease of 17.2% on total current 
assets recorded at 31 December 2004. The decrease from 2004 was attributable to the requirement for the 
Institute to record the carrying value of its campus held for sale as a current asset despite its sale proceeds not 
expected to be realised until 2006. Whilst this treatment is compliant with the new Australian equivalent of 
International Financial Reporting Standards, it has had the effect of overstating the current asset position for 
2004 when compared with 2005.

Non current assets, largely comprising property plant and equipment, have increased by 20.4% due to a 
revaluation of the Institute’s land and buildings at 31 December 2005.  A corresponding amount is reflected in 
the increase in the Asset Revaluation Reserve.

Current liabilities for 2005 have remained at similar levels as 2004 whilst non-current liabilities have increased 
by 5.4%. Non current liabilities, comprising employee provisions for annual leave and long service leave, 
have increased as a result of salary adjustments arising during the year from the flow on effect of the 2005 
component increases for EBA adjustments.

The net effect of the above changes is a reduction in the consolidated entity’s working capital from 2.77:1 to a 
ratio of 2.02:1 as at 31 December 2005.  

Given the Institute’s heavy reliance on commercial surpluses to fund the Institute’s strategic initiatives, support 
its fixed overheads and fund its annual asset replacement program this level of working capital is considered 
prudent in order for the Institute to adequately manage its financial management risks.

Five year consolidated financial summary

Year ended 31 December
2005
$’000 
A-IFRS

2004
$’000 
A-IFRS

2003
$’000 

A-GAAP

2002
$’000

A-GAAP

2001
$’000

A-GAAP

Summary of financial performance 
Government contributions –operating 
Government contributions – specific projects
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenue 

Depreciation
Other operating expenditure
Total operating expenditure     

Operating result for the Year

Operating result before government 
contributions for specific projects & depreciation.

Summary of financial position
Current assets 
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities  

Net assets

Equity:
Accumulated Surplus
Reserves
Contributed Capital

Total equity

Net cashflow from operating activities 
(excluding government contributions for 
specific purposes)

Working capital ratio

51,154
2,180

28,548
81,882

5,276
74,565

79,841

2,041

5,137

22,531
156,090
178,621

11,126
10,495

157,000

17,553
112,323

27,124

157,000

5,665

2.02

46,835
6,698

27,248
80,781

4,040
71,122

75,162

5,619

2,961

31,225
129,587
160,812

11,275
9,952

139,585

18,212
94,249
27,124

139,585

6,149

2.77

46,123
9,747

26,148
82,018

4,390
67,567

71,957

10,061

4,704

26,200
114,834
141,034

10,218
8,938

121,878

10,756
83,998
27,124

121,878

7,749

2.56

44,310
3,717

25,524
73,551

4,719
67,102

71,821

1,730

2,732

19,043
102,114
121,157

8,923
6,855

105,379

1,536
78,229
25,614

105,379

1,226

2.13

44,881
1,302

25,398
71,581

4,764
63,877

68,641

2,940

6,402

18,825
85,478

104,303

11,968
5,884

86,451

23,552
62,899

-

86,451

7,591

1.57
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The summarised financial information presented for the years 2001 to 2003, is based on financial information that was 
prepared in accordance with Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (A-GAAP) applying for the relevant year.

The 2004 and 2005 summarised financial information is based on financial information that has been prepared in 
accordance with the Australian equivalent of the International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS).

Compulsory student services and amenities fee
The Institute levies a compulsory student services and amenities fee that is determined in accordance with the Ministerial 
Directions on Students Fees and Charges.

Statement Details

Total student services and amenities fees 
collected for year ending 31 December 2005 $627,613

Purpose for which the services and amenities 
fees are applied

The services and amenities fee is managed by the 
Institute’s Student Services and Support Centre.  

The fee is fully applied to the provision of funding for 
student recreation, counselling and welfare and other 
non-academic support services.

Name of organisation of students to which the 
services and amenities fees are paid (if any)

The services and amenities fees are fully managed by the 
Institute and are not paid to any student organisations.

Consultancies
Details of consultancies engaged during 2005 are as follows:

Consultancies over $100,000

Consultants
Number of 

engagements
Total fees 

paid
Particulars of projects involved

Estimated future 
commitments 

CNA Australia 
Pty Ltd

1 $335,617

Support, Development 
and Maintenance of Data 
Warehouse, EIS Cognos Cubes & 
Oracle RDBMS for the Statewide 
MIS Project.

-

Solidity Pty Ltd 1 $703,586

Support, development and 
maintenance of QL-S student 
system for the statewide MIS 
Project

-

Datacom 1 $114,774

Support, development and 
maintenance of QL-S student 
system for the statewide MIS 
Project

-

Consultancies under  $100,000

Number of Engagements 29

Total Fees Incurred $483,663

These engagements relate to various consultants primarily engaged for the provision of architectural, quantity surveyor 
and design services related to the Institute’s building works program and various IT related consultancies.
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International Financial Reporting 
Standards (A-IFRS)
For reporting periods beginning on or after the 
1 January 2005, all Australian reporting entities 
were required to adopt the financial reporting 
requirements of the Australian equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (A-
IFRS). The Institute completed all implementation 
requirements during 2005. The 2005 Financial 
Statements are prepared in accordance with all 
applicable A-IFRS requirements.

Risk management
As part of its annual Risk Management program, the 
Institute revised its Risk Management Policy and 
five-year Risk Management Plan, taking into account 
the revised Australian Risk Management Standard 
AS/NZS 4360:2004 and guidelines contained in 
the Auditor General Victoria, Good Practise Guide, 
Managing Risk Across the Public Sector, 2004. 

The Institute’s Risk Management Steering Committee 
has the responsibility of ensuring that all key risk 
activities as approved by Council and the Chief 
Executive Officer are implemented, reviewed and 
monitored on a timely basis and in accordance with 
the Institute’s Risk Management Policy and Plan.  

The Institute achieved an improved result in relation 
to the Victorian Management Insurance Authority’s 
risk management performance assessment tool 
(RIMPAT) with a rating for 2005 of 85.75 compared 
to 76.28 for 2004. The Institute utilises this tool to 
assist with its assessment of performance in relation 
to risk management and to ensure that best practice 
guidelines are considered, and implemented as 
appropriate, in relation to its risk management 
practices.

Statements of Pecuniary Interests
The Institute has in place policies and procedures 
that require relevant officers to complete Statements 
of Pecuniary Interests on an annual basis.  All such 
statements have been duly completed.  

Information about declarations of pecuniary interests 
by all relevant officers should be directed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer
Box Hill Institute of TAFE
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

Details of shares held by senior officers 
Information about details of shares held by senior 
officers, as nominee or held beneficially in a statutory 
authority or subsidiary, if any, should be directed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer
Box Hill Institute of TAFE
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

National Competition Policy
The Institute has in place policies and procedures to 
ensure compliance with the National Competition 
Policy which take into account Victorian 
Government’s “Competitive Neutrality: A Statement 
of Victorian Policy” requirements.  

Other relevant information
Consistent with the requirements of the Financial 
Management Act 1994, Box Hill Institute has 
prepared material on the following items, details of 
which are available on request and in accordance 
with the Institute’s Freedom of Information Policies:

•    changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies

•    major external reviews

•    major research and development activities

•    overseas visits undertaken

•    publications

•    occupational health and safety assessments and 
measures

•    industrial relations issues 

•    major committees sponsored by Box Hill Institute.

Enquires should be addressed to

 The Freedom of Information Officer
 Box Hill Institute
 465 Elgar Road,
 Box Hill 3128 
 Telephone: (03) 9286 9222
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The pilot proceeded alongside the Victorian 
Curriculum and Assessment Authorities (VCAA) 
Generic and Employability skills project. 

The project sought to trial and pilot a ‘global assessment’ 
process on the Victorian Assessment Software System 
(VASS). The Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning 
(VCAL) teachers from the Centre for Vocational 
Access & Education (VAE) participated in the pilot. 

The pilot was based on a ‘student centred’ approach with 
the expectation that students at Box Hill Institute 
would continually update their employability skills 
in the programs they undertake. The information 
contained in a student’s employability skills passport 
can be supplemented and complemented by 
students who utilise the Institute’s “Resume builder” 
tool, which was also developed in 2005.  

Learning options for youth
VCAL continued to be successfully delivered at the 
Institute after a successful orientation camp held in 
the first week of classes. 

Box Hill Institute is one of the largest providers of 
Senior VCAL in the State with 115 VCAL students 
enrolled, of whom 52 studied at the senior level. Our 
retention rate of approximately 85% is much higher 
than the state average. 

Secondary school relations
VET in Schools (VETiS) and Growth and Pathways 
(GAP) programs are important conduits from 
secondary schooling to vocational training and/or 
employment. In 2005, the Institute had contractual 
arrangements in place with 106 secondary schools. 

As well as the annual Careers Advisers seminar held 
in April, the CEO hosted a boardroom lunch with a 
group of secondary school principals to continue to 
nurture our secondary school relationships.

The Institute continued VCAL projects in electronics 
with Box Hill Senior Secondary College.

The Institute continued involvement at the Committee 
of Management level with the Gateway Local 
Learning and Employment Network. A major focus 
included the Willing and Able Mentoring (WAM) 
program in secondary schools, the Parents as Career 
Transition Support (PACTS) pilot program conducted 
at Ashwood Secondary College, the implementation 
of School Based New Apprenticeships in the 
Gateway region and an initial industry and education 
forum conducted as a breakfast. 

The Institute supported the successful proposal 
to develop an Australian Technical College for the 
Eastern Region.  

Client satisfaction
The ‘What’s Happening’ feedback system continued 
to work effectively across the Institute with feedback 
being recorded either in writing on postcards, email 
or by letter. The Management Team compiled a 
quarterly report on student feedback.

In respose to the 2004 bi-annual student satisfaction 
survey, an improvement plan was implemented in 
identified Centres. A particular focus was to market 
the Student Support Centre to all students.

Design strategy and implementation of 
Manufacturing Training Plan
As part of the Institute Design and Innovation 
strategy there were a number of initiatives developed 
during the year including the introduction of the 
Certificate II in Applied Design in Industry. Another 
initiative was the “Business Success by Design”, 
where Box Hill Institute students worked with small 
businesses associated with the Box Hill Business 
Group. International engineering students completed 
short practical placements as part of their dual 
qualification in a local design firm.  

“Learning by Design” activities included the annual 
Teaching & Learning Symposium: “Designing 
a Sustainable Future, and the “Innovations in 
Sustainable Design.” 

The Institute was contracted by the Victorian 
Qualifications Authority to host a training 
adviser position to assist Vocational Education 
Training providers and the schools sector in the 
implementation of the Applied Design in Industry 
Framework around the state. 

The Institute continued to focus on development 
in the area of metals and engineering. The 
primary focus of growth was the development 
of convergent training between engineering and 
electrotechnology, along with the implementation 
of the Advanced Diploma of Engineering Technology 
centred on fluid power, CAD and automation.

As part of the Advanced Technologies Training 
Capability Alliance (ATTCA) group of TAFE Institutes, 
the Institute participated in three pilot projects 
trialling the Competitive Manufacturing Training 
Packages in Industry. Our industry clients included 
Paccar, Kenworth Trucks and McDonald Johnson and 
other clients in their supply chain. 





Learning and Academic Affairs
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The Institute made ongoing improvements to its 
library resources as well as to systems for academic 
oversight of degrees. Staffing capability were further 
developed through formal and informal professional 
development and through the recruitment of new 
staff where appropriate. 

The Higher Education Community of Practice 
continued to support staff responsible for teaching 
and coordinating the degree courses. Monash 
University provided a facilitator to assist with 
developing the group. 

Board of Studies
The Higher Education Board of Studies provided:

•   high level of oversight for all higher education 
programs 

•   oversight for the appointment of higher 
education course leaders

•   oversight of higher education program course 
reviews and endorsement of accreditation

•   associated applications for submission to the 
Office of Higher Education.

The VET Board of Studies met seven times in 
2005. It continued to support programs such as the 
Teaching and Learning Symposium, internal and 
external research, and a raft of teaching and learning 
policies, practices and processes. 

Deakin University and Box Hill Institute 
Memorandum of Understanding
The signing of the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Deakin University and Box Hill Institute on 6 
June developed and strengthened cooperative links 
between the parties. The key outcomes of the MOU 
are:

•   establishing the Deakin University:Box Hill 
Institute Coordinating Committee

•   working towards the development, delivery, 
oversight and marketing of educational pathways 
and programs to local and international students

• developing award packages combining Deakin 
degrees and Box Hill Institute Vocational 
Education and Training programs where 
appropriate

•   developing articulation pathways from Box Hill 
Institute associate degrees and degrees into 
Deakin bachelor and masters degrees

•   promoting Box Hill Institute:Deakin University 
pathways to international students

•   the participation of Deakin in the academic 
oversight of the Box Hill Institute degree programs.

The Deakin University: Box Hill Institute Coordination 
Committee met twice since the MOU was signed and 
identified nine potential areas for cooperation. Each 
area has a sub-committee, containing members from 
both organisations, which developed an action plan to 
support the implementation of the project over 2006.

Teacher education and professional practice
Box Hill Institute offered a complete teacher 
education and assessor certification pathway from 
initial to postgraduate teacher education.

In 2005 fifteen Box Hill Institute staff completed 
the Graduate Certificate in Vocational Education & 
Training. Sixty two staff completed their Certificate IV 
in Assessment & Workplace Training and 24 enrolled 
in the Diploma of Vocational Education & Training.

The Box Hill Institute and Monash University 
partnership delivered two Masters programs: Master 
of Education (Work and Learning) and Master in 
Organisational Leadership. 

At the end of 2005 over 60 Institute teaching and 
non-teaching staff were enrolled in post-graduate 
degrees including Masters programs in ICT and Music 
as well as the Monash courses. 

Global Education Network (GEN) activities
Box Hill Institute, Southern Alberta Institute of 
Technology Polytechnic (SAIT) in Calgary, Canada and 
Kirkwood Community College (KCC), Iowa, USA met 
in Calgary to attend the GEN Planning Conference in 
July 2005.

During 2005 Box Hill Institute, SAIT and KCC hosted 
a variety of activities with staff and students 
participating in courses and tours across the three 
Institutes.
In addition four students from KCC spent ten weeks 
participating in an internship at Box Hill Institute 
which allowed the students to complete a work 
placement at our Convention Centre and several 
high profile Melbourne restaurants.

Student induction and exchange manuals were 
developed and revised in 2005.

The course in International Studies developed in 
2004 was accredited and trialled during Semester 2, 
2005 with five Box Hill Institute hospitality students 
participating in a semester exchange with SAIT.





Campus Services
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Occupational health and safety

The Institute introduced formal safety plans at 
Centre level in 2005, in addition to an Institute-wide 
improvement plan. Centre safety plans are based 
on a format designed by a specialist engaged by 
the Institute, to prepare an approach that suits the 
specific needs of the organisation. Auditing of the 
plan was carried out to identify additional resource 
needs, on which the following year’s improvement 
plan was based.  

This multi-layered approach to formalising safety 
management was particularly effective in those areas 
where there are highly specialised operations, with 
the expert users having greater opportunity for input 
to the solutions devised. Concurrently, the corporate 
overview reduces duplication, with common areas 
of interest being served by greater concentration of 
effort.

The introduction of the Occupational Health and 
Safety Act 2004, commencing progressively from 
July 2005, was communicated to key Institute staff 
by information sessions, meetings and employee 
inductions. Many students also took advantage of 
information session during safety week. While the 
cost implications of the new Act are significant, 
much of its intent has been a feature of Institute 
safety plans for a number of years. 

The 2005 improvement plan was implemented 
during the year with activities aimed at enhancing 
the way in which occupational health and safety is 
managed across the Institute.

Specific training programs were conducted with 
a focus on health and safety representative and 
refresher training, height safety, first aid, induction, 
security training, hazard identification, risk 
assessment and risk control, chemical management, 
plant risk assessment and emergency response.

The Occupational Health and Safety executive 
and sub committee meetings were held regularly 
throughout the year. The sub committee organised a 
very successful safety week which saw a number of 
diverse workshops and information sessions. Around 
400 participants (staff and students) attended the 
various activities. These included themes such 
as dealing with difficult customers, people and 
situations, ‘Laughter, Sex, Vegetables and Fish’, 
Beyond Blue – depression, safe car servicing for the 
non-mechanic and OH&S information sessions. An 
OH&S committee meeting was conducted during 
health and safety week that was attended by 

WorkSafe inspectors.

Security

A security risk assessment was delivered in January 
2005. This resulted in a threat level assessment 
of “low” being identified across campuses. Some 
additional surveillance devices were installed in 2005 
to improve the level of deterrence and detection. 
Personal security training for staff was a priority in 

2005 and will continue in 2006.

Environment

A review of the Institute environmental policy was 
conducted following the release of the Government’s 
Environmental Sustainability Framework. For the first 
time the policy provided specific targets to be met 
in terms of environmental management, with an 
improvement plan to be delivered in 2006.





Information Systems
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Virtuoso
The General Manager, Information Systems has lead 
responsibility for the following initiatives using the 
Virtuoso LCMS (Learning Content Management 
System):

•   developing the Institute’s teaching and training 
materials

•   designing and planning for the hosting of such 
developed content for online, global delivery 
through a data centre/ASP hosting model

•   adopting a single access point into the Institute’s 
operating environment, network resources and 
business systems through common sign-on

•   adding to existing strategic partnerships to 
establish an APAC regional data centre ring

•   continuing to promote the benefits of online 
content management and delivery and 
supporting teaching centres to develop such 
teaching and training materials

•   exploring organisational and business/
commercial opportunities that promote the 
adoption and use of the LCMS in governments, 
other not-for-profit and private enterprises

•   helping and providing support to teaching 
centres to develop assessments as part of their 
certification programs

•   ensuring all ongoing initiatives continue to be 
aligned with the Institute’s ICT Strategic Plan 
2004-2007.

The Virtuoso LCMS was introduced into the Institute 
in mid-2004 with the two-pronged aim of internal 
use and potential (subject to a business case) 
commercial development of the product for the 
Asia-Pacific market. An internal team comprising the 
Information Technology and Online Services areas 
was provided training by the owners of the product, 
the Cisco Learning Institute (CLI). CLI is a not-for-
profit organisation established by Cisco Systems Inc. 
to administer and manage the Cisco Networking 
Academy program. A series of open seminars and 
presentations was held following the training 
session, with healthy turnouts at these events.

Concurrently, Virtuoso was also promoted externally 
in Malaysia, Tasmania and to the Office of Training 
and Tertiary Education. The year closed with a 
Memorandum of Understanding signed between the 
Institute and MNS Sdn Bhd (Malaysia) to jointly work 
on content development and sharing of resources, 
knowledge and information.

MIS Project
The Victorian TAFE Institutes MIS Project is a highly 
successful, multi-disciplined ICT project managed by 
the Institute on the behalf of the Office of Training 
and Tertiary Education (OTTE), since 2001.

Box Hill Institute maintains a project office in the 
Melbourne CBD that houses the project team and 
includes all facilities and infrastructure for a fully 
functional office environment. The Institute has 
achieved a 100% successful delivery rate to date.

Under its mandate, the MIS Project supports, 
maintains, enhances and develops new 
functionalities to the QL-S student management 
system (SMS) and associated products. The project 
team and the Institute’s support framework (such 
as Finance, Corporate Services, Human Resources 
and IT) provided the services to the consortium of 
11 Victorian TAFE Institutes and the Institute of TAFE, 
Tasmania.

Services included help desk, product support 
and maintenance, programming, systems 
analysis, business analysis, technical analysis, data 
warehousing, training in student management 
system, project management, financial 
administration, payroll, ICT support, tender 
administration, audit, office administration and 
government support.
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Centre for Automotive, 
Transport and Engineering
The Centre for Automotive, Transport and 
Engineering offers a diverse range of programs 
across the industry areas of automotive service, 
transport and distribution, as well as a wide range of 
engineering disciplines. 

The Centre for Automotive Transport and 
Engineering had a successful year with excellent 
results across the Centre. 

The Centre piloted, with the Centre for Media, Arts 
and Design, a new Certificate II in Extreme Design 
project where students study in both Centres to 
integrate the functional and artistic aspects of design 
training. The features of this pilot were the cross-
Centre collaboration and the project of restoring a 
car that can be used in the Variety Bash.

The implementation of training in Automotive Air-
Conditioning progressed well and should continue 
with strong growth into 2006. Industry training was 
a highlight in 2005 with a number of projects in 
competitive manufacturing and automotive.

Training was enhanced by the acquisition of new 
equipment across the Centre. In 2005 the Centre 
purchased a new 4th axis CNC machine centre, new 
mills and new welders in engineering. In automotive 
new test equipment for diagnostics was purchased.

Our short course delivery increased with LPG, 
automotive air-conditioning, welding and first aid 
being in high demand. International students and 
international projects also increased with China and 
PNG still being our major countries.

Transport, warehousing and logistics continued to 
grow with a greater allocation of our student contact 
hours in 2005. 

The Centre was active in the implementation of 
many of the recommendations of the Manufacturing 
Training Plan. This included:

•   developing a network of industries in the eastern 
suburbs 

•   trialling competencies from the Competitive 
Manufacturing Training Package in Industry 

•   working with Gainsborough, MacDonald Johnson 
Engineering, Paccar - Kenworth, Confoil and 
Assemco on manufacturing projects. 

•   improving the Centre’s capability through 
acquisition of new equipment in the engineering 
delivery areas 

•   participation in the Advanced Technologies 
Training Capability Alliance –  a group of 
seven TAFE institutes developing initiatives in 
manufacturing 

•   attendance at Manufacturing and Engineering 
Skills Advisory Body workshops

•   implementation of new Diplomas and Advanced 
Diplomas in Mechanical Engineering 

•   developing staff through training in 
manufacturing technologies.

Curriculum development
The demand for higher-level training at Diploma 
and Advanced Diploma level increased across all 
areas of the Centre and the implementation of new 
or reviewed training packages increased with huge 
demand for new course development.

Professional development
Staff were involved in further study for Certificate IV in 
Work place training or Teaching Diplomas, Graduate 
Certificates and Masters Programs.

Projects and partnerships
This year saw the consolidation of projects in China 
and PNG with further development taking place for 
projects to come on line in 2006. 

Special events and initiatives
Students from the Centre participated in the GEN 
program, spending some time at SAIT in Canada. 
Staff also attended SAIT and Kirkwood Community 
College in the USA to look at programs and resources 
that we may be able to share in collaborative projects 
in the future.

Awards

Victorian Apprentice of the Year (winner)
Australian Apprentice of the Year (finalist)

Amber Sarda (Automotive)

The Automotive area won an award from Automotive 
Training Australia for their innovative air-conditioning 
program.

Several students won individual awards at our awards 
evening held in Fountain’s Restaurant in May.

teaching centre reports
Teaching Centre Reports
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Centre for Biotechnology 
and Animal Sciences
The Centre for Biotechnology and Animal Sciences 
delivers a range of training programs from Bachelor 
Degree to Certificate II level across the areas of 
biotechnology, laboratory operations, process 
manufacturing, animal science, zoo keeping, horse 
studies and veterinary nursing. 

The Victorian Government funded several projects 
through the Biotechnology Specialist Centre, BioSkills. 
A Project Manager and Project Officer were appointed 
to lead the network of five metropolitan TAFEs in these 
projects. 

The Hon Lynne Kosky, Minister for Education and 
Training, launched the Specialist Centre BioSkills in 
August.

The Institute was successful in obtaining Government 
funding for capital equipment to support our delivery 
capability in the expanding global biotechnology industry. 

The Centre offered two further courses to the 
biotechnology sector: Commercialisation KickStart and 
Government Funding for the Biotechnology Industry. 

The Centre enjoyed a successful year in 2005 with 
growth in the area of commercial business development 
and maintained a key focus in the area of biotechnology. 

Curriculum development
Delivery of the Bachelor of Biotechnology & Innovation 
is scheduled for Term 1, 2006. The Office of Higher 
Education accredited the Associate Degree in 
Biotechnology, a two-year program, with delivery 
timelines aligned to the Bachelor degree. 

The Centre successfully tendered to develop resources for 
the reviewed Laboratory Operations Training Package.

Professional development
Staff from the Centre attended the Ausbiotech 2005 
Conference in Perth, the Australian Biotechnology 
Summit in Sydney and BIO2005 in Philadelphia. 

Two members of the Applied Science team attended 
the TAFE Science Network Conference in Newcastle, 
and two staff attended the Australian and New Zealand 
Council for Care of Animals in Research and Training 
(ANZCCART).

One staff member from the Animal Technology team 
participated in the internship program to develop an 

online resource, Assist with General Animal Care.

Several staff undertook units in the Certificate IV in Workplace 
Assessment & Training and the Diploma in Vocational Education 
& Training. One staff member participated in the Graduate 
Certificate in Vocational Education & Training and two 
successfully completed subjects in the Monash Masters Program. 

Projects and partnerships

The partnership established with the Department of Primary 
Industries at the Institute for Horticultural Development 
(IHD) at Knoxfield proved highly successful with students 
participating in a two day per week practical placement. 

Monash Animal Services, Monash Institute for Reproduction and 
Development and the Peter MacCallum Institute continued their 
involvement with our Animal Technology students.

Special events and initiatives
Building on links created at BIO2004 and BIO2005 with Salt 
Lake Community College, the Centre developed a partnership 
to introduce ‘InnovaBio’, a student-run enterprise to undertake 
industry contract work as a way of preparing students for 
future employment opportunities.

The Centre engaged in its first student and staff exchange 
program with Salt Lake Community College.

Dr Anthony Coulepis was appointed as Strategic Industry 
Advisor to the Institute with a specific focus on strengthening 
the Centre’s industry partnerships.

For the second year, BioSkills participated in the BioMelbourne 
Network Showcase evening.

BioSkills hosted “Adults Doing Biotech” in collaboration with 
the CSIRO as part of National Science Week.

Awards
Lyn Lupton Memorial Award,
Sponsor: The Tolley Family
Certificate III in Outdoor Recreation (Equestrian)
Sandra Vitolins

Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)
Rebecca Paton

Novartis Prize for Excellence in 
General Veterinary Nursing
Candice Drew

Pfizer Prize for Surgical Nursing
Jane Morrey

Merial Prize for Critical Care & Emergency
Megan Hasthorpe

IAMS Prize for Dental Nursing
Tolmie Smith



ww 57

Centre for Building and 
Furniture Studies
The Centre for Building and Furniture Studies is a 
large and diverse Centre delivering training in the 
following areas:

•   diploma level training in building design and 
technology, and building

•   apprenticeship training in building construction, 
general construction, furnishings, cabinet making, 
picture framing, plumbing and mechanical 
services and off-site construction – shopfitting 
– joinery – stairbuilding

•   pre-apprenticeship and school based vocational 
training aligned to the Victorian Certificate 
of Applied Learning (VCAL) and Vocational 
Education and Training in Schools (VETIS)

•   programs designed for secondary school 
students such as Growth and Pathways (GAP)

•   a number of industry-related short courses

•   general interest courses on a fee for service basis.

Curriculum development
The Plumbing and Mechanical Services staff 
continued their preparation of resources for the 
new training packages Certificate III Plumbing and 
Services. 

Twenty-five participants representing sixteen 
Institutes attended a three-day workshop that 
took place at Halls Gap to develop training and 
assessment materials.

The Albury Conference also concentrated on training 
package delivery strategies in gas installations in 
Marine Craft and mobile homes, scaffolding and 
elevated work platforms, and installation of the split 
air-conditioning systems.

Professional Development
Plumbing and Mechanical Services staff participated 
in a statewide in-service at Albury. Furnishings staff 
participated in a national training conference held in 
Melbourne in conjunction with Furnitex.
Building Construction and Diploma area staff 
participated in the National Construction 
conferences in Adelaide and Melbourne.

Some staff members were involved in the Institute’s 
internships for development of online learning 
materials. 

Projects and partnerships
The Carpentry, Cabinet Making and Off-Site Units 
continued to provide on-site assessment to their 
industries as well as off-the-job training and on-site 
assessment for students employed in the Housing 
Industry Group Scheme.

The Centre is managing the construction of a house 
for local homeless youth. Apprentices and pre-
apprentices are using their training to give something 
meaningful back to less fortunate young people.

Special events and initiatives
The student exchange arrangement between Box 
Hill Institute and Horsens Polytechnic, Denmark, 
continued to allow Box Hill Institute students the 
unique opportunity to travel to Denmark to study for 
a semester.

Three apprentices from the Building area were 
successful in gaining an Institute scholarship to travel 
to our Global Education Network partner SAIT in 
Canada. These students spent three weeks learning 
and working alongside Canadian apprentices.

Awards

HIA Apprentice of the Year (National)
Sam Booth

HIA Apprentice of the Year
Jay Abbott

Best 2nd Year Apprentice
Adam Bonnici

Best 3rd Year Apprentice
Alistair Morris 

HIA Community Service Award
Jason Allott

HIA Encouragement Award
William To 

Judges Encouragement Award
Phillip Miatke 

Rheem Australia Award for Plumbing
Robert Ihile 

Master Plumbers Rose Curtis Award
Peter Southon

Furniture Industries Pre-apprentice Award 
Chris Ansell
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Centre for Business 
Programs
The Centre for Business Programs delivers vocational 
training and education in the fields of business, finance, 
government and sport and fitness. 

In 2005 the Centre moved from the Whitehorse Campus 
to Building 8, Elgar Campus with its new facilities, 
new office space and the opportunity to increase the 
utilisation of technology in our teaching practices.

In 2005, our extended campuses grew from three to six, 
with several more being negotiated by the international 
commercial team. 

The Centre also implemented a new leadership team, 
which will move the Centre into the future.

Curriculum development
The Centre’s vocational course teams continued to 
evolve our programs to better meet the needs of the 
dynamic business environment. As a result of the new 
Financial Services Training Package, programs were 
developed in accountiing, international business, public 
relations, sports management, marketing, human 
resources and business administration.

The Associate Degree in Commerce was accredited. 
Graduates may either enter industry or move into a 
bachelor program with full credit.

The Centre developed its Graduate Certificate in 
Business Management – Sport as a commercial program 
aimed at managers, aspiring managers and elite athletes 
in the sport and recreation industry.

New short courses were developed in the area of 
personal finance trading and computer software.

Professional development
Centre members participated in a variety of formal 
professional development activities, including:

•   the Institute Master of Education program

•   the Institute Diploma of VET program

•   human resources practices (industrial relations, 
legislation, databases and OH&S)

•   Chinese language (for our extended campuses in 
China)

•   sport marketing seminars

•   marketing seminars

•   business administration network events

•   training and assessment seminars

•   flexible delivery internships.

Succession planning was ensured through the 
implementation of the new leadership team.

Projects and partnerships
Internationally, the Centre delivered courses through our 
extended campuses in China (Shanghai Dian Ji University, 
Wuxi, Guangzhou), Fiji (New Zealand Poly Technic College) 
and Vietnam (Hanoi Open University).

The Centre continued its partnership with Centrelink, this year 
winning the three-year contract to develop Centrelink staff 
across a variety of programs.

We continued to develop Metcash managers across Australia 
through the Diploma of Retail Management program.

Special events and initiatives
The profile of public relations students was raised through a 
number of activities, including a dinner/trivia night that raised 
funds for homeless youth. In addition, situational learning was 
extended through the final year with public relations students 
managing the Bone Marrow Institute’s major fund raising 
activity in Country Victoria – the Baden Cook Back on Track 
Ride.

Awards
The Centre’s graduation ceremony saw the following 

graduates receive prizes:

Pearson Education - Public Relations Award
Karen Philippzig

The Frontier Software Human Resources Award  
Rebecca Millar

The National Institute of Accounting, Accounting Award
Ileana Corbu

McGraw Hill - Marketing Award
(Stacy) Chui Fong Yip

Software Publications Administration Award 
Debra Cannizzaro

The Box Hill Hawks Sport and Recreation Award  
Shannon Barnes

Watsonia Publishing Sport Development Award 
Shelley Veale 
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Centre for Computer 
Technology
The Centre for Computer Technology offers a 
wide range of Information and Communications 
Technology (ICT) training in computer systems and 
electronics. Included in this training is internationally 
recognised industry-accredited, vendor and vendor-
independent training eg Cisco, Microsoft and 
CompTIA. Wherever possible the training for industry 
accreditations has been mapped into the Centre’s 
recurrently funded computer systems programs.

Curriculum development
The Centre put considerable on-going effort into the 
development of curricula, skills training, assessment 
methods and formal recording of competency 
achievement in line with the Australian Qualifications 
Training Framework (AQTF) standards. This included 
working with the Victorian Electrical/Electronics Advisory 
Senate on Office of Training & Tertiary Eduction 
approved upgrades to the model training program in 
light of the extensive delays in the finalisation of the 
Electrotechnology Training package.

Cisco staff developed the curricula and delivery into 
the required Cisco CCNP Version 3 for 2005. This 
included bridging training for existing Cisco Version 
2.0 CCNP-trained local and regional instructors and 
teachers.

The Centre began delivering VoIP training ahead of 
Cisco Academy developments. 

The Centre delivered the Bachelor of Computer 
Systems (Networking) for part-time students, 
many articulating from the Advanced Diploma of 
Computer Systems. 

Professional development
To accommodate the new Bachelor of Computer 
Systems (Networking), a number of staff are studying 
a Masters Degree in Networking via the distance-
education program with Charles Sturt University.

Staff training included retraining and upgrading of 
Cisco CCNP local and regional instructors’ skills base 
in internetworking for the implementation of Cisco 
CCNA Version 3, and the Cisco Academy program 
continual improvement and upgrades to the wireless 
LANs (Local Area Networks), network security, IT 
Essentials (PC hardware and software) and now VoIP.

Projects and partnerships
CCNA and Comptia A+ training to Canon service 
technicians to enhance their on-the-job skills 
in computer hardware and software areas plus 

networking continued with more training in CCNA 
and in ITE II. A number of Canon staff combined this 
training with RPL to almost complete a Certificate IV 
in Computer Systems. 

Practical hands-on training in surface mount soldering 
and re-working was provided for Robert Bosch 
personnel engaged in production line activities.

Box Hill Institute was given the role of Quality 
Assurance Academy for Australia and New Zealand 
(ANZ) and had its role as a Cisco Academy Training 
Centre (CATC) extended to encompass quality 
assurance over other CATCs in Asiapac. 

The Centre continued to provide CompTIA computer 
technician training to Telstra personnel. 

The Centre continued to support the Institute’s 
collaboration with Hanoi Open University, Vietnam, 
(HOU) under the extended campus agreement. 
This relationship included Hanoi students being 
enrolled in the Diplomas of Computer Systems 
and Telecommunications. There are also current 
negotiations with Vietnam National University to 
establish an extended campus in Ho Chi Min City, to 
deliver the Advanced Diploma of Computer Systems.

Negotiations are under way to introduce a franchised 
course in RFID technologies from the USA. This is 
in partnership with iCrystal and MMV. The planned 
roll-out began in December 2005 and will extend to 
Victoria during 2006 then widen to embrace ANZ and 
later Asiapacific.

Also in partnership with iCrystal, research work was 
undertaken to develop a new antenna for RFID 
tagging cyclists. 

Special events and initiatives
The Centre hosted a number of special events and 
initiatives that included graduation ceremonies, a 
study tour of SAIT and industry information sessions 
supported by industry guest speakers: Futures In ICT 
Career opportunities in ICT (funded by MultiMedia 
Victoria).

Awards

Andrew Jackson Memorial Scholarship
Brent Ellis

Continuing Studies Scholarships
Anthony Hope
Phil Schneider
Mary-Anne Dancinger
Stewart Perry
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Centre for Electrical and 
Refrigeration Trades
The Centre for Electrical and Refrigeration Trades 
operates across four major areas of study: electrical, 
refrigeration/air conditioning, security systems and 
telecommunication cabling.

The Centre is the largest combined Electrical and 
Refrigeration training centre in Victoria. 

In 2005 the Centre provided training to approximately 
700 electrical, refrigeration and building services 
apprentices. The Centre remains the only Registered 
Training Organisation in the state of Victoria to offer 
the Certificate III in Electrotechnology Building Services 
(Security Systems) apprenticeship.

Certificate II Telecomunications Cabling, Telecommunications 
Open Cabling registrations courses and the Fundamentals 
of Voice and Data courses were offered to meet the 
training needs of the telecommunications and 
information technology industry.

The Centre provided off-the-job training for trainees 
in business equipment servicing, security systems and 
appliance servicing.

Curriculum development
The Centre was actively involved in the implementation 
of the Certificate III in Electrotecnology (Signal Rail) 
and Certificate IV in Transport & Distribution (Rail 
Infrastructure) courses with apprentices completing 
modules toward both certificates. Rail infrastructure 
employers Mainco (formerly THIESS), United, Pacific 
National and Works Infrastructure employed Box Hill 
Institute as the provider for electrical/electronic signal 
rail training.

Staff implemented the new Panduit Networking 
Infrastructure Essentials course (PNIE) a F.V.D.C Version 2 
upgrade. This innovative training series utilises the Cisco 
online training program currently in use worldwide in 
conjunction with detailed classroom practical sessions 
based on Panduit cabling products.

Demand remained high for industry training in the 
testing and tagging of portable electrical appliances as 
required by the AS/NZS3760 course. Staff conducted 
courses weekly at Box Hill Institute and on-site 
throughout Melbourne (eg. Qantas, The University of 
Melbourne and Bunnings Hardware).

The Centre developed an electrical safety awareness 
course which was delivered on-site to Masterfoods Ltd 
Ballarat and Victorian Police Forensic Services Centre. 

Professional development
Both permanent and casual staff undertook training in the 
Certificate IV in Assessment & Workplace Training and in the 
Institute’s Distributed Learning Support System (DLSS).

Centre staff continued to increase their professional 
qualifications with graduates in the Diploma of Vocational 
Education & Training, the Graduate Certificate in Vocational 
Education & Training and the Certificate IV in Assessment & 
Training.

Teaching staff attended the fourth annual Electrotechnology 
Forum held in Wangaratta. 

Projects and partnerships
The training alliance with NHP Electrical Engineering Products 
Pty Ltd and sponsorship from the Middendorp Electric 
Company and Total Tools Industrial provided the Centre with 
access to leading edge technologies and quality resource 
materials.

Sponsorship was obtained for the Refrigeration section from 
Kirby Refrigeration, Actrol parts, AC Hall Airconditioning and 
Airefrig who generously donated equipment. Forest Hills 
Rotary Club along with NHP generously supported the Centre 
through the provision of scholarships.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre hosted the regional Worldskills competition in 
refrigeration and air conditioning with Box Hill participants 
receiving a gold, silver and bronze awards.

With the donation of cables and accessories from 
Middendorp (Blackburn) and Clipsal, the Centre commenced 
the wiring of the House for Homeless Youth project.   

Awards
Electrical Apprentice of the Year
3rd Year  Jeff Lee
2nd Year  Damien Johnston
1st Year  Leigh Greenhagh

Refrigeration Apprentice of the Year
3rd Year  Stan Fokas
2nd Year  Leigh Carrott
1st Year Alan Masson

Security System Apprentice of the Year
3rd Year  Andrew Carter
2nd Year  Chris Henry
1st Year Stephen Knight

NHP Scholarship
Rod Martin

Forest Hill Rotary Club Scholarship
Laurence Lonie
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Centre for English 
Language Studies
The Centre for English Language Studies had a 
most successful year delivering English as a Second 
Language (ESL) programs to students from non-
English speaking backgrounds.

The beginning of 2005 saw fewer international 
students commencing intensive English language 
classes than in previous years. However, as the year 
progressed, this trend was reversed and by the end 
of December international student numbers were 
exceeding Centre expectations. While Korea, Japan, 
Thailand and Hong Kong performed strongly again 
the Centre also witnessed a continuing and growing 
presence of students from South Asia, South America 
and Europe.

The International Student Office conducted research 
that confirmed that over 40% of all ELICOS students 
continue at Box Hill Institute to undertake some form 
of mainstream study. This closely reflects the number 
of students who come to the Institute on long-term 
student visas. 

The Centre conducted two study tours from China 
in 2005, one for a group of English teachers who 
came to improve their general English language 
and ESL teaching skills, the other for a large group of 
secondary students who came to enjoy some English 
classes as well as take part in a number of excursions 
to places of interest around Melbourne. In addition, 
the Centre hosted a number of English teachers from 
China who observed classes in order to learn about 
our ESL teaching strategies and methodology. 

The migrant English program performed strongly 
in 2005 and the Centre successfully conducted two 
DEST funded programs in addition to its other ESL 
programs. One of the DEST programs had an Aged 
Care focus and the other a Children’s Services focus. 
Both programs ran with the support of our Centre 
for Health & Community Services. Students gained 
valuable work experience during their studies and 
many were offered employment as a direct outcome 
of their work experience.

Professional development
Two staff members attended the 18th English 
Australia Education Conference held in Brisbane in 
September 2005.

A very successful hands-on in-house professional 
development session was conducted in Semester I 
where teachers shared proven classroom activities.

Teachers from the Centre participated in a cross 
provider workshop where assessment tasks and 
moderation for the ESL Framework curriculum were 
discussed. Staff attended courses throughout the 
year to upgrade their computer skills.
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Centre for Hair, Beauty and 
Floristry
The Centre for Hair, Beauty and Floristry delivers a range 
of certificate level courses for hairdressing, beauty and 
floristry, including traineeships and apprenticeships. 
Training programs are also offered for secondary school 
students and for young people at risk of not completing 
their secondary education. In addition, the Centre 
conducts several fee-for-service courses, catering for 
both industry professionals and the community.

Curriculum development 
Floristry staff updated the learning material along with 
the testbank questions and competency checklists on 
the Distributed Learning and Support System in line 
with the new training package.
 
The Hairdressing team updated the DVD learning 
material to assist in the self-paced delivery of the design 
program in the Certificate III in Hairdressing.

The Beauty team increased their learning material by 
50% across all beauty courses in line with the new 
training package. They developed new test back 
questions and checklists for the Distributed Learning 
Support System, along with new student manuals and 
learning guides for use in the classroom and to record 
completed activities.

Professional development 
All staff engaged in professional development in their 
various industries, including four hairdressing staff 
attending Hair Expo in Sydney.

A number of the Centre’s staff graduated from the 
Diploma of Vocational Education & Training. Two Beauty 
staff members are currently undertaking their Masters in 
Education (Workplace Learning). Two hairdressing staff 
members completed their Certificate IV in Hairdressing

Three staff members completed an internship with 
Educational Resource Services developing more online 
resources for the Centre.

Projects and partnerships
The Centre continued to nurture its partnerships with 
Aveda, Interflora, L’Oreal, Thalgo and HydroCo, and 
developed a new partnership with Mancini, which 
enables us to offer our students additional exposure to 
these products and opportunities.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre participated in the Hairdressing and Beauty 
Industry Association (HBIA) competitions and expo held at 
the Royal Exhibition Building. The Centre also held a parade 
at the HBIA annual charity ball for Kid’s Help Line with an 
audience of 500 from the hair and beauty industry. The 
evening was held at the Regent Theatre and raised in the 
vicinity of $20,000 for the charity.

Several hairdressing students participated in an International 
Hairstylists Society parade earlier in the year, a show to 
industry by the students. The parade is also displayed on the 
International Hairstylists Society website.

The Floristry teaching team participated in the Melbourne 
International Flower and Garden Show, involving students in 
the construction and maintenance of a stand. The Certificate 
IV in Floristry students completed their window display at 
the show, which presented their talents and those of their 
teachers to the 500,000 visitors the show attracts each year. 

The Floristry teachers and students coordinated numerous 
functions for the Institute in 2005, exposing students to 
corporate work they may not have the opportunity to 
experience in small floristry businesses. 

In January 2005 the Centre opened a new hairdressing 
training salon within the Institute’s new Building 8. The salon’s 
main focus is on full and part-time training for students 
studying the non-apprenticeship Certificate III in Hairdressing. 
Within the salon the Centre held a very successful fundraising 
Pink Ribbon Day which was also displayed on National Breast 
Council website.

Our Beauty students participated in ‘Shave for a Cure’, where 
they waxed a number of first time waxing volunteers. The 
Growth and Pathways hairdressing students were delighted 
to participate in mannequin head table centres for the Wigz 
for Kidz foundation fundraising function held in Fountain’s 
Restaurant.

Awards 

Floristry Worldskills Competition 
Jacinta Harding (winner in Victoria) 

Worldskills Competition (Hairdressing)
Laura Hilet (second in Victoria)
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Centre for Health and 
Community Services
The Centre for Health and Community Services 
(HCS) offers training programs for those wanting to 
become carers in the fields of nursing, aged care, 
youth work, disability work, patient services and 
children’s services. A program for young people with 
a history of learning difficulties, the Certificate in 
Work Education is also offered. Other courses include 
traineeships and training programs customised for 
industry clients and are delivered on-site.

The Centre continued to increase delivery of the 
Certificate IV in Health (Nursing), including a group of 
full fee paying students.

In February, the Centre developed a specialised course 
and trained two groups of students for the start up of 
the new Eastern Epworth Hospital. In partnership with 
the Centre for Hospitality and Jobs Plus, 40 students 
undertook the specially developed Certificate II 
in Hospital Services Assistants. This new course, 
produced for Epworth patient services assistants, had 
flexibility in training that included skills in hospitality 
and other areas of customer service.

A successful program, Building Bridges, funded by 
the Office of Training & Tertiary Education drew 
students from many secondary colleges in the 
eastern region. The program aimed to introduce 
students with a range of learning difficulties to 
vocational education and training.

Curriculum development
The Centre continued to develop learning resources 
for courses in aged care, disability and children’s 
services. These learning resources were developed 
into online learning through the Institute’s Virtuoso 
platform. Students in the Centre undertook a food 
safety course using this online delivery.

Programs were developed in marriage celebrant and 
funeral services. The marriage celebrant course was 
delivered in line with regulations as outlined by the 
Attorney General’s Department. 

The Centre partnered with Le Pines Funeral Services 
for the funeral celebrant’s course for all celebrants 
who wish to gain expertise in delivery of funeral 
services, with the last day being held at Le Pines 
funeral chapel in Box Hill.

Professional development
Staff from the Centre were involved in a range of 
professional development initiatives including:

§ representation at the Association of Intellectual 
Disability conference

§ training package delivery and development 

§ TAFE Child Care Teachers annual conference.

Projects and partnerships
Partnerships in 2005 included:

•   commencement of a $1m project for the 
Singapore Workplace Development Agency to 
develop a training framework for the Community 
Services Sector in Singapore. This project will 
develop competencies and courses for 12 sectors 
of the Singapore community services. The Centre 
is working in partnership with the Community 
Services and Health Industry Training Board. 

•   a partnership with Deakin University Faculty of 
Nursing will result in the Centre’s Certificate IV 
Health (Nursing) students given accreditation 
into the Bachelor of Nursing by attending a 
summer school to equip them with the skills and 
knowledge to enter the degree program.

•   delivery of the Diploma in Children’s Services to 
two groups of students in Fiji. In partnership with 
the New Zealand Pacific Training College, the 
Centre’s staff will moderate the delivery of the 
course in two locations, Suva and Lautoka

•   delivery of the Certificate IV in Disability Work 
for the Department of Human Services (DHS). 
Training will be initially delivered to 80 DHS 
disability workers in the Eastern Region.

•   a partnership with Manningham City Council, that 
delivered Certificate III in Community Services 
(Aged Care) for personal care assistants 

•   delivery of Disability Work training to Australian 
Homecare Services in metropolitan and regional 
areas of Victoria including Shepparton, Bendigo 
and Traralgon

•   continuation of the partnerships with both SCOPE  
and St John of God Services to provide disability 
training to its carers.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre continued to be a major sponsor in the 
Community Services & Health Industry Training Board’s 
conference and the Institute’s annual awards night.

The Centre also sponsored the Australian Marriage 
Celebrants Conference held in Melbourne at the 
Hilton Hotel in August.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’s Outstanding Student of the Year 
Awards (Vocational Category) 
Erin Rowlands (finalist)
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Centre for Hospitality and 
Tourism Studies
In addition to standard programs in hospitality 
management, tourism, event management, bakery and 
commercial cookery, the Centre for Hospitality & Tourism 
Studies developed and delivered two new courses 
for international students, the Diploma of Hospitality 
Management (Commercial Cookery) and the Diploma 
of Hospitality Management (Patisserie/Baking), plus one 
new course for local students, the Diploma of Hospitality 
Management (Industry). 

In the global arena, the Centre actively pursued 
improvement in the delivery of the Hospitality Diploma 
through our Fiji based franchise New Zealand Pacific 
Training College (NZPTC). The Centre welcomed the first 
Canadian student to complete an Australian semester 
abroad as part of the Global Education Network 
and farewelled five students in August who went to 
Southern Alberta Institute of Technology for their 
Canadian semester abroad. 

The DuocUC project with the Catholic University in 
Santiago, Chile continued to develop and expand. There 
are two hospitality teachers involved in the program 
with four visits to Chile in 2005 and further projects 
planned for 2006.

Curriculum development
Centre staff worked to develop the Bachelor of 
Management (Hospitality). The course has been 
submitted to the Office of Higher Education for 
accreditation. 

Two external consultants provided a number of 
professional development activities around higher 
education learning and curriculum development.

Professional development 
Two staff members participated in internships sponsored 
by Online Services during 2005. Their projects produced 
interactive resources for two units – Coach Others in Job 
Skills, and Lead and Manage People. 

Three teachers developed their second-year diploma 
units in conjunction with the Young Achiever’s Australia 
(YAA) business competition. The outcome of YAA is 
to develop a business enterprise and the skills and 
knowledge required to sell a product successfully. 

Projects and partnerships
Traineeships met its target again in 2005. The Centre has 
recently commenced training in new venues including 
Ramada Encore Hotel (Dandenong), Berth (Dockland) and 
Templestowe Hotel.

The Centre established a new relationship with Oxfam with 
the Oxfam Trailwalker. This event is an annual fundraiser for 
Oxfam. Staff and event management students worked during 
the Oxfam Trailwalker at Check Point 5 over a 24-hour period. 
The work included guest services, crowd management and 
control, and support along the trail. 

Special events and initiatives
Staff contributed to a number of charity events internally and 
externally. In February, the Centre presented a tsunami fund-
rasing dinner in aid of two Sri Lankan charities – The Friends of 
Unawatuna and The Foundation of Goodness. 

The night raised over $16,000, part of which went towards 
building two new houses for tsunami survivors. In October, 
the Centre presented two events in Fountain’s Restaurant for 
the Children’s Cancer Centre at the Royal Children’s Hospital 
and the KOTO project in Hanoi. Staff and students also 
participated in the organisation of the annual Box Hill Institute 
Black Tie Ball.

Awards

Box Hill Outstanding Student of the Year - Apprentice
Kerri Anne Sheedy

‘Award of Excellence’ in the Les Toques Blanches 
Bonland Proud to be a Chef (finalist)
Anthony D’Augello 

VicTAFE Cookery Challenge - Gold Medal and overall 
winner
Box Hill Institute Team
Ben Tasker (second year apprentice), 
Emma Parker (second year apprentice) and 
Ry Stephen (third year apprentice).

Nestle Golden Chefs Hat Award  (finalists)

Jessica Handreck (third year apprentice) and 
Ry Stephen (third year apprentice).

2005 WorldSkills Australia Regional Competition
Restaurant Service - Gold Medal 

Hannah Hearne

2005 Young Achiever’s Australia Awards Nominations
Sara Rankin – Victorian Tertiary Business Person of the 
Year

Team BOOYA –Best Media Promotion
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Centre for Industry 
Education and Training
The Centre for Industry Education and Training 
continued its focus on the delivery of training and 
assessment services across the areas of teacher 
education, workplace education, language, literacy 
and numeracy support, leadership and safety. 

In 2005 on-site training and assessment was 
provided to various industry sectors, including the 
pulp and paper, construction, automotive, extractive, 
health, community services, print, ICT, hospitality and 
government sectors.  Training varied from literacy 
support to providing onsite training for the newly 
accredited Certificate IV in Training & Assessment and 
the Diploma of Vocational Education & Training.

Box Hill Institute’s Jobs Plus New Apprenticeship 
Centre and Employment Service continued to 
provide service to employers in the Melbourne 
region. The Jobs Plus Employment Service achieved 
high recognition for its success in job placements 
and the design and implementation of labour 
market programs. These programs include New 
Apprenticeships Access Program, Skill Up, VET Priority 
Place and Parents Returning to Work. The Centre 
experienced considerable growth in the numbers of 
participants enrolled in customised on-site training 
delivery and flexible learning.  

Curriculum development
Customised industry courses were developed and 
delivered by staff for a number of our industry 
clients including SCA Hygiene, QENOS, Holden, City 
of Whitehorse, CGU, Mirvac, WorkSafe, Department 
of Infrastructure, Department of Primary Industries, 
CMPA, Master Builders Association of Victoria, 
Departments of Primary Industries and Infrastructure 
and PMP Print.

Units from the Extractive Industries Training Package 
were also customised for online delivery on WEBCT. A 
Resume Builder was developed for use by job seekers 
accessing the program via the Institute’s website.

Professional development
The Centre is responsible for the delivery of the 
Certificate IV in Training and Assessment, the 
Diploma of Vocational Education & Training and 
the Graduate Certificate in Vocational Education & 
Training as professional development for Institute 
staff. 

Twenty-four of the Institute’s Facilities staff received 
competencies from the Asset Maintenance Training 

Package. A Leadership in Action program is being 
delivered to a pilot group from the Institute 
leadership team.  

Jobs Plus staff attended training in management, 
customer service, disabilities, first aid and supervisory 
skills.  Literacy support teachers participated 
in Workplace English Language and Literacy 
information sessions facilitated by the Engineering 
and Manufacturing Skills Board.  

In December 2005, together with staff from the 
Centre for Management and Small Business, Centre 
staff were involved in the ‘Developing Emotional 
Intelligence’ residential conference at the Deakin 
Management Centre.

Project and partnerships
The Employment Service expanded to include job 
placement for graduate students and jobseekers as 
well as coordinating the Parents Returning to Work 
Program and the pilot Labour Market programs in 
Vet Priority Places, Skill Up and New Apprenticeship 
Access Program. 

Workplace English Language and Literacy projects 
funded by the Department of Employment, Science 
and Training were delivered to the Construction 
Material Processors Association specialising in the 
work safely, risk management and communications 
units.

Holden Limited at Fishermen’s Bend also received 
training in safety induction. The Certificate IV in 
Assessment & Workplace Training was customised 
for managers and team leaders at Qenos Limited. 
The newly accredited Certificate IV in Training & 
Assessment was delivered to experienced training 
staff within Human Services, the Master Builders 
Association and WorkSafe.

Leadership modules were delivered at SCA Hygiene, 
the Mirvac Hotel Group and PMPPrint.

The Diploma of Government was customised and is 
being delivered to inspectors from the Departments 
of Primary Industries and Infrastructure. A customised 
Diploma of Government program (Workplace 
Inspection and Investigations) was delivered to 
Inspectors from WorkSafe.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre was responsible for the design and 
organisation of the 2005 Teaching and Learning 
symposium for all Institute staff. The theme was 
“Designing a Sustainable Future”.
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Centre for Information 
Sciences
The Centre for Information Sciences offers courses for 
those wishing to pursue a career either as information 
technology specialists or in information management.

The Library Technician Course was again very successful 
with a pleasing increase in enrolment.

The Centre was successful in tenders for library training 
in Vietnam, which were very well received by the 
client and students. The successful tenders were the 
conclusion of much work over the previous two years 
and provided staff with valuable experience.

There was a small decrease in student numbers in IT 
courses. The plans put in place in 2004 to develop and 
deliver new courses are showing promise and offsetting 
decreases in older areas. The most significant new course 
is the Associate Degree in Software Development. This is 
now accredited and delivery will start in July 2006. 

Curriculum development
After a year of work the Associate Degree in Software 
Development was accredited. Planning work started 
to implement two training packages. The new Library 
Technician package (CUL04) will be delivered in 2006 
and the IT one (ICA05) in 2007. AQTF compliance 
processes continued to be refined and a successful 
internal audit was completed. Ongoing work producing 
textbooks for the distance delivery of the Library Course 
progressed well.  The Centre produced two new books 
and updated five.

Professional development
Two staff were enrolled in the Box Hill Institute 
sponsored Masters courses with Monash University 
and one completed in 2005. One library staff member 
attended the biannual ALIA Technician Conference in 
Sydney. Staff also attended many one-day conferences 
and small seminars. IT staff continued to keep their skills 
up to date by studying and passing exams in vendor 
qualifications.

Projects and partnerships
The Recognition of Prior Learning process and computer 
application was rolled out to all Teaching Centres on 
time and on budget. The feedback has been positive 
and it is now embedded into Box Hill Institute processes 
and supports our AQTF compliance.

Special events and initiatives
In addition to the annual Award Night the Centre ran a library 
industry information night and ICT information evening for 
students and industry. All the full-time Library students spent 
100 hours at work experience. All graduating IT students 
completed an industry project for a client. The relevance and 
currency of our training was validated by these close links 
with industry and by our formal Course Advisory Committee.

Awards
We again continued to receive support from Microsoft for 
our IT students. This year they donated a substantial software 
development package to our best software student.

Many industry partners (Australian Library Information 
Association, EBSCO Australia, Technical Bookshop Melbourne, 
Microsoft & CISCO) supported the students with awards and 
prizes that will assist their move to employment. 

Jann Shaw, one of our Library students and team leader for 
the Port Stephens Mobile Library received a Staff Recognition 
Award. The award is designed to recognise work that is done 
beyond the scope of what is expected within the normal role 
of a job.  

Andrew Harris’ efforts as a volunteer at Croydon Primary 
School were recognised in May this year when he was 
awarded an Educational Community Service award. The 
award was given to nine people across Victoria who had 
contributed positively to children’s education.
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Centre for Management and 
Small Business
The Centre for Management and Small Business 
continued its focus on the design, development and 
delivery of frontline management training to middle 
and senior management, customised to meet the 
specifications of various public and private sector 
industry groups.

The Specialist Centre for Small to Medium Enterprises 
for Victoria (SME Specialist Centre) expanded the 
provision of services to start-ups, micro/home based 
and medium enterprises particularly throughout the 
eastern region of Melbourne. 

The Centre of Specialisation for Services to Small 
and Medium Enterprises for Victoria provided its 
“Business Breakthrough” business development and 
mentoring program to around 80 SMEs experiencing 
growth in their business: one to retailers, two across 
diverse business sectors in the Eastern Region and 
one in the West through Kangan Business Enterprise 
Centre (BEC). A consortium approach was adopted 
to implement this model and the Centre worked 
in partnership with other BECs, local government, 
business and community networks and trader 
groups to meet the flexibility and connectivity 
required by SMEs to grow their businesses.

The BEC focused on providing training, mentoring, 
support and referral to approximately 350 brand 
new start-up businesses through the New Enterprise 
Incentive Scheme.  

Curriculum development
In 2005, a major focus was the development of new 
materials to meet industry specifications required 
in the manufacturing sector to upskill leaders in 
fourteen manufacturing organisations.

Information and support materials are now available 
on the Institute’s Distributed Learning Support System 
to assist new business starters and industry clients. 

Professional development
The Centre Manager and Small Business Manager 
attended the Small Enterprise of Australia and New 
Zealand Conference and the SME Coordinator 
attended an Economic Development Association of 
Victoria conference. 

The Centre’s staff delivered at and participated in the 
National Business Enterprise Centres, Australia and 
New Zealand Business Incubators Small Business 
Conference. 

The Small Business Manager participated in judging 
for the Yellow Pages Business Ideas Grant, whilst 
our NEIS Facilitator chaired the SME committee for 
CPA Australia. The SME Coordinator undertook an 
internship to develop materials online.

In December 2005, together with staff from Industry 
Education & Training, Centre staff participated in a 
residential conference at the Deakin Management 
Centre focussing on change management and 
strategic planning for the Centre in 2006.

Projects and partnerships
Box Hill Institute is the Lead Agent in the Greater 
Melbourne Employment and Training Services 
(GRAMETS) consortium.  This is the second largest 
provider of New Enterprise Incentive Scheme (NEIS) 
programs in Australia.  

Frontline management and leadership programs 
were delivered on site in fourteen manufacturing 
companies as well as a diversity of other 
organisations such as Epworth Eastern, Department 
of Defence (Corporate), Monash University, United 
KFPW Pty Ltd, City of Whitehorse and the Australian 
Sports Commission. 

The Centre provided retail traineeships to McDonalds’ 
trainees across Victoria who attended over 180 
schools and work across 41 stores with outstanding 
completion rates. 

Special events and initiatives
The Centre again hosted the 2005 workshop series 
of “Under New Management” for the Department of 
Industry and Innovation and Regional Development 
and contributed to the new Victorian Small Business 
White Paper on small business reform.  

Staff members of the SME Specialist Centre hosted 
the CPA Small Business Discussion Group in the 
Eastern Region of Melbourne.

The Business Enterprise Centres were represented 
on the Management Committee of the Small 
Business Coalition – a group of Industry Associations 
addressing small business issues.

Awards

Maroondah Council’s Women’s Business Award 
2005 (winner)

Denise Murname  

2005 National NEIS Association Awards 
Best New Business Award (nomination)
Nicole Hrabe’s “Utilise: My Time” 
Peter Westley’s “Leading Possibilities” 
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Centre for Media, Design 
and Arts
The Centre for Media, Design and Arts offers courses in 
fashion, multimedia, design and the arts.

The Centre made a remarkable improvement in teaching 
delivery with an additional 38,000 student contact hours 
taught in 2005.

Curriculum development 
The Centre led Victoria in the these national curriculum/
training package projects:

•  development and accreditation of the first Associate 
Degree in Fashion delivered by a TAFE in Victoria 

•   development and accreditation of a learning 
program in the Certificate III in Applied Design 

•   review of Film, TV Radio & Multimedia training 
package

•   development of higher-level qualifications for visual 
arts, crafts and design

•   scoping the Synergies between Cultural Industries 
Training packages national project for Innovation and 
Business Skills Australia, - the national skills council 
for the art and design.

Professional development 
Sixteen staff received their Certificate IV in Workplace 
Training & Assessment and six Centre teachers gave 
exhibitions in their respective fields of artistic endeavour.
One teacher was seconded to the VQA’s Applied Design 
in Industry Advisory Service and three Fashion staff 
participated in the Hong Kong Fashion Week and World 
Boutique Trade fair.

Projects and partnerships 
The Centre contributed to the Deakin University 
– Box Hill Institute alliance with the development of 
credit transfers and collaborative work between our 
multimedia departments.

Art, fashion and design students organised corporate 
sponsorship, raising over $10,000 from enterprises.

The Xtreme Design course was written, produced and 
directed by staff from the Centre and from the Centre for 
Automotive Transport & Engineering.

Special events and initiatives 
Designer and MDA teacher Simone LeAmon was invited 
by Austrade to give a presentation on her work with 
Ducati in Italy and with Milanese designer studios. 

Fashion featured at Federation Square at the BMW Edge for 
the student designers festival.

Every Certificate IV in Broadcast (Television) student obtained 
a place working at the Commonwealth Games.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’s Teacher of the Year 
Rona Green (Visual Arts)

Box Hill Institute’s Vocational Student 
of the Year
Joel Cogger (finalist )

Box Hill Institute’s Staff Achievement Recognition 
Program - Teacher of the Year (2004)

Sue McFarland 

Victorian Worldskills Competition Garment Production

Terri Zimmerman and Nicolle Rutten (Gold)
Mey Fuon Boey and Corinna Howard (Silver)
Lauren Andrewartha (Bronze)

Victorian Fashion Awards - TAFE Institute Awards.

•   Race wear category 
Kaye Young (first), 
Sarah Caruana (second), 
Jaye Wearne (third)

•   Costume Design Category
Bryony Whittaker (third)

•   Long Gown Section 
Kaye Young (winner)

•   Overall achiever award in the TAFE section

      Kaye Young

•   2-week internship with famous Italian designer Renato 
Balestra in Milan
Jaye Wearne 

•   Southern Cross Packaging Competition 
Danielle Rogerson and Lisa Cookson (Silver)

      Rebecca Orszag and Laura Indivino (Commendations)

•  Derby Day British Airway’s Competition 
first, second and third. 

•   Network 10 Sponsorship Award. 
Scott Thorneycroft 
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Centre for Vocational Access 
and Education
The Centre for Vocational Access and Education offers a 
diverse range of programs designed to meet the needs 
of many different members of the community. Students 
of these programs include adults and youth returning to 
study or seeking vocational change, women returning 
to the employment market, overseas-born professionals 
entering the employment market, and people seeking to 
improve literacy, numeracy and English skills.

In addition, the Centre also conducts a Professional 
Writing and Editing program.

The Certificate of Employment Development for 
Overseas Professionals continued to play an important 
role in securing job opportunities for graduates of the 
program.

The national focus on skilled migration resulted in this 
employment development program building its profile 
and enabled strong partnerships to be developed with 
industry.

Curriculum development
The Integrated Community approach trialled this year 
for our Year 11 VCE students had a major impact on how 
we have devised our entire year 11 programs moving 
forward into 2006.

In particular all students studying Year 11 English 
participated in a two-day camp that built relationships 
and trust between students and with their teachers. 
In addition, the English groups came together at a 
common time during the week, which allowed shared 
experiences.

A workbook for students studying Unit 2 in Work Related 
Skills was developed which allows them to study 
independently both on campus and in the work place.

Professional development
All staff engaged in professional development in their 
area of expertise during the year, for the most part 
through professional associations.

The ideas and initiatives that evolved directly from our 
two day conference in November of 2004 resulted in 
many specific improvements to our enrolment processes 
as well as pre-enrolment information distributed to 
prospective students. 

Projects and partnerships
The Centre attracted funds from OTTE to provide 
individual support and ongoing advice to our Employment 
Development for Overseas Professionals students. 

A link was forged with a major industry group that has the 
potential to provide enhanced practical placement and job 
opportunities for this cohort of students.

Angus & Robertson bookstore in Box Hill was a significant 
supporter of our staff and students involved in the Diploma of 
Arts (Professional Writing & Editing).

Special events and initiatives
Our Year 11 camp in February was an unqualified success that 
had an impact on other successful initiatives, in particular 
a MacBeth performance by our drama students and a 
multicultural lunch, which brought together our local and 
international students.

Our media and arts students shared their work through a 
festival, and some 78 Year 11 students went to a DEST funded 
careers expo.

The Professional Writing & Editing publication, ‘Inkshed’ 
underwent a transformation process and will be known as the 
‘AVANT – new writing anthology’. This was a well-supervised 
and unanimous process for change made in response to a 
student and staff groundswell. 

‘Divan’ continued to publish poetry and accepts national and 
international manuscripts.

‘Word Play 2005’ attracted writers and academics of renown, 
including Arnold Zable, Sari Smith and Barry Dickins. 
Professional Writing & Editing outstanding students, Tony 
McMahon and Kris Allison were included in an inaugural 
‘emerging writers’ panel.  

‘Dirty Words’ will be a festival in 2006 that focuses on writing 
about themes of: ‘Australian landscape, popular culture 
and the body.’ The Centre is aiming to have author Martin 
Flanagan present a keynote speech, along with a complete 
festival of emerging writers to give our own developing 
writers their literary community context on these themes.

Awards

Bill Johnson VAE Student of the Year Award
Phil Copsey 
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Service Centre Reports

College Printing and 
Graphic Design
College Printing & Graphic Design provides a range 
of printing and photocopying services to Box Hill 
Institute. It also provides commercial services such 
as graphic design, printing, desktop publishing and 
digital copying to a range of external clients.

During 2005, the Centre consolidated its position 
within the Box Hill Institute community with 
improved performance in all areas. The unit invested 
in technology, both hardware and software, to 
handle the current and future digital document 
needs of the Institute. This has seen an increase 
in the number of learning materials now being 
converted to a more flexible digital format. Learning 
materials being created and stored in a digital 
format is a major step towards minimising the risk of 
problems with copyright, version control and loss of 
intellectual property.

The average on time or early delivery time for all 
clients work during 2005 exceeded 97 percent.

Facilities Services Centre
The Facilities Services Centre is committed to 
providing Box Hill Institute staff and students with a 
safe and positive teaching and learning environment.

During 2005 Facilities Services was heavily involved in 
the Elgar East building development. 

The Elgar East building development created the 
consequential effects of:

•   the relocation of program delivery from the 
Whitehorse Campus to the new Building 8 facility 
on Elgar Road

•   the relocation and consolidation of program 
delivery from the Ellingworth Campus to 
refurbished rooms on the Whitehorse Campus

•   the vacation of the Ellingworth Campus (leased 
premises).

Although the primary focus for 2005 related to the 
new building and relocation of staff, other minor 
works and deferred maintenance works were 
undertaken:

•   replacement of floor coverings

•   upgrade and replacement of light fittings

•   upgrading the level of compliance of essential 
services

•   installation of a lift to Building 1, Whitehorse 
Campus

•   upgrade of Institute signage

•   ongoing upgrade to building heating, ventilation 
and cooling systems

•   a new asset management program

•   ongoing upgrade of security systems throughout 
all campuses

•   introduction of energy initiatives and 
environmental sustainability principles.

Facilities Services staff undertook professional 
development in:

•   Certificate III in Asset Management (Cleaning) – all 
cleaning staff

•   Introduction to Excel – all office staff.

service centre reports



72 vv ANNUAL REPORT 2005  B OX  H I L L  I N S T I T U T E  -  G LO B A L  E D U C AT O R S

A
N

N
U

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

5
  B

O
X

 H
IL

L
 IN

S
T

IT
U

T
E

 - G
LO

B
A

L
 E

D
U

C
A

T
O

R
S

Centre for Finance
The Centre for Finance is responsible for supporting the 
financial management of Box Hill Institute. This includes 
ensuring that the Institute’s financial management and 
reporting is conducted in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 and relevant accounting 
standards and Institute policies and procedures. 

The Centre provides services relating to purchasing, 
accounts payable, accounts receivable, cashiering, 
banking and investment, fixed asset management, 
internal and external financial reporting.

Key achievements during 2005 included:

•    establishment of the financial systems component of 
the Online Enrolment Project

•    upgrade of Finance 1 to version 10.2.

•    implementation of systems and process to 
transition the Institute’s reporting financial 
reporting framework to the Australian equivalent of 
International Reporting Standards

•    100% compliance with the Financial Management 
Reporting Framework

•    a review of the Centre’s organisational structure, 
and commencement of the implementation of 
the resulting recommendations to better align the 
functional services delivered by the Centre to client 
requirements and service needs.

Professional development 
A number of staff members undertook continuing 
professional development activities as a requirement of 
their Certified Practising Accountant status.  In addition, 
staff were involved in the following training activities:

•    two staff members undertook the Institute’s 
Leadership Development Program

•    contract management and tendering

•   further tertiary studies relating to commerce and 
business.

Centre for Human Resources 
Services 
The Centre for Human Resource Services is responsible 
for providing a range of human resources management 
services to the Institute. These services are designed to 
support the human resources management activities 
of the operational units across the Institute and in 
particular the Teaching and Service Centres. 

The services were organised in early 2005 along a client 
service model and integrated with the services provided 
by the newly formed Centre within the Division of 
Organisation Development, the Centre for WorkPlace 
Relations. 

Within the Human Resource Services Centre some of the 
major activities for 2005 were:

•   implementation of a major upgrade of the HRIS 
system

•   enhancements to the online employee self service 
portal (SEIK) including an improved online pay 
slip. Work has commenced on introducing online 
timesheets during 2006.

•   implementation of the superannuation “choice of 
fund” provisions as required by federal legislation

•   significant progress on a number of projects 
including budget reporting in Alesco (the HRIS 
system); other management reporting via Oracle 
Discoverer.

Staff from the Centre were involved in the following 
initiatives or activities with staff from the Centre for 
WorkPlace Relations:

•   the negotiation of three EBA’s covering the Institute’s 
PACCT staff, the maintenance employees and the 
cleaning staff

•   the extensive review process associated with the 
Institute’s organisation development policies and 
procedures including the associated consultative 
processes

•   the provision of advice and support via the client 
advisor model to Centre Managers on human 
resources management matters, including further 
implementation of the provisions of MECA and other 
industrial and employer relation issues

•   the respective consultations and implementation 
committees associated with each of the major 
enterprise agreements

•   a number of Centre organisational reviews including 
the implementation of revised structures and 
resource arrangements.
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International Student Office
Driven by a strong desire to gain skills and qualifications 
to assist applications for permanent residency in 
Australia, the Vocational Education sector experienced a 
significant increase in numbers of international students 
in 2005. Box Hill Institute International Student Office 
was well placed to capitalise on this trend by offering 
courses such as commercial cookery and patisserie/
baking. 

Enrolments of international students reached a record 
1,189, an increase of 10% over the previous year, with 
formal vocational course enrolments alone registering 
an increase of 18%. Once again a wide and diverse 
country of origin base of more than 50 countries 
provided a stimulating mix to the Institute’s overall 
population of students. While the top five countries and 
territories remained Japan, Korea, Hong Kong, Thailand 
and People’s Republic of China, it was especially pleasing 
to see significant increases in numbers of enrolments 
from Colombia, France, Mauritius and the Indian 
subcontinent. International students continued to be 
attracted by diversity and prospective students know 
that they can expect this at Box Hill Institute.

Marketing efforts focussed on traditional main markets, 
new and emerging markets and rejuvenating older 
markets showing positive signs of re-emerging. A hectic 
schedule of 55 international education exhibitions, at 
both international and local Melbourne venues kept the 
International Student Office recruitment team busy. 

To extend our recruitment capabilities and provide 
valuable additional exposure, a small number of 
recruitment agencies, with proven track records, 
participated at events on behalf of Box Hill Institute with 
very positive results. 

All promotional activities included heavy emphasis 
on the launch of the Box Hill Institute Bachelor and 
Associate Degree programs. New display banners, 
printed materials, web-based and print advertising, 
promotional seminars and interview sessions all 
highlighted our new range of higher education courses. 
Internet presence was enhanced with an update of 
the multi-lingual International Student web pages 
on the Box Hill Institute website, making the Institute 
more accessible to prospective students and their 
international recruitment agents. 

International students continued to receive a high level 
of customer friendly service from a multi-lingual team 
within the International Student Office. Experienced staff 
provided a high level of service to assist international 
students with welfare arrangements such as a free 

airport pick up service and a free accommodation placement 
service. Agents and students still see these free services as an 
important point of differentiation for Box Hill Institute. 

The quality of Box Hill Institute’s range of educational and 
student support services, combined with a consistent 
and competitive tuition fee policy, successfully attracted 
international students fresh from their home country as well 
as many international students already studying onshore 
looking for further study options in Australia. 

The International Student Office was involved in a wide range 
of activities including:

•   three-day Welcome Festivals for new students in February 
and July

•   one-day orientation programs for all nine ELICOS intakes 
throughout the year  

•   visits to recruiting agents internationally and locally

•   a full calendar of Friendship Program activities and outings 
for international students

•   participation at the Institute Open Day

•   regular meetings with International Coordinators from 
Teaching Centres 

•   welcoming delegations from other Institutions and 
recruiting agents.

Box Hill Institute is now ready to roll out more new courses 
designed to attract international students into careers to fill 
Australia’s growing skills shortages. In catering to this demand 
the Institute is in a good position to enhance further its strong 
international reputation as one of Australia’s premier technical 
training providers. 
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in intellectual property management, distance 
education tutor management and library services for 
degree programs. 

The electronic reserve system, which allows students 
to access periodical articles and book chapters 
online, provided an alternative method for teachers 
to make material available to their students in the 
music degree and the VCE programs. 

An increase in the number of staff utilising the advice 
and services of the Intellectual Property Adviser and 
a general increased awareness across the Institute of 
copyright and related issues was recorded.

A group that included staff from across the Victorian 
TAFE sector with an interest or involvement in 
intellectual property issues was established and our 
adviser was involved in various sector initiatives in 
consultation with the Victorian TAFE Association and 
the TAFE Development Centre. A strategy to protect 
and enhance the value of the Institute’s intellectual 
property is currently in development.

A strategic plan was developed that establishes a 
direction for the Library over the next three years. The 
plan has a focus on technology, upgraded facilities 
and working more collaboratively with teachers.  

Despite a decrease in some Centre enrolments and 
customer traffic, the Bookshop’s turnover was in 
excess of $1 million in sales. 

In support of the environment, the Bookshop 
moved from plastic to paper carry bags and supplies 
remanufactured toner cartridges to Institute Centres. 
In partnership with College Printing a toner recycling 
collection service was initiated with collection points 
located at each campus. 

Library and Bookshop
During 2005 the Library site on StudentWeb was 
completely restructured, rewritten and expanded 
to enable easier access to information.  Students 
can now access the Library catalogue from a search 
box on the homepage, a first for a TAFE library in 
Australia.  Students can also search the catalogue 
from any of the Library’s pages or StudentWeb. Links 
to categories of information are identified by graphic 
illustrations that are mirrored in subsequent pages. 

New information was added on referencing 
styles, plagiarism, photocopying and printing, and 
borrowing and renewing items. Online databases 
relevant to students’ study requirements and 
alternative methods of accessing information were 
also added. The website renewal project was a joint 
project between the Library and Open Learning’s 
Online Services staff.

As a service provider to Box Hill Senior Secondary 
College, the Library catalogued over 1000 items and 
established system protocols for the loading of staff 
and student data. 

Results of the Library client survey conducted in 
the latter part of 2005 were extremely pleasing. The 
Library achieved an overall benchmark score of 78% 
in comparison to other universities and TAFE Institute 
libraries. Out of a possible score of 7 the Library rated 
a 5.36 satisfaction level and 5.31 for quality. 

The development of the Library collection to 
support the degree and associate degree programs 
was a resource-intensive exercise involving staff 
from information services and technical services. 
The collection was expanded in all areas including 
e-books, electronic databases, CDs, DVDs and print 
resources. An injection of titles valued at over $13,000 
in the areas of Internet security, business data 
communications, networking, project management, 
information systems and wireless communications 
was provided by a donor. 

A continuing staff development program for staff 
working with degree level students incorporated 
training in the use of the Library’s existing and new 
online databases. 
Several of the Library staff gave presentations at 
sector forums including a forum run by the TAFE 
Development Centre on intellectual property. 
Two staff members presented at the national 
Australian Library and Information Association 
conference on “EXotic eXperiences in circulation desk 
management”. The Manager visited Canada as part 
of an AUSTAFE study tour to identify best practice 
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Centre for Marketing 
During 2005 the Centre for Marketing staff continued 
to build on the Institute’s existing reputation as a first 
option for tertiary education. This was further enhanced 
when the Institute was named Victoria’s No 1 Institute for 
the second year in a row at the State Training Awards.  

The Centre maximised the marketing opportunities 
associated with winning this award and also being 
named as one of the Top 3 Australian TAFE Institutes at 
the National Training Awards.

During 2005 the Centre implemented a number of 
targeted marketing strategies with a major focus on the 
Bachelor of Applied Music, Bachelor of Biotechnology 
and Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)

The Centre continued to focus on its objective to 
manage the Institute’s domestic marketing function 
which includes identifying the needs and characteristics 
of target markets, developing marketing strategies, 
maximising recruitment opportunities and developing 
and servicing client relationships.

During the year, staff from the Centre continued to 
provide marketing services through close working 
relationships with the Institute’s various teaching centres.  
A number of marketing plans were developed for 
teaching centres for specific programs.

Staff were also energetic in working with secondary 
schools in the Eastern region of Melbourne and in 
the corporate sector. The Centre nurtured existing 
sponsorship relationships and developed significant 
new ones, and also continued to work closely in the 
community with a number of local Rotary Clubs.

The Centre managed a number of key events during 
the year including the launch of Specialist Centre for 
Biotechnology Training – “BioSkills”.  BioSkills was officially 
launched by The Hon Lynne Kosky MP, Minister for 
Education and Training. The Centre also managed the 
opening of Elgar Campus Building 8, which was jointly 
opened, by Minister Kosky and the Hon Gary Hardgrave 
MP, Commonwealth Minister for Vocational and Technical 
Education and Ministry for Assisting the Prime Minister.

Both events were well attended by local and state 
politicians, government representatives, industry, local 
community and Institute staff.

During the year, the Marketing Centre took over 
management responsibility of the Institute’s Alumni 
Program and sent out the Business Newsletter to 
members. A staff position has been developed to 
coordinate the Alumni Program, which should see a 

number of activities occurring during 2006.

The Centre continued to produce the very popular internal 
newsletter – “News & Notices” and during the year a survey 
was sent to Institute staff to gain feedback on the publication 
with a view to make further improvements during 2006. 

The various number of success stories about staff, student and 
Institute achievements were managed effectively and were 
widespread across all forms of media.

In addition to managing media activity, the Centre provided 
writing support for a number of corporate events including 
speeches for the Senior Management team.

Content was also produced for the Box Hill Institute News 
Page (Leader Community Newspapers), which circulates 
throughout the Eastern Regions of Victoria, the Institute’s 
internal newsletter News and Notices, the Business Newsletter 
and the Institute’s Website (www.bhtafe.edu.au).

Content material was also developed for the Institute’s 
internal website, known as the Distributed Learning Support 
System (DLSS), to act as a media resource for staff.

The Centre played a significant role in arranging the 4th 
Annual Black Tie Ball in September. The Ball is now an annual 
event to raise funds for the Institute’s House for Homeless 
Youth project. The very popular evening gains immense 
support from Institute supporters and the local Whitehorse 
community and raised more than $12,000.  
 
It is anticipated that the first House for Homeless Youth will 
be completed by Easter 2006. The Centre has managed the 
fundraising of the necessary $55,000 for the dwelling and is 
now focusing on doing the same for the second house.  

Centre staff also managed a very successful fundraising 
($6,000) and network function at Riversdale Golf Club for the 
House for Homeless Youth. 

In November the Centre managed a very successful Sponsors 
Golf Day at Commonwealth Golf Club. This event was held to 
thank the companies and individuals who have supported 
various Box Hill Institute programs over the year such as 
scholarships, business breakfasts, donation of equipment and 
financial support. 

The Centre once again managed the popular Business 
Breakfast program, which was supported by a large number 
of corporate sponsors. The sponsors were:

•   Moores Legal

•   Fry Financial Services

•   Leader Newspapers

•   Toucan Digital Print

http://www.bhtafe.edu.au
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•   Alzburg Inn Resort and Conference Centre in 
Mansfield

•   Thrifty Rentacar

•   Doncaster Holden

•   Strapp Ford

•   Medibank Private

•   Corporate Candy

•   College Printing

•   NOVA FM

•   Fountains Licensed Restaurant

•   Konica-Minolta

•   Quest Serviced Apartments

•   Flowers on Elgar.  

The speakers for the 2005 Business Breakfasts were: 
Dr John Tickell, Robyn Moore, Tom O’Toole, and 
Bernard Salt.

Many marketing, recruitment and promotional 
activities were implemented during 2005. These 
were:

•   delivery of 67 Box Hill Institute tours, 20 School-
based expos and 30 school-based talks about the 
Institute to secondary college students

•   management of the Institute Open Day

•   management of the annual Career Advisers 
Seminar, attended by Secondary College Career 
Advisers

•   management of the Institute’s Outstanding 
Student of the Year Awards

•   development of the Change of Preference 
campaign

•   management of the Institute’s participation in the 
Victorian Training Awards where Box Hill Institute 
won the prestigious Training Provider of the Year 
(Large) Award for the second year in a row

•   exhibitions in Melbourne and regional exhibitions 
and festivals

•   assistance for individual Teaching Centres with 
Awards/Graduation functions

•   management of the Institute Scholarship 
Program (including the City of Whitehorse 
Scholarship)

•   management of the monthly Box Hill Institute 
News page which appears in 10 eastern 
suburban Leader Community newspapers

•   development and management of corporate 
sponsorship proposals

•   management of a number of launches

•   management of Box Hill Institute brochure 
display stands that were placed in 100 Secondary 
Schools across metropolitan Melbourne

•   management of the launch of the indigenous 
mural “The Circle of Learning”

•   management of the signing of the MOU between 
Deakin University and Box Hill Institute.

The Centre for Marketing – Victorian Region is 
responsible for the development and production 
of a wide variety of the Institute’s most visible and 
widely distributed marketing materials.  The following 
material was produced during 2005:

•   2006 Course Guide

•   2006 Course Handbook

•   2004 Annual Report

•   Short Course brochures

•   Course brochures

•   Degree brochures

•   Parent brochure

•   Teaching Centre display banners

•   Teaching Centre posters

•   News and Notices (internal newsletter)

•   Business Newsletter (external newsletter)

•   Advertisements – generic and also on behalf of 
the Teaching Centres

•   Corporate merchandise.

Schools Liaison Unit
The Schools Liaison Unit acts as the student 
recruitment arm of the Centre for Marketing. The Unit 
has a dual role in that it services over 500 secondary 
schools within Victoria, but also functions as a service 
provider to the Institute’s Centres. 

The Unit develops campaigns and promotes the 
Institute to schools through direct mail and through 
the development of long-term relationships between 
the Institute and secondary schools.

In its recruitment role, the Unit aims to inspire 
students to take a proactive interest in their tertiary 
options. It does this by firstly selling the idea of 
TAFE education and then focussing on the specific 
benefits of studying at Box Hill Institute. Students are 
encouraged to tour the Institute as a group, log on to 
our website and attend Open Day.

During 2005 the Unit worked with the Institute’s 
Centres to assist them in the development of 
promotional campaigns into the secondary school 
market. 

School tours at Box Hill Institute are tailored to 
‘best fit’ the careers programs which students 
are participating in within their schools. The Unit 
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Centre for Open Learning
The Centre for Open Learning combines the dual 
roles of managing delivery of distance-supported 
courses to students off campus and offers services 
internally to the Institute that support educational 
resource development and online communications 
systems and interface deployment.

In 2005 the Centre expanded to encompass the Off 
Campus operation, ensuring continued delivery 
of distance learning despite the demise of TAFE 
Frontiers, a key courseware supplier. An alliance was 
formed with Pearson Education to collaboratively 
assist the development of new courseware materials 
in the financial services industry courses. Strategic 
links with the Off Campus Network were maintained 
to leverage mutual support. ISO quality assurance 
was successfully revalidated for another three years.

Curriculum development
The Centre continued to invest in, and develop 
competency-based courseware materials 
that support students aiming to gain national 
accreditation in finance accounting, business 
administration, management, public relations, 
marketing, legal practice, library skills, human 
resources, quality assurance, sales, real estate, and 
professional writing and editing. Strong links were 
maintained with the pulp and paper manufacturing 
industry.

Professional development
Professional development included:

•   Fifty eight professional development events 
attended by staff, ranging from reading for a 
Masters to management training and attending 
conferences on e-learning and IT platforms

•   The Microsoft Enterprise Learning Library courses 
were made available for staff to learn in more 
depth the MS office suite in use at the Centre.

•   Key application software for resource 
development was supported by a continuous 
improvement learning program.

•   Nineteen teachers took part in the e-learning 
internship program to gain skills and knowledge 
for the design and implementation of flexible 
learning solutions in the classroom.

Projects, workshops and partnerships
Centre staff:

•   designed and implemented the short course 
online student enrolment system

•   undertook ten workshops on the use and 
relevance of our in-house learning and content 
management systems 

•   completed the innovative Certificate IV in Fitness 
Toolbox in partnership with Chisholm Institute.

Special events and initiatives
Highlights for the year included:

•   an increased level of student electronic 
communications, such as SMS messaging

•   Virtuoso learning platform support encompassed 
training four international developers, the trial of 
video streaming technology, foreign language 
support, and several new learning modules

•   further development of the Institute website

•   a 15% increase in student usage of online 
resources with their studies

•   the development of online e-counselling

•   development of the ‘Resume Builder’ for students

•   development of Degree and BioSkills network 
marketing communications

•   photographic art direction, coordination and 
design development of marketing material for 
WorldSkills competition

•   twenty two desktop publishing projects

•   event design and project management for 
the ‘Walk of Innovation’ at Box Hill Institute’s 
campuses to showcase teacher and student 
innovative works and projects. 

Awards 
Box Hill Institute’s Staff Achievement 
Recognition Program
Leaders in Technology Award (nomination)
Dominic Pentony
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Registrar’s Centre
During 2005 the Registrar’s Centre continued to offer a 
wide range of services to students, staff and other clients 
of the Institute.

The Centre participated in a number of key projects 
within the Institute including:

•   the implementation of degree courses into the 
Student Management System (SMS)

•   enabling web-based enrolment for short courses

•   project management and implementation of the 
new Ministerial Directive on Fees and Charges for the 
2006 enrolments

•   finalising the rollout of the issuance of Short Course 
Certificate to Teaching Centre

•   completing a number of other “quick win” projects 
identified in the BPR of SMS in 2004. 

Preparation for the administration of FEE-HELP 
commenced and should be finalised in 2006.

During 2005 all statistical submission dates were met. 
The results of the ANTA/OTTE Invalid Enrolment (IE) audit 
were successful with IE rate below 2%.

The Registrar’s Centre implemented and tested a 
business continuity plan and a disaster recovery 
plan. In addition an O H & S Safety Plan for 2005 
was implemented and a hazard audit completed. 
A Registrar’s Centre specific Emergency Procedures 
Handbook was produced and each staff member has a 
personalised copy appropriate to the area in which they 
work.

Student Administration 
Staff in Student Administration once again rose to 
the challenge and enrolled and processed 35,721 
enrolments to date and around 16,000 Certificates/
Qualifications.

Each staff member participated in at least one 
professional development activity and most attended at 
least four.

The Centre has six trained First Aid staff and two trained 
Floor Wardens.

Over 200 Box Hill Institute staff have been trained in the 
use of the Student Management System.

Once again information sessions about Student 
Administration procedures and enrolment procedures 
were well attended at all campuses.

Whitehorse Student Service Centre
The Whitehorse Student Service Centre continued to offer 
a valuable service to staff and students at that campus. In 
addition to the full range of student administrative services, 
they reimburse petty cash, offer a reception service to the 
campus, and offer general information to visitors, students 
and staff. 

Reception and Mailroom & Central Registry
The reception area processed nearly 600 incoming calls per 
day.  

In addition, as the central clearing house for Institute mail, 
about 3000 items of incoming and outgoing mail were 
processed daily.   

The Registry software was upgraded to RecFind 
Corporate during 2005 and the implementation resulted 
in approximately twelve staff being trained as users. 
The upgrade allows for the devolution of the system 
and it is currently used in four areas other than Registry. 
Approximately 50 items are registered in the Central Registry 
system on a daily basis.
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Centre for Student 
Support Services
The Centre for Student Support Services was 
established to better deliver a range of support 
services to students. Accessible, useful, necessary and 
effective services to promote student wellbeing were 
delivered in partnership with Teaching Centres across 
the Institute.  

A greater number of younger Box Hill Institute 
students reaped benefit from Centre programs 
and services this year. There were more Victorian 
Certificate of Applied Learning (VCAL) students, 
more teaching Centres running VCAL programs and 
a VCAL retention rate of 85%. The industry training 
component of the Institute’s VCAL is a crucial driver 
of this success. Almost as important in success have 
been the strategies for identifying early individual 
student’s needs and a powerful program to build 
connectedness and a strong learning community for 
the VCAL students. The orientation camp, mandatory 
for new VCAL students, provided an early and 
excellent basis for success.

One hundred and thirty young students were 
intensively supported to develop and achieve 
goals and plans relating to education, training, 
employment and personal issues through the Youth 
Pathways Program. An additional 100 students were 
assisted with varying levels of support to plan and 
achieve their goals.  

A Koori Liaison Officer (KLO) was appointed this year. 
The KLO has greatly strengthened the Institute’s 
connection and consultation with Koori community 
groups and indigenous education and training 
networks. The Koori community provided much 
appreciated support to the Institute this year in the 
launch of our Indigenous mural, “Circle of Learning”, 
in consultation with our KLO and management, and 
in the development of the Wurruker Plan. Support 
has been individually offered to all Indigenous 
students, including continuation of the Rotary 
scholarship. Through consultation with community, 
work began on the development of delivery of 
Indigenous-specific courses.

The Student Activities and Representative 
Committees (SARC) recreation calendar was planned 
for maximum student engagement and was 
delivered to plan. It featured a greater number of 
activities, more activities in and around the student 
lounges, theme weeks each term, and surf and snow 
trips. Many SARC activities were co-curricular and 
activities linked students with industry, with other 
students and, importantly, the Centre’s support 
services. Elections for student representation on 

Council were energetically contested.  

SARC media publications excelled, both the four 
quality publications of “The Box”, including “The Box 
Online”, and the 2006 student diary.  

Where a SARC activity gathers a crowd, the services 
of the student support team were promoted, with 
messages reinforced by distinctively branded 
pamphlets, web logos, banners and boards. With 
more counselling rooms and workstations across 
campuses, counsellors, youth unit and other Centre 
specialists took their services to where there is a 
student need.  E-counselling was developed through 
a set of projects this year and the very successful pilot 
further expanded our outreach to students, including 
off-campus students. 

The 2005 Centre programs balanced individual 
support with early intervention strategies and 
primary prevention strategies to support mental 
health and wellbeing of the whole student 
community.  

The Communications Officer continued to deliver for 
the Institute, an effective early intervention service 
for issues arising for a student or member of the 
community. 
Small-group coping skills programs for young 
students were initiated and the life skills workshops 
for apprentices expanded. Mental wellbeing forums 
were developed and presented in partnership with 
Teaching Centres. These measures are particularly 
helpful for students with learning disabilities, medical 
conditions and/or mental illness.  

In second semester, a Centre working group set up 
an ongoing initiative to improve support for students 
with literacy and learning difficulties. Strategies 
developing included expanded use of assistive 
technology, early and better identification of need. 
The Centre this year also established a Community 
of Practice – Youth to support teachers of young 
students. The Centre’s approach has been to support 
initiatives and partnerships to address student needs 
strategically and to supplement the support that can 
be delivered by team members in career pathways, 
welfare and learning support. All VCAL students 
were the pilots for the Institute’s employability skills 
project.    

Disability Liaison Services implemented a new 
Disability Action Plan to guide practice for the 
coming three years and Learning Support Plans 
to guide our specialised support of students. The 
Disability Action Plan was developed with a high 
degree of consultation with staff, students and other 
stakeholders. Implementation began on many of the 
actions prescribed, to the benefit of students.  
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Freedom of Information 
(FOI) Access Arrangement
Requests for access to documents of Box Hill Institute 
under the Freedom of Information Act, 1982, are the 
responsibility of the Institute Manager Freedom of 
Information. Requests for information must be in writing 
and should be addressed to:

Ms Stephanie Tomasetti
Manager, Freedom of Information
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road, 
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9396

It is Institute policy to facilitate a person’s access to 
his/her own file. Requests for access need not be made 
under the Freedom of Information Act. However, if an 
applicant is not satisfied, or if he/she wishes, the request 
may be made formally as a Freedom of Information 
request.

Any student may see his/her personal record by 
applying to:

Ms Stephanie Tomasetti
Manager, Freedom of Information
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road, 
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9396

Any staff member may ask to see his/her personnel file 
by applying to:

Mr Wayne Shevlin
Manager, Human Resource Services
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9440

2005 FOI activities
There were four requests for information to be supplied 
under the Freedom of Information Act during the 2004 
to 2005 reporting period.

Identification documents
It is the aim of the Freedom of Information Act to 
make the maximum amount of information available 
to Victorians, promptly and inexpensively. Written FOI 
requests should be as specific and precise as possible so 
they can be processed efficiently.
Requests for access must contain sufficient details 

concerning the record to enable the Manager, Freedom of 
Information to identify the material required and should 
also include the applicant’s telephone number and mailing 
address for contact purposes.  The applicant may wish to 
use the request pro-forma produced by the Government 
Printer and available from the Institute Manager, Freedom 
of Information. Information about the subject and the date 
of the document sought should be indicated as precisely as 
possible.

Where a request fails to provide the necessary information 
to identify the documents requested precisely, the Institute 
Manager, Freedom of Information is obliged to assist the 
requestor make a request which will identify the documents 
sought.

Office hours and charges
The prescribed $21.00 fee should accompany all requests 
made under FOI. Where access is granted to inspect, obtain 
or purchase material, arrangements can be made during 
office hours Monday to Friday 9.00am – 4.30pm. Charges for 
access to documents will be in accordance with the Freedom 
of Information (Access Charges) Regulation 1983. (Charges 
will cover costs incurred for time spent in conducting a 
routine search for the documents, the cost of supervising the 
inspection of a document and the cost of supplying copies of 
a document). Where a charge to cover costs is to be made the 

applicant will be advised.

Photocopying fee

20 cents per A4 page.

Search fees

When the Institute has to identify and locate documents 
there is a charge of $20 per hour.

Deposits

A deposit of $25 may be requested before the Institute will 
grant access where charges will be substantial.

Maximum charge

A maximum charge of $100 applies; excepting computer 
stored information, as per section 19 of the Act.

These charges will be waived if the applicant is a Member 
of Parliament, if the information is accessed in the public 
interest, if the applicant is impecunious or if, in the opinion 
of the Manager, Freedom of Information, the charges did not 
exceed $100.
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Compliance Index

Report of Operations
Reg

4.2 (g)                        Prepared according to Financial Management Act 1994.                                     vi
4.2 (h)                        Prepared according to Financial Reporting Directions                                          vi
4.2 (j)                          Signed and dated by the Accountable Officer                                                        vi

General information
22                               Manner of establishment and relevant Minister                                                     13
22                               Objectives, functions, powers and duties                                                                 13
22                               Nature and range of service provision                                                                      6

Nature and range of service and committees served
22                               Organisational chart                                                                                                     16
4.5.1.1                        Council structure including committees, functions, members                            10
4.5.1.1                        Council structure including members of the Council – their skills, 
                                   knowledge and experience, meetings attended                                                    11
4.5.1.1                        Council members - training undertaken                                                                  12
4.5.1.1                        Council values, code of conduct, summary of performance and activities       13
22                               Statement of workforce data                                                                                      15
22                               Statement on application of employment and conduct principles                    35
22                               Occupational health and safety performance indicators, including 
                                   assessments and measures taken to improve OH&S                                             51 
22                               Industrial relations and details of time lost through industrial accidents 
                                   and disputes                                                                                                                   36

Disclosures
10                               Relevant clauses of Victorian legislation with statutory disclosure 
                                   requirements – a list                                                                                                      41
10                               Short description                                                                                                           41 
10                               Page where disclosure is made                                                                                  41
11                               Ex-gratia payments incurred and written off                                                           xxxvi 
21 (1)(a)                     Responsible persons – a list                                                                                         xxxv
21 (1)(b)                    Total remuneration of all responsible persons                                                         xxxv 
21 (1)(c)                     Responsible persons remuneration in bands of $10,000                                      xxxv 
21 (1)(d)                     Other sources of income for responsible person                                                    xxxvi 
21 (2)(a)                     Total remuneration of all executive officers                                                             xxxvii 
21 (2)(b)                    Base remuneration for executive officers                                                                 xxxvii
21 (2)(c)                     Accrual principles applied                                                                                           vi 

Financial information
22                               Four-year financial results                                                                                            39 
22                               Significant changes in financial position                                                                  39
22                               Operational and budgetary objectives                                                                     38 
22                               Events occurring after balance date affecting operations                                    xl 
22                               Consultancies > $100,000 and future commitments                                             40 
22                               Individual consultancies < $100,000,                                                                         40
22                               Total expenditure of these consultancies                                                                 40
22                               Consistent financial information                                                                                x
22                               Institute’s operations and activities including additional appropriate or 
                                   mandated information                                                                                                 40
27                               Audited statement of performance including targets, indicators, results 
                                   and variance                                                                                                                   xliv

Other relevant information
22                               Application of the Freedom of Information Act 1982                                            41, 82 
22                               Compliance with  Building Act 1993                                                                         50

com
pliance index
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22                              Application of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001                                         24
22                              Implementation and compliance with National Competition Policy                  41
22                               Institute’s environmental performance                                                                      51
22                               Statement that the information listed is available on request                               41
22                               Declarations of pecuniary interests                                                                             41, xxxv 
22                               Shares held by a senior officer as nominee                                                               xxxv 
22                               Publications produced and availability                                                                      77
22                               Major promotional, public relations and marketing activities                               76 
22                               Changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged                                    40 
s. 12I                          Compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions and charges.                                40
22                               Major external reviews carried out                                                                              40
22                               Major research and development activities                                                              21
22                               Overseas visits including objectives and outcomes                                                41
22                               Major committees sponsored by the Institute                                                         13

Superannuation liabilities and disclosures
23                               Name and type of superannuation scheme                                                             xxxiv
23                               Basis for calculating superannuation, cost of superannuation scheme, 
                                  outstanding amount of contributions to defined contribution schemes          xxxiv
23                               Details of any loan to the entity from the scheme                                                  xxxiv
23                               Superannuation liabilities                                                                                             xxxiv
                                  Financial and other information concerning Institute’s international operations 
                                  Nature of strategic and operational risks, strategies to manage risks, performance 
                                  measures and targets for off-shore operations, outcomes achieved                   xx

Financial Statements
49(a)                          Information required by the Minister                                                                         v
49(b)                          Prepared in format required by the Minister                                                             i - xliv
49(c)                          Present the financial transactions for financial year                                                 viii
49(d)                          Present the financial position at the end of that year                                             44, viii
49(e)                          Certified by the accountable officer as required by the Minister                          vi
4.2 (a)                        AAS and AASB standards                                                                                              39
4.2 (a)                        Financial reporting directions                                                                                      xii
4.2 (a)                        Business rules                                                                                                                  xii
4.2 (b)                        Statement of financial performance                                                                           viii
4.2 (b)                        Statement of financial position                                                                                   ix
4.2 (b)                        Statement of cash flows.                                                                                               xi
4.2 (b)                        Notes to the financial statements                                                                               xii
4.2 (c)                        Transactions during the year and the financial position at the end year 
                                  presented fairly                                                                                                               vi
4.2 (c)                        Prepared in accordance with this direction and applicable Financial 
                                  Reporting Directions.                                                                                                     vi
4.2 (c)                        Comply with AAS and AASB standards                                                                      xii
4.2 (d)                        $10,000,000, the amounts to the nearest $1000.                                                     i - xliv
4.2 (d)                        $1,000,000,000, the amounts to the nearest $100,000.                                           i - xliv
4.2 (e)                        Reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee                                        i - xliv

Financial performance
p4.1(a)I, 5.4               Revenues from ordinary activities                                                                               viii
p4.1(a)ii, 5.4              Expenses from ordinary activities, excluding borrowing costs                              viii
p4.1(a)iii, p8.1(a)      Borrow costs expense                                                                                                    viii
p4.1(b)I, 4.2              Result from ordinary activities                                                                                      viii
p5.5                           Extraordinary items                                                                                                        viii
p4.1(b)(v), 4.2           Result for the year                                                                                                           viii
p4.1(c)(iii)                  Increase (decrease) on adoption of Accounting Standard                                     viii
p4.1(c)i                      Net increase (decrease) in asset revaluation reserve                                               viii
p4.1(c)iii                    Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments recognised directly 
                                  in equity                                                                                                                           viii
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p4.1(a)                       Current assets                                                                                                                 ix
p4.1(c)                       Non-current assets                                                                                                        ix
p7.1(a)                       Classes of assets including: cash assets, receivables, inventories, other 
                                   financial assets, other assets, intangible assets, property plant and 
                                   equipment.                                                                                                                     ix
p7.3(c)                       Total assets                                                                                                                      ix
p4.1(a)                       Current liabilities
p7.3(e)                       Non-current liabilities                                                                                                   ix
p7.1(b)                       Classes of liabilities including: payables, interest bearing liabilities, 
                                   provisions                                                                                                                        ix
p7.3(e)                       Total liabilities                                                                                                                 ix
p7.1(c)ii                     Reserves                                                                                                                          ix
p7.1(c)i                      Contributed capital                                                                                                       ix
p7.3(h)                       Total equity                                                                                                                     ix
Cash flows
p5.1                            Cash flow statement activities: operating activities, investing activities 
                                   and financing activities                                                                                                xi
p4.3                            Cash at the beginning and end of the year                                                              xi
p12.2                         Financing arrangements                                                                                              xi
p11.1                         Non-cash financing and investing activities                                                            xi
Notes
p8.1                            Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies                                             xii
p8.1(c)                       Historical cost                                                                                                                 xii
p4.4                            Rounding off                                                                                                                  xii
p5.2(a)                       Investments
p11.2(a)                     Depreciation and amortisation                                                                                   xii
p11.2(b)                     Depreciation methods                                                                                                 xii
p10.1                         Inventories                                                                                                                      xiv
p21, 22                      Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave                                                     xv
p52(c)                        Superannuation                                                                                                            xv, xxxiv
p8.1(b)                       Doubtful debts                                                                                                               xxiv
p7.1, 5.1 p9.1, 
11.2(a)                        Leases (leasehold improvements)                                                                              xvi
p5.1(a), 5.2(b)
Valuation of non-current assets
p12.1(a)                     Cash                                                                                                                                 xvi
p12.2(a)                     Revenue from operating activities                                                                             xxii
p12.2(b)                     Revenue from non operating activities                                                                     xxii
p12.1(b)iv                  Investment income                                                                                                       xxii
p.12.1(b)vi                 Dividends                                                                                                                        n/a
P5.6(a)
P12.1(b)vii                 Gross Proceeds from sale of non current assets                                                      xxii
p12.1(b)viii                Rent                                                                                                                                  xxii
p12.1(b)x                   Other Revenue                                                                                                               xxii
p12.2(b)                     Revenue from non operating activities                                                                     xxii
p12.2(a), (b)              ANTA/DEST and State current C’wealth/ANTA/DEST 
                                   specific funded programs                                                                                            xxii
p12.2(c)                     Assumption of liabilities by Government                                                                 n/a
p12.2(a), (b)              ANTA/DEST capital                                                                                                        xxii
p5.4                            Note 3 - Expenses from ordinary activities                                                               xxiii
P11.2(c)                     Note 3 – Depreciation & amortisation                                                                       xxiii
P11.1/2                      Note 3 – Rent/leasing charges                                                                                    xxiii
p5.6                            Note 3 – Written down value on disposal of non current assets                         xxiii
p5.2(b)                       Note 4 - Cash assets                                                                                                      xxiv
5.2(b)                         Note 5 - Receivables                                                                                                     xxiv
P8.1(b)                       Note 5 – Provision for doubtful debts                                                                       xxiv
p10.1(c)                     Note 6 - Inventories (Current)                                                                                     xxiv
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p10.1(d)                     Note 7 - Other financial assets (non-current)                                                            xxv
11(a)                           Note 9 - Intangible assets (amortisation)                                                                   xxv
p7.6                            Note 10 - Non-Current: property, plant and equipment reconciliations             xxv
p7.6(b)                       Note 10 - Disposals                                                                                                         xxv
p7.6(c)                       Note 10 – Net additions through restructuring                                                       n/a
p7.6(d)                      Note 10 – Revaluation increments (decrements)                                                     xxvi
p7.6(g)                       Note 10 – Depreciation/amortisation expense                                                        xxvi
p7.6                            Note 10 – Carrying amount at end of year                                                                xxvii
p11.2(c)                     Note 10 - Depreciation                                                                                                  xxvii
p11.2(c)                     Note 10 - Amortisation                                                                                                  xxv
p12.2vii                      Note 10 - Profit/loss on sale of non-current assets                                                  xxv
p5.2(b)                       Note 11 - Payables                                                                                                          xxx
p5.2(b)                       Note 12 - Interest bearing liabilities                                                                            xxx
p8.3(c)(i)                    Note 12 liabilities - secured and unsecured (Current)                                             xxx
p8.1(d)                       Note 12 liabilities - assets pledged as securities                                                       xxxi
p12.2(a)                     Note 12 liabilities - credit standby arrangements                                                    xxxi
p4.1,4.2                      Note 12 liabilities - borrowing costs capitalised                                                       xxxi
p51(a)                        Note 13 - Provisions (current and non-current)                                                        xxii
p12.5                         Note 14 - Equity and movements in equity                                                              xxii
p5.1                            Note 17 - Leases                                                                                                              xxxiii
p11.1                         Note 17 leases - finance lease liability                                                                        xxxiii
p11.2                         Note 17 leases - operating lease commitment                                                        xxxiii
p17.2                         Note 17 leases - operating lease receivables                                                            xxxiii
p8.3(d)                       Note 18 - Commitments for expenditure                                                                  xxxiii
p5.2a, 5.2.1                Note 24 - Financial Instruments - terms, conditions and accounting policies   xxxvii
p5.4, 5.4.9                  Note 24 – Financial Instruments - interest rate risk                                                  xxxviii
p5.6(b), (c)                 Note 24 - Financial Instruments - net fair values                                                      xxxix
p11.1                         Note 25 - Non-cash financing and investing activities                                           xl
p5.1(a) - (d)               Note 26 - Events occurring after reporting date                                                      xl
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FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
APPENDIX A 

Consolidated Lnstitute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO PO00 $'OOO $'OOO 

NOTE A1 - INCOME STATEMENT 

Total operating expenses 

Delivery provision and support activity 
Administration and general services activity 
Property plant and equipment services activity 
Student and other services activity 
Total expenses from continuing activities 

NOTE A2 - INCOME STATEMENT 

Delivery provision and support activity 

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances 
superannuation 
Payroll tax 
Other salary related costs 
Consumables 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Travel and motor vehicle expenses 
Other direct delivery expenses 

NOTE A3 - INCOME STATEMENT 

Administration and general services activity 

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances 
Superannuation 
Payroll tax 
Other salary related costs 
Consumables 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Communication expenses 
Fees 
Travel and motor vehicle expenses 
Other expenses 



FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
APPENDIX A 

Consolidated institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

roo0  r o o 0  roo0  $'OOO 

NOTE A4 - INCOME STATEMENT 

Property, plant and equipment services activity 

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances 
Superannuation 
Payroll tax 
Other salary related costs 
Consumables 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Energy costs 
Equipment 
Conhact services 
Rentileasing charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other expenses 

NOTE A5 - INCOME STATEMENT 

Student and other services activity 

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances 
Superannuation 
Payroll tax 
Other salary related costs 
Consumables 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Other expenses 
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A U D I T O R  G E N E R A L  
V I C T O R I A  

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

Box Hill Institute of Technical and Further Education 

T o  the Members of the  Parliament of Victoria and Members of the Council of the Institute 

Scope 

Tlie Financial Report 
The accompanying financial report for the year ended 31 December 2005 of Box Hill Institute of 
Technical and Further. Education consists of the income statement, balance sheet, statement of 
changes in equity, cash flow statement, notes to and forming part of the financial report, and the 
supporting declaration. The financial report includes the consolidated financial statements of the 
economic entity, comprising Box Hill Institute of Technical and Further Education and the 
entities it controlled at the year's end or fiom time to time during the financial year as disclosed 
in note 1.2 to the fmancial statements. 

The Members of the Council of Box Hill Institute of Technical and Further Education are 
responsible for: 

the preparation and presentation of the fmancial report and the information it contains, 
including accounting policies and accounting estimates 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to 
record its transactions and affairs, and prevent and detect fraud and errors. 

Audit Approach 
As required by the Acrdit Act 1994, an independent audit has been carried out in order to express 
an opinion on the financial report. The audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of 
material misstatement. 

The audit procedures included: 

examining information on a test basis to provide evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report 
assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used, and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the members 
obtaining written confirmation regarding the material representations made in conjunction 
with the audit 
reviewing the overall presentation of information in the financial report. 

These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, 
the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and other 
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, and the financial reporting 
requirements of the Finnrlcial Managernerr1 Act 1994, so as to present a view which is consistent 
with my understanding of the Institute's and the economic entity's financial position, and their 
financial performance and cash flows. 

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

I 
Vlclorfan Auditor-General's Olllee Level 34, 140 William Slreet, Mclboume Victoria 3W0 

Telephone (03) 8601 7000 Facsimile (03) 8601 7010 Ernail commcnts@oudil vic gov nu Wcbsite w w v  nudil vic gov au 

Auditing in the Public Intercsl 



A U D I T O R  G E N E R A L  
V I C T O R I A  

Independent Audit Report (continued) 

Independence 
The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitu~iort Act 1975. The 
Auditor-General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers are 
to be exercised. The Auditor-Genernl and his staff and delegates comply with all applicable 
independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession. 

Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting 
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, and the financial 
reporting requirements of the Finnr7ciol Mnlragerl~en! Ac! 1994, the financial position of Box Hill 
Institute ofTechnica1 and Further Education and the economic entity as at 31 December 2005 and 
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. 

MELBOURNE 
15 March 2006 

I 
Vldorlan Audllor-Gencrnl'r Omcc Lcvcl34, 140 William Slrcct, Melbourne Vicurria 3000 

Telephone (03) 8601 7000 Facsirnilc (03) 8601 7010 Enuil cammenb@audil vic gov au Webaile w w  nudil vic gov nu 

Auditing in the Public lnlercrl 

vi 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2005 
DECLARATION BY PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL, 

CJ3IEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
AND CHIEF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

We cemfy that the attached financial report for the BOX HILL 
INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION and the 
Economic Entity have been prepared in accordance with Standing 
Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial 
Reporting Directions, Australian accounting standards and other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements. 

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the income 
statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow 
statement and notes to and forming part of the financial statements, presents 
fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 31 December 2005 
and fmancial position of the Institute and the Economic Entity as at 31 
December 2005. 

We are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars 
included in the financial report to be misleading or inaccurate. There are 
reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute and the Economic Entity 
will be able to pay its debts as and when they became due and payable. 

Prcsideot of Council 
Date:!.%.&./.>!-. 

................................. 
ohn David Maddock 

Chief Executive Officer 
~ a t e : \ ~ / , ? ~ . / . ~ .  k 

, 
ce & Accounting Officer 

vii 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO $'OOO $'OOO VOOO 

Revenues from continuing activities 

~ ~ e r a t i n g  activities 
- Government contributions - operating 
- Government contributions - capital 
- Fee for service 
- Student fees and charges 
- Sale of goods 

Non Operating activifie~ 
- Other income 

Expenses from continuing activities 

Employee benefits 

Depreciation and amortisation 
Other expenses 

Operating result from continuing activities 

Net operating result for the year 

... 
V l l l  

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



BOX HLLL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Other assets 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
Total current assets 

Non-current assets 
Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Held-tomaturity investmenls 
Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Payables 
Employee benefits 
Provisions 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Employee benefits 
Provisions 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

EQUITY 
Reserves 
Contributed capital 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 

Total equity 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

YO00 $'OOO $'ooo $'OOO 

ix 
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, 



BOX HILL LNSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Total equity at the beginning of the financial year 

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings 
Net income recognised directly in equity 
Net operating result for the year 

Total recognised income and expense for the year 

Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as 
equity holders: 
Contributed Capital 
Dishbutions paid 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$000 $000 9000 $'OOO 

Total equity at the end of the financial year 17 157,000 139,585 153,676 136,526 

X 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
CASH n o w  STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'a00 $'OOO VOOO roo0 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 
User fees and charges 
Interest received 
Distributions received 
Goods and Services Tax recovered 

Payments 
Suppliers and employees 

Cash flows from government 
Government contributions - operating 
Government contributions - capital 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 
equipment 
Payments for intangible assets 
Payments for held-to-maturity invesments 
Loans to other parties 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents a t  the end of the financial 
year 

Financing arrangements 
Non-cash financing and investing activities 

xi 

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



BOX HILL IKSTITUTI.: OF TECHNICAI. AND FURTHER EDL'CAI'ION 
NOTES TO AND FORTIIKG PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Consolidated Financial Report is a general purpose Financial Report prepared in accordance with Australian 
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB), Urgent Issues Group (UIG) and AASB Interpretations, the requirements of the 
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Directions issued thereunder. 

The Financial Report consists of the Financial Statenients of the Institute and the consolidated accounts of the Economic 
Entity comprising the Institute as parent entity and the entity it controlled at the end of, or during, the financial year. 

The Financial Report of the Institute and the controlled entity of the Institute as the parent entity comply with the 
requirements of all Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS). 

The following is a summary of the accounting policies adopted by the Economic Entity in the preparation of the Financial 
Report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

First time Adoption ofAustralian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 

The Economic Entity has prepared the financial report in accordance with the Australian equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS) fiom 1 January 2005. 

In accordance with the requirements of AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to Intemational 
Financial Reporting Standards, adjustments to the Institute and consolidated accounts resulting fiom the 
introduction of A-IFRS have been applied retrospectively to 2004 comparative figures excluding cases where 
optional exemptions available under AASB 1 have been adopted. These consolidated accounts are the first 
financial statements of the Institute to be prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to A-IFRS. 

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented. The Economic Entity 
has however elected to adopt the exemptions available under AASB 1 relating to AASB 132: Financial 
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, and AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 
Refer Note 27 for further details. 

Reconciliations of the transition fiom previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP) to 
. A-IFRS have been included in Note 29 to this report. 

Reporting Basis and Conventions 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the 
revaluation of selected classes of non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair 
value basis of accounting has been applied. 

Critical accou?:ting estimates 

The preparation of the financial report in conformity with A-IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Economic Entity's 
accounting policies. 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 

The consolidated Financial Report incorporate the assets and liabilities of the entity controlled by the Institute as at 
3 1 December 2005 and the results of the controlled entity for the year then ended. 

The Institute and its controlled entity, Box Hill Enterprises Ltd., together are referred to in this report as the 
Economic Entity. The effect of all transactions between the controlled entity and the Institute are eliminated in full. 

1.3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with fmancial institutions, other short term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.4 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSlFlED AS HELD FOR SALE 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of their earrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available 
for immediate sale in its prcsent condition. 

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. 
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any 
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date ofthe sale 
of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of derecognition. 

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classitied as held for sale. Interest and other 
expenses attributable to non-current assets classified as held for sale continue to be recognised. 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. 

1.5 RECEIVABLES 

Trade rcceivables are carried at nominal amounts due less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for 
doubtful debts is maintained to recognise that collection of the full nominal amount is no longer probable. 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial instrunlents are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or liability not at fair 
value through profit and loss, transactions costs that are directly atlributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
f m c i a l  asset or financial liability. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial instruments are measured as set 
out below. 

1.6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

A financial asset is classified in this category ifacquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if 
so designated by management and within the requirement of AASB139: Recognition and Measurement of Financial 
Instruments. Derivatives are also eategorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Realised and 
wealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the income 
statement in the period in which they arise. 

1.6.2 Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market and are stated at mortised eost using the effective interest rate method. 

1.6.3 Held-to-maturity investments 

These investments have fixed maturities and it is the Economic Entity's intention to hold these investments to 
maturity. Any held-to-maturity investments held by the Economie Entity are stated at mortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method 

1.6.4 Financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at mortised costs, comprising original debt less principal 
payments and amortisation. 

1.6.5 Fair Value 

Fair value is determined based on eurrent bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 
determine the fair value for all unlisted seeurities, including recent arm's length transactions, by reference to similar 
instruments and option pricing models. 

1.7 INVENTORIES 

Inventories include goods and other property held for sale. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined principally through the 
first-in. first-out method. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTMG POLICIES (Cont.) 

I .8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave arising £tom services rendered by employees to balance date. 

The calculation of cmployee benefits include all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows as at reporting date. 

1.8.1 Wagcs and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave 
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised at their nominal values using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. Liabilities in respect of employee benefits whlch are 
not expected to be settled within I2 months are measured at their present value of the estimated future cash 
outSlows to be made by the Economic Entity in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date. 

1.8.2 Long service leave 

A liability for long service leave is recognised and is measured as the present value of expected future payments to 
be made in respect of serviccs provided by cmployees up to the reporbhg date. Consideration is given to expected 
future wagc and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments 
are discounted using interest rates on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash flows. The nominal amount of long service leave expected to be paid in the next 
financial year is included as a current liability. 

1.8.3 Performance payments 

Performance payments for TAFE Executive Offieers are based on a percentage of the annual salary package 
provided under the contract of cmployment. A liability is accrued under the term of the contracts at reporting date 
and paid out in the next financial year. 

1.8.4 Superannuation 

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of superannuation represents the contributions made by the 
Institute to the superannuation plan in respcct of current services of current Economic Entity staff. Superannuation 
contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan. 

The Economic Entity does not recognise any deferred liability in rcspect of the plan(s) because the Institute has no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay 
superannuation contributions as and when they fall due. Thc Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and 
discloses the Statc's defined benefit liabilities in its financial report. 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.9 LEASES 

A distinction is made between finance leases which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all 
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased non-current assets, and operating leases under which the 
lessor effectively retains all such risks and benefits. 

Leased payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lesser are 
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

As at reporting date the Economic Entity did not have any finance leases. 

1.10 NON-CURRENT PHYSICAL ASSETS 

Non-current physical assets (with the exception of library collections) with a cost in excess of $1,000 are 
capitalised. All library acquisitions are brought to account. 

Land is measured at the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
arm's length transaction. 

Buildings are measured at depreciated replacement cost. 

Other non-current physical assets are measured at cost. 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight h e  method to allocate their 
cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, commencing from the time 
the asset is held ready for use. 

The assets' residual values anduseful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance date 

The depreciation rates used for each Class of depreciable asset are: 

Ratemates 
Buildings 1.25% - 3.33% 
Plant and equipment 2.5% - 20% 
Computer equipment 33.3% 
Motor vehicles 50% 
Library collections 10% 

The depreciation rates applied to buildings have changed compared to the prior year from a range between 1.25% 
and 5% in 2004 to a range between 1.25% and 3.33% in 2005. The financial effect of this change is to increase 
depreciation charges for the year by an estimated $742,000. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds mlth carrying amount. These are included in 
the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, it is the Economic Entity's policy to transfer the amounts 
included in the assct revaluation reserve in respect of those assets to accumulated surplus/(deficit). 

All assets must be tested for impairment on an annual basis. Such assets are tested to ascertain whether the carrying 
amounts exceed their recoverable amounts. Refer to note 1.1 1 for further detail. 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 -STATEMENT OF  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.10 NON-CURRENT PHYSICAL ASSETS (Cont.) 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the 
financial period in which they are incurred. 

Assets other than those that are carried at cost are revalued with saicient  regularity to ensure that the carrying 
amount of each asset does not differ materially &om its fair value. This revaluation process normally occurs every 
threc to four years for assets with useful lives of less than 30 years or six to eight years for assets with useful lives 
of 30 or greater years. Revaluation increments or decrements arise &om differences between an asset's depreciated 
cost or deemed cost and fair value. 

Revaluation increments are credited directly to equity in the asset revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that 
an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that class of asset previously recognised as expense in 
determining the net operating result, the increment is recognised as revenue in determining the net operating result 
for the year. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net operating result for the year, except that, 
to the extcnt that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of assets, they 
are debited to the asset revaluation reserve. 

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property, plant and 
equipment are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

Asset revaluation reserves are transferred to accumulated surplus/(deficit) on derecognition of the relevant asset 

1.11 IMPAIRMENT 

Assets are assessed annually for indicators of impairment, except for: 

- inventories; 
- non-current assets classified as held for sale, and 
- hancial insthument assets. 

If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds 
their rccoverable amount. Where an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is 
written-off by a charge to the income statement except to the extent that the write-dom can be debited to an asset 
revaluation reserve amount applicable to that class of asset. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 -STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1 .I2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance 

Intangible asscts are recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is 
expected that additional future economic bencfits will flow to the Economic Entity. 

Amortisation is allocated to intangible assets with finitc useful lives on a systematic basis over the asset's useful 
life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual 
reporting period. In addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there are 
indicators that the intangible asset concerned is impaired. If so, the assets coneemed are tested as to whether their 
cawing value exceeds their recoverable amount. 

Any excess of the carrying amount over the recovcrable amount is recognised as an impairment loss, 

A summary of the policies applied to the Economic Entity's intangible assets is as follows: 

Computer Software 
Useful life Finite 
Method used 3 years straight line 
Internally generateaacquired Acquired 
Impairment testiRecoverable amount testing Amortisation method reviewed at each financial year-end. 

Reviewed annually for indicator of impairment. 

1 .I3 GOODS AND SERVICES TAX 

Revenues, expenses and assets arc recognised net of Goods and Services Tax (GST) except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable, in which case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or part 
of an item of expense. The net amount of GST recoverable h m ,  or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO) is included as part of receivables or payables in the income statement. The GST component of a receipt or 
payment is recognised on a gross basis in the cash flow statement in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standard AASB 107 "Cash Flow Statement". 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 -STATEMENT OF  SIGNIFICANT ACCOLTNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.14 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Government contributions are reeognised as revenue in the period when the Eeonomic Entity gains control of the 
contributions. Control is reeognised upon receipt or notification by relevant authorities of thc right to receive a 
contribution for the current period. 

Contributed Capital - If the h d s  source for State Capital Contributions is "output funding" then capital grants are 
treated as income. Where special funding is made available for capital purposes, Office of Training and Tertiary 
Educationnotilics the Economic Entity that such funding is a "Contribution by the Owner" and should be treated as 
contributed capital. Commonwealth capital funds are treated as income. Funds generated by the Economic Entity 
for specific projects are not "Contributions by the Owner" and are treated as income. 

Fee for service revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage completion of each contract in the reporting 
period in wbich the services are rendered. Where fee for service revenue of a reciprocal nature has been clearly 
reeeived in respect of programs or services to be delivered in the following year, such amounts are deferred and 
disclosed as revenue in advance. 

Ancillary trading revenue comprising revenue from printing for external clients, bookshop sales and hospitality 
sales and is recognised as revenue on receipt or delivery. 

Student fees and charges revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage of services provided. Where student 
fees and charges revenue has been clearly reeeived in respect of eourses or programs to be delivered in the 
following year, any non-refundable portion of the fees is treated as revenue in the year of receipt and the balance as 
revenue in advance. 

Investment income from cash at bank and on hand, deposits at call and held-to-maturity investments is brought to 
account on a proportional basis taking into account interest rates applicable to the financial assets. 

Other revenue eomprises revenuc from car parking and leasing of facilities and is recognised as revenue on receipt. 

Assets received free of charge are recognised as revenue when the Economic Entity gains control of them. The 
benefits derived from these assets are recorded at their fair value in the financial report. 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.15 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

1.15.1 Functional and prescntation currency 

The functional currency of each group entity is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which that entity operates. Thc consolidated financial report is prcsented in Australian dollars which is the 
Economic Entity's functional and presentation currency. 

1.15.2 Transaction and balanccs 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date 
of the transaction. Forcign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange late. Non-monetary 
items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non- 
monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were 
determined. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement, except 
whcre deferred in cquity as a quahfymg cash flow or net investment hedge. 

Exchange differences arising on thc translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent 
that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the income 
statement. 

1.16 RESERVES 

1.16.1 Asset Revaluation Reserve 

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current 
physical assets, as described in note 1.10. 

1.16.2 Institute Development Fund 

The Institute Development Fund is used to set aside funds for the future development of the Institute through the 
purchase of properties and investments in strategic initiativcs as identified by Council. 

1.17 ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS 

All amounts shown in the Financial Report are expressed to the nearest thousand dollars, where applicable 

1.18 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

When required by Australian Accounting Standards, comparative information has been adjusted to conform to 
changes in presentation for the current fmancial year. Refer also note 1.20. 



BOX 1III.I. IKSTITL'TE OF TECHNICAI. AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORVIKG PART OF TIIE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE I - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

1.19 AASB 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES 

The Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) issued AASB 7 Financial Inshuments: Disclosures in August 
2005 for application to annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2007 with early adoption permitted 
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The Economic Entity has decided not to early 
adopt AASB 7 and will adopt the standard when required. 

On the adoption of AASB 7, the Economic Entity win be required to apply the disclosure requirements in relation 
to financial inslnunents in accordance with AASB 7, however the presentation requirements of AASB 132 will 
continue to apply. AASB 7 requires further balance sheet and income statement disclosures, as well as both 
quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the Economic Entity's exposures to risks arising from fmancial 
instruments. 

1.20 CORRECTION OF ERROR IN RECORDING OF DEPRECIATION IN PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 

Due to a depreciation on buildings journal en@ being incorrectly processed in the Institute's general ledger, 
depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2004 was understated. This error had the effect of: 

-understating Institute and Consolidated depreciation and accumulated depreciation on buildings by $90,000; and 
-overstating Institute and Consolidated net operating result for the year, total assets and accumulated 
surplus/(deficit). 

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior year, as 
described above. 

Refer also notes 29.1.1 (b) (d) and29.1.2 (h) 
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Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO $'OOO $'OOO $'OOO 

NOTE 2 - REVENUE FROM CONTINUING ACTIVITIES 

NOTE 2.1 -GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTIONS - OPERATING 

ANTMState current and C'wealWANTA specific 
funded program 48,452 44,527 48,452 44,527 
Other contributions 2,702 2,308 2,702 2,276 

51,154 46.835 51.154 46.803 

NOTE 2.2 - GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTIONS - CAPITAL 

ANTA capital 
State capital 

NOTE 2.3 - FEE FOR SERVICE 

Fee for service - government 
Fee for service - international operations 

Onshore 
Offshore 

Fee for service -other 

NOTE 2.4 -OTHER UVCOME 

Donations and contributions 22 4 22 4 
Investment income 1,183 1,205 933 991 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment I2 47 98 47 84 
Distribution received from controlled entity 1,000 

' Resources received free of charge 281 281 
Other revenue 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OD0 $'OOO $'OOO $'OOO 

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES FROM CONTINUMG ACTIVITIES 

NOTE 3.1 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Salaries, wages, ovehne  and allowances 
Superannuation 
Payoll tax 
Long service leave expense 
Annual leave expense 
Other salary related costs 
Total employee benefits 

NOTE 3.2 - OTHER EXPENSES 

Auditors' remuneration 24 
Cost of good sold including ancillary trading 
Bad and doubtful debts 5 
Communication expenses 
Consumables 
Contract and other services 
Equipment 
Fees & charges 
Grants and subsidies 
Building repairs and maintenance 
Promotional expenses 
Rent and leasing charges 
Staff development 
Travel and motor vehicle expenses 
Utilities 
Write back of depreciation and amortisation 
Write down of shares in lntemational Training 
Australia 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment assets 
Write off of proprty, plant and equipment assets 
Write off of intangible assets 
Discount on loans to other parties 
Other expenses 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Lnstitute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO YO00 YO00 $'OOO 

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1.3,27 

Cash at bank and on hand 
Sholt term deposits 

(a) The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the f w c i a l  year as shown in the cash flow statement as 
follows: 

Balances as above 
Less Bank overdraft 

(b) Cash at bank and on hand 
Cash at bank is invested as funds permit at varying interest rates between 3.3% and 5%. 

( c ) Sholt term deposits 
Sholt term deposits are invested at fmed interest rates varying between 5.58% and 5.60% (2004 : 5.25% and 
5.29%). These deposits have an average maturity of 83 days. 

NOTE 5 -RECEIVABLES 

Current 
Trade receivables 
Allowance for doubtful debts 
Revenue receivable 
GST receivable 
Related party receivable - controlled entity 

Non-Current 27 
Loans to other parties - secured 

Bad and doubtful debts of $4,000 ( 2004 : $131,000) have been expensed during the year. This expense is included 
in other cxpenses. 

NOTE 6 - INVENTORIES 

Current 
Supplies and consumables - at cost 
Work in progrcss - at cost 
Inventories held for sale - a t  cost 
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Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO $'OOO roo0 roo0 

NOTE 7 - OTHER ASSETS 

Current 
Prepayments 

NOTE 8 -OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Non-Current 
Shares: International Training Australia 

NOTE 9 - HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 27 

Non-Current 
Long term deposits 

NOTE 10 -INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Non-Current 
Computer Sofhvare - at cost 

Canying amount at 1 January 
Additions 
Write offs 
Amortisation 
Impairment 
Carrying amount at 3 1 December 

Cost at 1 January 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net carrying amount at 3 1 December 
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Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO $'OOO YO00 9000 

NOTE 11 - NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 

Land 
At net carrying amount (31 Dec 2003) 

Buildings 
At gross carrying amount (31 Dec 2003) 
Accumulated depreciation (31 Dec 2003) (90) (90) (90) (90) 
At net carrying amount (31 Dec 2003) 3,367 3,367 3,367 3,367 
Total non-current assets classified as held for 
sale 10,060 10,060 10,060 10,060 

On 1 January 2004 the above land and buildings previously recognised as property, plant and equipment were 
reclassified as "non-current assets classified as held for sale". Accordingly, on 1 January 2004 these assets were 
mcasured at their net c-g amount on 31 December 2003, which represented their fair value at 31 December 
2002 less depreciation for the year ended 3 1 December 2003. 

The Economic Entity prior to 31 December 2005 has entered into a contract of sale for the land and buildings. 
Settlement date is expected to be 8 March 2006. Prior to this the land and buildings had been subjected to a 
previous contract of sale which was conditional upon certain terms being met. Due to circumstances beyond the 
Economic Entity's control these terms were not met hence settlement did not take place. 
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Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'ooo 9000 $'OOO $'OOO 

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Plant and equipment 
At cost 
AccumuIated depreciation and impairment 

Library collections 
At cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Motor vehicles 
At cost 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Work in progress 
At cost 

Land 
At fair value (3 1 Dec 05) 
At fair value (3 1 Dec 04) 

Buildings 
At fair value (3 1 Dec 05) 
At fair value (3 1 Dec 04) 
Accumulated depreciation 

Computer equipment 
At cost 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Total property, plant & equipment 

Depreciation for the year 
Plant and Equipment 
Library coUections 
Motor vehicles 
BuiIdings 
Computer equipment 

Net gain on disposaI of property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 397 579 397 526 
Less written down value 
Net gain on disposal 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 12 -PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont.) 

Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of plant and equipment (P & E), library collections (Liby), motor 
vehicles (MV), work in progress (WLP), land, buildings (Bldgs) and computer equipment (Comp) classes of assets at the 
beginning and end ofthe current year and previous year are set out below. 

Consolidated 

2005 

Carrying amount at I January 

Additions 

Transfers 

Disposals 

Write affs 

Revaluation increm~lu/(decrements) 

Depreciation 

Write back of depreciation 

Liby MV WlP 
5'000 roo0  5'000 

Land Bldgs 
so00 roo0 

c o w  Total 
9000 roo0 

Impairment (298) (1) (23) (322) 
Carrying amount at 3 1 December 4,492 782 1,113 37,205 97,416 2,192 143,200 

At 1 January 2005 

Cast or fair value 8,043 1,060 1,437 19,304 45,166 55,917 13,123 144,050 

Accumulated depreziation (3,570) (542) (349) - (10.907) (15,368) 
Net carrying a m u n l  4,473 518 1,088 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,216 128,682 

At 3 1 December 2005 

Cast or fair value 9,097 1,307 1,535 37,205 97,416 12,962 159,522 

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment (4,605) (525) (422) - (10,770) (16,322) 

Net carrying amount 4,492 782 1,113 37.205 97,416 2,192 143,200 

lnrt i tuk P & E  Liby MV WlF' Land Bldgs Camp Total 
r oo0  roo0 1'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 1'000 1'000 

2005 

Carrying amamt at 1 January 4,261 518 1.067 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,206 128,439 

Additions 1,223 247 647 239 683 1,485 4,524 

Transfers (31) - (19,543) 35 19,417 122 

Disposals (6) (341) (3) (350) 

Write affs (16) (16) 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) (7,996) 23,370 15,374 

Depreciation (875) (1-70) (274) (1,971) (1,604) (4,844) 

Write hack of depreciation I37 137 

Impair~nent (290) (1) (23) (314) 
Carrying amount at 31 December 4,266 782 1,098 37,205 97,416 2,183 142,950 

At 1 Janualy 2005 

Cast or fair value 7.680 1,060 1,412 19,304 45.166 55,917 12,969 143,508 

Accumulated depreciation (3,419) (542) (345) - (10,763) (15,069) 
Net cur)mg amun t  4,261 518 1,067 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,206 128,439 

At 3 1 December 2005 

Cast or fair value 

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment (4,414) (525) (412) - (10,619) (15,970) 
Net carrying amount 4,266 782 1,098 37,205 97,416 2,183 142,950 

xxviii 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 12 - NON-CURRENT: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont.) 

Ca~rolidated 

2004 

Carrying amount at I January 

Additions 

Disposals 

Write off8 

Rwaluation incremenk/(deereme~~kj 

Depreciation 

P & E  Liby MV WIP Land 
S'OOO $'OOO S'000 $'OOO YO00 

4,476 588 1,056 7,286 39,682 

801 145 802 12,018 1,388 

(481) 

(56) 
4,096 

(804) (159) (289) 

Bldgs Comp 'Total 
PO00 $'000 $'ooo 

48,633 2,490 104,211 

115 1,378 16,647 

(481) 

(56) 
7,992 12,088 

(823) (1,652) (3,727) 
Impailmen1 
Carrying amount a t  31 December 4,473 518 1,088 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,216 128,681 

At 1 January2W4 

Cost or fair value 

Accmulated denreciation and 
impairment 
Net carrying amount 

At 31 December 2004 

Cost or fair value 8,043 1,060 1,437 19,304 45,166 55,917 13,123 144,050 

Accumulated de~mciatian and 
impaimmt 
Net carrying amount 

Institute 

2004 

Canying amount at 1 January 

Additions 

Disposals 

Write affs 

Revaluation inerementsi(deerementsj 

Depreciation 

P & E  Liby MV WE' Iand Bldgs COmP Total 

9000 roo0  S'OOO 
48,633 2,471 103,929 

I15 1,372 16,597 

(442) 

(56) 
7,992 12,088 

(823) (1,637) (3,6773 
lmpaiment 
Canying amount at 31 December 4,261 518 1,067 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,206 128,439 

At I January 2004 

Cost or fair value 

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment (2,651) (618) (354) (813) (8,453) (12.889) 
Net carrylog amount 4,253 588 1,016 7,286 39,682 48,633 2,471 103,919 

At 31 December 2004 

Cast or fair value 

Accumulated depreciation and 
impaimmt (3,419) (542) (345) - (10,763) (15,069) 
Net eanying amount 4.261 518 1,067 19,304 45,166 55,917 2,206 128,439 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$'OOO $I000 $'OOO $'a00 

NOTE 13 - PAYABLES 

Current 
Creditors and accruals 
Revenue in advance 
Related party payable - parent entity 

NOTE I4 - BORROWINGS 

No borrowings were held during the year (2004 : nil). 

NOTE 15 -EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Current 
Employee benefits: 

Long senice leave 
Annual leave 
Accrued days off 
Other 

Non-Current 
Employee benefits: 

Long service leave 
Annual leave 

Total employee benefits 

NOTE 16 - PROVISIONS 
Current 

Other provisions 

Non-Current 
Other provisions 

Total provisions 

Movements during the financial year are set out 
below: 

Opening balance as at 1 January 
Additional provisions raised during the year 
Refer also note 
Balance as at 3 1 December 



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

S'OOO $'OOO S'OOO S'OOO 

NOTE 17 -EQUITY AND MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY 

Composition of Reserves 
Asset revaluation reserve 
* Land 
* Buildings 
Institute development fund 

Asset revaluation reserve 
Land 
Balance 1 January 41,761 37,665 41,761 37,665 
Revaluation incremenff(decrement) on non-current 
assets (7,996) 4,096 (7,996) 4,096 
Balance 31 December 33,765 41,761 33,765 41,761 

Buildings 
Balance 1 January 
Revaluation inerement on non-current assets 
Transfers (to) aecumulated surplusi(deficit) 
Balance 31 December 

Institute development fund 
Balance 1 January 1,000 3,433 1,000 3,433 
Transfers (to) accumulated surplusi(deficit) - (2,433) - (2,433) 
Transfers ham accumulated surplus 2,700 2,700 
Balance 31 December 3,700 1.000 3,700 1.000 

Contributed capital 
Balance 1 January 
Balance 31 December 

Accumulated surplusi(deficit) 
Balance 1 January 18,212 10,756 15,153 8,470 
Transfers fromreserves 1,837 1,837 
Transfers (to) reserves (2,700) (2,700) 
Net operating result for the year 2,041 5,619 1,776 4,846 
Dis!ibutions paid 
Balance 31 December 17.553 18.212 14.229 15.153 

Total equity 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND NJRTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

$I000 $'OOO $'OOO $'ooo 

NOTE 18 - CASHFLOWS 

Reconciliation of net operating result for the year to 
net casb provided byi(used in) operating activities 

Net operating result for the year 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment assets 
Write back of depreciation 
Discount on loans to other parties 
Write down of shares in International Training 
Australia 
Write off of property,plant and equipment assets 
Write off of intang~ble assets 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 
Change in operating assets and liabilities 
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 
Increase/(decrease) in payables 
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating 
activities 



BOX H L L  INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE3IBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2003 

YO00 5'000 YO00 5'000 

NOTE 19 - NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

There were no acquisitions of plant aud equipment by means of finance leases during the year (2004 : nil). 

NOTE 20 -LEASE COMhllTMENTS 

Operating lease commitments 
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the fmancial report: 

Payable: 
not later than I year 
later than I year but not later than 5 years 
later than 5 years 

The Eeonomic Entity leases motor vehicles, property, digital multithnction devices and associated services and 
digital document systems under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to t h y  nine years. The leases 
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. 

NOTE 21 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPEND= 

Capital commitments 
Commitments for the acquisition of property contracted for the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities: 

Payable: 
not later than 1 year 
later than I year but not later than 5 years 
later than 5 years 

Other significant operating commitments 
As at the repoaing date the Economic Entity had no othcr significant operating commitments (2004 : nil) 

NOTE 22 - CONTINGENT LIABLLITIES AND ASSETS 

At 31 December, 2005 the Eeonomic Entity had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets that may have had a material 
effeet on the financial operations of the Economic Entity (2004 : nil). 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

Consolidated Institute 
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004 

S'OOO S'OOO YO00 $'OOO 

NOTE 23 - SUPERANNUATION (refer note 1.8.4) 

Stafing Profile 
The Economic Entity has in its staffing profile a number of employees who are members of the following Public 
Sector Superannuation Schemes. 

State Superannuation Fund of Victoria 
* SERB scheme 
* Revised scheme 
* New scheme 
Victorian Superannuation Fund 
* VicSuper scheme 
* VicSuper top-up scheme 

Contribution details 
The Economic Entity makes contributions for employees who contribute to the funds as follows: 

State Superannuation Fund of Victoria 
* SERB scheme (12.8%) 27 24 27 24 
* Revised scheme (17%) and New Scheme (7.5% 
to 10.8%) 1,687 1,629 1,679 1,625 
Victorian Superannuation Fund 
* VicSuper scheme 
@ased on superannuation guarantee legislation - 9%) 1,972 1,883 1,941 1,867 
Other Superannuation Schemes 
* Other 
@ased an superannuation guarantee legislation - 9%) 41 1 359 364 301 

Total contributions to all funds 

As at 31 December 2005 there were no outstanding contributions payable to the above funds (2004 : nil), 
As at 3 1 December 2005 there were no loans to the Economic Entity from any fund (2004 : nil). 

NOTE 24 - AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

Auditor-General of Victoria 
-Audit and review of financial reports 

Continuous Auditors 
- Other assurance services 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 25 - RESPONSIBLE PERSONS RELATED DISCLOSURES 

The names of persons who were responsible persons at anytime during the financial year, were: 

The Hon. Lynne Kosky IvlP, Minister for Education and Training 

Prof. John Paul Rasa (Chair) Mr John David Maddock 
Ms Christine Millicent Kilmadn Mr Francis Bruce Thompson 
Ms Genevieve Mary Webb Mr Philip Douglas Belcher 
Mr Peter Robert Seamer (resigned 2 February 2005) M Glenn Von Bibra 
Ms Pheobe Garside (resigned 3 1 March 2005) M Fergus Hudson 
;Mr Andres Restrepo (appointed 1 April 2005) Ms Elizabeth White 
Ms Noelene Duff (appointed 19 September 2005) Mr Chris Lobb (appointed 19 September 2005) 

Remuneration of responsible persons 
Remuneration paid to The Hon. Lynne Kosky IvlP is reported in the Annual Repon of the Department of Premier 
and Cabinet. Other relevant interests are declared in the Register of Members' Interests which each member of the 
Parliament completes. 

Consolidated Institute 
2005 2004 2005 2004 
$'OOO VOOO $'ooo vooo 

Remuncration received, or due and receivable from 
the Economic Entity in connection with the 
manaeement of the Economic Entitv. Ineludes - 
termination payments and bonuses paid at end of 
contracts. 297 263 297 263 

Remuneration received, or due and receivable fiom 
the Economic Entity in connection with the 
management of any related party entity. 

The number of responsible persons whose remuneration from the Economic Entity was within the specsed bands 
are as follows: 

Consolidated Institute 
2005 2004 2005 2004 
No. No. No. No. 

Income range 
$0 12 10 12 10 
$60,000 - $69,999 1 1 
$70,000 - $79,999 1 1 
$190,000 - $199,999 1 1 
$220,000 - $229,999 1 I 

Retirement benefits of responsible persons 
There were no amounts paid by the Economic Entity in connection with the retirement of Responsible Persons 
during the financial year. 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMtNG PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 25 - RESPONSIBLE PERSONS RELATED DISCLOSURES (Cont.) 

Executive officers remuneration 
The number of executive offieen, other than responsible persons, included under "Remuneration of Responsible 
Persons" above whose total remuneration exceeded $100,000 during the financial year are shown in their relevant 
income bands. The base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long senice leave payments, redundancy 
payments and retirement benefits. 

Income range 
$100,000 - $109,999 
$110,000-$119,999 
$120,000 - $129,999 
$130,000 - $139,999 
$140,000 - $149,999 
$150,000 - $159,999 
$160,000 - $169,999 
$170,000 - $179,999 

Total Remuneration 
2005 2004 

No No 

Base Remuneration 
2005 2004 

No No 

Total numbers 13 11 13 9 

Total amount 1,859 1,417 1,705 1,287 

Consolidated Institute 
2005 2004 2005 2004 
$'OOO PO00 $3'000 $'OOO 

Total amount represented by: 

Superannuation 
The total amount paid to a superannuation plan or other entity by the Economic Entity in connection with the 
retirement of responsible persons during the financial year. 

Loans 
There were no loans in existence by the Economic Entity to responsible persons or related parties at the date of this 
report (2004 : nil). 

Shares 
No responsible persons of the Economic Entity held shares in related entities (2004 : nil) 

Other transactions 
During the year there were no other transactions other than those disclosed above (2004 : nil) 

NOTE 26 - SEGMENT ACCOUNTING 

The Economic Entity operates predominantly in the Vocational Education and Training Industry. 

xxxvi 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 27 -FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

27.1 TERMS, CONDITIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Economic Entity's accounting policies including the terms and conditions of each class of financial asset, 
financial liability and equity instnunent, bothrecognised and unrecognised at reporting date, are as follows: 

t varying interest rates between 3 . 3 O  

doubtful debts is maintained to recognis 

is no longer probable. 

effective interest rate is 0%. 

. Shares: International Dividends, when declared by the 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 27 -FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont.) 

27.3 NET FAIR VALUES 

The aggregate net fair values of fnancial assets and financial liabilities, recognised and unrecognised at balance 
date, are as follows: 

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and liabilities: 

Aggregate net fair value 

Financial liabilities 

Recognised financial instruments 
Cash and cash equivalent assets, receivables (excluding loans to other parties) and payables. 

Payables 

These financial instnnnents have a short term to maturity. Accordingly, it is considered that their carrying amounts 
reflect fair values. 

8,3951 8,7031 8,3951 8,703 

Long term deposits and Loans to other parties 
The net fair value values of these monetary financial assets are estimated using discounted cash flows analysis, 
based on current interest rates for similar assets with similar risk profiles. 

Total financial liabilities I 8,3951 8.7031 8.3951 8.703 

Shares : ITA 
Since there is no market value for these shares, they are valued at nominal cost 



BOX HILl. INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL A'YD FLrRT1fER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF TIfE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 27 -FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont.) 

27.4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Economic Entity's fmancial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short and long term investments, 
receivables, payables and leases. 

The main risks the Economic Entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign 
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk and pricc risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is managed predominately through a mixture of short term and longer term inves!ments. It is 
generally government policy for the Institute not to incur borrowings. For further details on interest rates refer to 
Note 27.1 

Foreign Currency Risk 
The Economic Entity is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies arising &om the delivery of services in 
currencies other than $A. This risk is managed by natural hedging where possible. 

Credit Risk 
The Economic Entity's maximum exposures to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised 
financial asset is the carrying amount of those asscts as indicated in the Balance Sheet. 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 
The Economic Entity minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade accounts receivable by undertaking 
transactions with a large number of customers. The majority of customers are concentrated in Australia. The major 
customers relate to the provision of Vocational Education and Training services to industry and the community. The 
Economic Entity continues to provide ongoing training, consultancy and other senices for these customers who 
adhere to indushy trade terms. 

Credit risk in trade receivables is managed in the following ways: 
- payment terms are 14 days &om date of invoice; 
- debtors with accounts in excess of 14 days are sent a statement of account, indicating terms of 7 days to make 
payment; and 
- debtors with arrears are sent a reminder notice indicating a further 7 days to make payment before reference of 
their debt to a debt collection agency. 

Liquidity Risk 
The Economic Entity manages liquidity risk by monitoring eash flows and ensuring that maximum funds are 
available for investment. 

Price Risk 
The Economic Entity is exposed to price risk in respect of fee for service and contract senices which are subject 
open market competition. 

NOTE 28 -EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE 

There are no events (2004 : nil) subsequent to balance date that will have a material effect on the Economic Entity's 
operation over subsequent years. 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 29 -EXPLANATION O F  TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO IFRSs 

29.1.1 Reconciliation of equity reported under previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP) 
to equity under Australian equivalents to IFRSs (A-IFRS) 

(a) As at the date of transition to A-IFRS: I January 2004 

Note 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Other assets 
Non-current assets classified as 

Consolidated 

Previous Effect of A-IFRS 
AGAAP transition 

to A-IFRS 
Institute 

Previous Effect of A-IFRS 
AGAAP transition 

Noo-current assets 
Receivables 
Other fmancial assets 
Held-to-maturitv invesbnents 

held for sale (a) 
Total current assets 

Intangible assets (b) 
Property, plant and equipment (a) 
Total non-current assets 
Total assets 
Current liabilities 
Payables 7,63 1 6,064 
Employee benefits 2,338 2,338 2,283 2,283 

- 10,060 10,060 - 10,060 10,060 

Employee benefits I 8,590 8,5901 8,427 8.4271 

26,200 10,060 36,2601 22,411 10,060 32,471 

Provisions 
Total current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Equity 
Reserves 
Contributed canital 

249 249 
10,218 - 10,218 

- .  
Provisions 
Total non-current Liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Net assets 

249 249 
8,596 - 8,596 

(a) Property, plant and equipment under previous AGAAP included some land and buildings that have been 
reclassified as non-current assets classified as held for sale because their cartying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale mansaction rather than through continuing use. 

348 348 
8,938 - 8,938 

19,156 19,156 
121,878 - 121,878 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
Total equity 

(b) Property, plant and equipment under previous AGAAP included some computer software assets that have been 
reclassified as intangible assets because they are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. 

348 348 
8,775 8,775 

17,371 - 17,371 
119,592 - 119,592 

10,756 10,7561 8,470 8,470 
121,878 - 121.878 119.592 - 119.592 

xli 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 29 -EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO LFRSs (Cont.) 

29.1.1 Reconciliation of equity reported under previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP) 
to equity under Australian equivalents to IFRSs (A-FRS) (Cont.) 

(b) At the end of the last reponing period under previous AGAAP: 31 December 2004 

(a) Property, plant and equipment under previous AGAAP included some land and buildings that have been 
reclassified as non-current assets classified as held for sale because their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. 

Reserves (b) 
Conhibuted capital 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) (d) 
Total equity 

xlii 

Previous Effect of A-FRS 
ACiAAP transition 

to A-FRS 
Institute 

S'OOO $'OOO $'OOO 

13,943 13,943 
1,463 1,463 

577 577 
509 509 

- 10,060 10,060 
16,492 10,060 26,552 

12 12 

893 893 
140,151 (11,712) 128,439 
140,163 (10,819) 129,344 
156,655 (759) 155.896 

7,060 7,060 
2,109 2,109 

410 410 
9,579 9,579 

9.443 9.443 

Note 

Current assefs 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Other assets 
Non-current assets classified as (a), 
held for sale (d) 
Total current assets 
Non-current assets 
Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Held-to-maturity inveshnents 
Intangible assets (c) 
Property, plant and equipment (a),(d) 
Total non-current assets 
Total assets 
Current liabilities 
Payables 
Employee benefits 
Provisions 
Total current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Emulovee benefits 

Previous Effect of A-FRS 
AGAAP transition 

to A-IFRS 
Consolidated 

$'a00 $'OOO $'OOO 

18,415 18,415 
1,581 1,581 

634 634 
535 535 

- 10,060 10,060 
21,165 10,060 31,225 

12 12 

- 893 893 
140,394 (1 1,712) 128,682 
140,406 (10,819) 129,587 
161.571 (7591 160.812 

8,703 8,703 
2,162 2,162 

410 410 
11,275 11,275 

9.604 9.604 

94,918 (669) 94,249 
27,124 27,124 
18,302 (90) 18,212 

140.344 (759) 139.585 

94,918 (669) 94,249 
27,124 27,124 
15,243 (90) 15,153 

137.285 (759) 136,526 



BOX HILL INSTITUTE OF TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 

NOTE 29 - EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO LFRSs (Cont.) 

29.1 .I Reconciliation of equity reported under previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP) 
to equity under Australian equivalents to IFRSs (A-IFRS) (Cont.) 

(b) At the end of the last reporting period under previous AGAAP: 31 December 2004 (Cont'd) 

(b) As stated in (a) above some land and buildings have been reclassified as non-current assets classified as held for 
sale. These assets bad been revalued in 2004 under AGAAP. This revaluation was required to be reversed as a 
non-current asset classified as held for sale must be measured at the lower of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
carrying value immediately before its reclassification as a non-current asset beld for sale. 

(c) Properly, plant and equipment under previous AGAAP included some computer sofhvare assets that have been 
reclassified as intangible assets because they are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. 

(d) Due to a depreciation on buildings journal cnhy being incorrectly processed in the Institute's general ledger, 
accumulated depreciation on buildings was understated. Also total assets and accumulated surplus/(deficit) as at 3 1 
December 2004 were overstated (refer note 1.20). Under previous AGAAP, this error would have been corrected 
in the period it was discovered (the year ended 31 December 2005). Under A-IFRS, the 2004 comparatives have 
been adjusted to reflect the correction of error. The effect of this correction is: 

- the amount reclassified from property, plant and equipment to non-current assets classified beld for sale in note 
(a) above has been reduced by $90,000 for both institute and Consolidated; and 

- the Institute and Consolidated accumulated surplus/(deficit) has been decreased by $90,000. 
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29.1.2 Reconciliation of net operating result for the year ended 3 1 December 2004 

Note 

Revenues from continuing 
activities 

Operating activities 
- Government contributions - 
- Government contributions - 
-Fee for service 
- Student fees and charges 
- Sale of goods 

Non Operating activities 
- Other income (8) 

Expenses from continuing 
activities 

Employee benefits 
Depreciation and amonisation (b) 
Other expenses (a) 

Operating result from 
continuing activities 
Net operating result for the 
year (b) 

(a) A-IFRS requires the gain or loss on the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment to be recognised 
on a net basis as revenue or expense. As a result of this change the written down value on disposal of non-current 
assets is offset against the gross proceeds from the sale of non-currcnt asset. 

Previous Effect of A-IFRS 
AGAAP transition 

to A-IFRS 
Consolidated 

$'OOO $'OOO $'OOO 

46,835 46,835 
6,698 6,698 

16,431 16,43 1 
6,223 6,223 
1,682 - 1,682 

3,393 (481) 2,912 
81,262 (481) 80,781 

52,862 - 52,862 
3950 90 4,040 

18,741 (48 1) 18,260 
75,553 (391) 75,162 

5,709 (90) 5,619 

5,709 (90) 5,619 

(b) Due to a depreciation on buildings journal entry being incorrectly processed in thc htitute 's general ledger, 
depreciation on buildings was understated. Also net operating result for the year ended 31 ~ecember2004  was 
overstated (refer note 1.20). Under previous AGAAP, this error would have been corrected in the period it was 
discovered (the year ended 31 December 2005). Under A-IFRS, the 2004 comparatives have bcen adjusted to 
reflect the correction of error. The effect of this correction is: 

Previous Effect of A-IFRS 
AGAAP transition 

to A-IFRS 
Institute 

$'ooo $'OOO $'OOO 

46,803 46,803 
6,698 6,698 

14,072 14,072 
6,223 6,223 
1,322 - 1,322 

3,074 (442) 2,632 
78,192 (442) 77,750 

5 1,740 5 1,740 
3,900 90 3,990 

17,616 (442) 17,174 
73,256 (352) 72,904 

4,936 (90) 4,846 

4,936 (90) 4,846 

- the Institute and Consolidated depreciation has been increased by $90,000; and 

- the Institute and Consolidated net operating result for the year has been decreased by $90,000. 

29.1.3 Reconciliation of cash flow statement for the year ended 3 1 December 2004 

There are no material differences between the cash flow statement presented under A-IFRS and the income 
statement presented under previous AGAAP. 
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